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Town of Newmarket

Newmarket Agenda
Council

Date: Monday, June 24, 2019

Time: 7:00 PM

Location: Council Chambers

Municipal Offices
395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Pages
1.  Open Forum
2.  Public Notices (if required)
3. Additions & Corrections to the Agenda
4. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
5. Presentations & Recognitions
5.1 2018 Ontario Public Works Association (OPWA) Roger Brown
Award - National Public Works Week
Note: Brian Barber, Executive Director of Ontario Public Works
Association will be in attendance to present this award.
6. Deputations
6.1 Neighbourhood Network 2
Note: Tom Taylor and Erin Cerenzia will be in attendance to provide
a deputation on this matter.
6.2  Residential Property Matter 10
Note: Attila Vinczer will be in attendance to provide a deputation on
this matter.
*6.3  Site Specific Exemption to Interim Control By-law 2019-04 for 316 12

Darlington Crescent

Note: John Houston will be in attendance to provide a deputation on



this matter.

Approval of Minutes

7.1

7.2

Council Meeting Minutes of May 27, 2019

1. That the Council Meeting Minutes of May 27, 2019 be
approved.

Special Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2019

1. That the Special Council Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2019

approved.

Reports by Regional Representatives

Reports of Committees and Staff

9.1

9.2

9.3

Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of May 28, 2019
Note: The workshop dealt with Asset Management.

1. That the Council Workshop meeting Minutes of May 28,
2019 be received.

Council Workshop Meeting Minutes of June 10, 2019
Note: This workshop dealt with the Residential Parking Review.

1. That the Council Workshop meeting Minutes of June 10,
2019 be received.

Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2019

1. That the Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of June
17, 2019 be received and the recommendations noted
within be adopted.

9.3.1 Presentation - Protection of Trees on Private Property

1. That the presentation entitled Protection of Trees
on Private Property be received.

9.3.2  Presentation - Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 2018
Annual General Meeting

1. That the presentation entitled Newmarket Hydro
Holdings Inc. 2018 Annual General Meeting be
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9.3.3

934

9.3.5

9.3.6

9.3.7

9.3.8

9.3.9

9.3.10

received.

Presentation - ENVI 2018 Annual General Meeting

1. That the presentations by Paul
Ferguson regarding the Newmarket Hydro
Holdings 2018 Annual General Meeting and
Gianni Creta regarding the ENVI 2018 Annual
General Meeting be received.

Deputation - Routes Connecting Communities

1. That the deputation by Danielle Koren regarding
Routes Connecting Communities be received.

Deputation - Property Water Damage

1. That the deputation by John Day regarding
Property Water Damage be received.

Deputation - Traffic Signage on Wayne Drive

1. That the deputation regarding Traffic Signage on
Wayne Drive be received and referred to staff.

Deputation - Protection of Trees on Private Property

1. That the deputation by Chris Howie regarding the
Protection of Trees on Private Property be
received.

Deputation - Protection of Trees on Private Property

1. That the deputation by Catherine Wellesley
regarding the Protection of Trees on Private
Property be received.

Deputation - Protection of Trees on Private Property

1. That the deputation by Edie Andrews regarding
the Protection of Trees on Private Property be
received.

Deputation - Site-Specific Employment Land Conversion
Requests

1. That the deputation by John McGovern
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9.3.11

4

regarding Site-Specific Employment Land
Conversion Requests be received.

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the President

That the Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the
President dated June 4, 2019 regarding the financial
statements of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. (the
“Corporation”), the written resolutions of Newmarket — Tay
Power Distribution Ltd. (“NT Power”), the written
resolutions of Envi Networks Ltd. (“Envi”) and appointment
of the sole director and auditors be received and the
following recommendations be adopted:

Whereas the Corporation of the Town of Newmarket (the
“Sole Shareholder”) is the sole shareholder of the
Corporation; and,

Whereas the Sole Shareholder by a Shareholder
Declaration dated November 1, 2000 appointed the Mayor
as its legal representative for the purpose of
communicating any shareholder consent or approval
required by either the terms of the Shareholder Declaration
or the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”);
and,

Whereas the Corporation owns a majority of the common
shares of NT Power and Envi; and,

Whereas pursuant to s.102(2) of the OBCA where a body
corporate is the shareholder of a corporation the
corporation shall recognize any individual properly
authorized by the body corporate to represent it at
meetings of shareholders of the corporation; and,

Whereas pursuant to s.104 of the OBCA a written
resolution dealing with all the matters required to be dealt
with at a shareholders meeting and signed by the
shareholders entitled to vote at that meeting satisfies all
requirements of the OBCA relating to that meeting of
shareholders;

Now therefore be it resolved by the Municipal Council of
the Corporation of the Town of Newmarket as follows:

1. That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal

152
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representative, is directed to sign the following
Corporation Shareholder resolutions:

a.

That the Corporation’s financial statements
for the financial year ended December 31,
2018 together with the report of the
Corporation’s auditors, Baker Tilly KDN LLP
(“Baker Tilly”), Chartered Accountants,
formerly Collins Barrow, thereon dated May
14, 2019 be approved and adopted; and,

That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be
appointed auditors of the Corporation to hold
office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders at such remuneration as may
be fixed by the sole director and the sole
director is authorized to fix such
remuneration; and,

That Jag Sharma be appointed as the sole
director of the Corporation to hold office until
the next annual meeting of shareholders or
until his or her successor is elected or
appointed; and,

That Jag Sharma, so long as he or she is the
sole director of the Corporation, shall
represent the Corporation at meetings of the
shareholders of NT Power and Envi; and,

That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings,
appointments, elections and payments,
enacted, made, done and taken by the sole
director and sole officer of the Corporation to
December 31, 2018, as the same are set out
or referred to in the resolutions of the sole
director, or in the financial statements of the
corporation, are approved, sanctioned and
confirmed; and,

That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal
representative, direct Jag Sharma, the sole
director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following NT Power
shareholder resolutions in lieu of an annual
meeting:
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a. That the financial statements of NT Power for
the financial year ended December 31, 2018
together with the report of NT Power’s
auditors, Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 30,
2019 be approved and adopted; and,

b. That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be
appointed auditors of NT Power to hold office
until the next annual meeting of shareholders
at such remuneration as may be fixed by the
directors and the directors are authorized to
fix such remuneration; and,

c. ThatJ. Taylor, T. Walker, B. Gabel, R. Betts,
D. Charleson, C. Prattas and P. Ferguson are
elected directors of NT Power to hold office
until the next annual meeting of shareholders
or until their successors are elected or
appointed; and,

d. That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings,
appointments elections and payments,
enacted, made, done and taken by the
directors and officers of NT Power to
December 31, 2018, as the same are set out
or referred to in the resolutions of the board
of directors, the minutes of the meetings of
the board of directors or in the financial
statements of NT Power, are approved,
sanctioned and confirmed; and,

That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal
representative, direct Jag Sharma, the sole
director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following Envi shareholder
resolutions in lieu of an annual meeting; and,

a. That the financial statements of Envi for the
financial year ended December 31, 2018
together with the report of Envi’s auditors,
Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 18, 2019 be
approved and adopted; and,

b. That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be
appointed auditors of Envi to hold office until
the next annual meeting of shareholders at
such remuneration as may be fixed by the
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directors and the directors are authorized to
fix such remuneration; and,

c. Thatl. Collins, J, Schatz, T. Van Bynen and
B. Kwapis are elected directors of Envi to
hold office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders or until their successors are
elected or appointed; and,

d. That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings,
appointments elections and payments,
enacted, made, done and taken by the
directors and officers of Envi to December 31,
2018, as the same are set out or referred to
in the resolutions of the board of directors,
the minutes of the meetings of the board of
directors or in the financial statements of
Envi, are approved, sanctioned and

confirmed.
9.3.12  Protection of Trees on Private Property 256

1. That the report entitled Protection of Trees on
Private Property dated June 17, 2019 be received;
and,

2. That the presentation regarding Protection of
Trees on Private Property be received; and,

3. That staff be directed to take the proposed
approach for internal and public consultation; and,

4. That following the internal and public consultation,
issues identified in this report, together with
comments from the public, and Committee, be
addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to
the Committee of the Whole with a draft by-law;
and,

5. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

9.3.13  Asset Management Policy 292

1. That the report entitled Asset Management Policy
dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

2. That the Asset Management Policy (Appendix A)



9.3.14

9.3.15

3.

8
be approved; and,

That Staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

Application for Draft Plan of Condominium (19CDMN-
2019-001) 955 and 995 Mulock Drive Lorne Park Gardens

Inc.

1.

That the report entitled Application for Draft Plan
of Condominium (19CDMN-2019-001) dated June
17, 2019 be received; and,

That approval be given to draft plan of
condominium 19CDMN-2019 001 subject to the
Schedule of Conditions attached and forming part
of this report; and,

That Michael Vani, Weston Consulting, 201
Millway Ave. Suite 19, Vaughan, ON L4K be
notified of this action.

Implications of Bill 108 - More Homes More Choice Act

Note: The Committee of the Whole directed Staff to attach
comments to the Province regarding Bill 108 to the Council
Agenda. See letter attached.

1.

That the report entitled Implications of Bill 108 —
More Homes More Choices Act dated June 17,
2019 be received; and,

That the report entitled Implications of Bill 108 —
More Homes More Choices Act dated June 17,

2019 be submitted to the province as feedback;
and,

That a copy of the report be sent to the
Honourable Christine Elliott, Deputy Premier and
MPP Newmarket-Aurora, and to the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) for their
consideration; and,

That Council call on the province to engage in
significant and meaningful consultation with
municipalities prior to the development of the
regulations; and,

That Staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

308

318
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9.3.16  Fire Learning Management System Software 354

1.

That Fire Services Report 2019-04 Fire Learning
Management System Software dated 2019-04-18
be received; and,

That Council approve Central York Fire Service
(CYFS) enter into a long-term, non-competitive
agreement with the current web based Fire
Learning Management System (FLMS) service
provider, being Stillwater Consulting Limited, at a
cost of approximately $153,000.00 over a ten (10)
year time frame and renewable annually thereafter
for support, maintenance and licence fees based
on available approved budgets.

9.3.17  Youth Engagement, Diversity and Inclusivity, and 360
Consultation on the Environment

1.

That the report entitled Youth Engagement,
Diversity and Inclusivity, and Consultation on the
Environment dated June 17, 2019 be received;
and,

That staff be directed to continue the initiatives
related to Youth Engagement and Diversity and
Inclusivity that are outlined in this report; and,

That staff be directed to plan a Climate Change
Open House for Fall 2019 and a Spring 2020 e-
Waste Collection event as part of a one-year pilot
environmental consultation program and report
back in 2020 with a review of this program; and,

That staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

9.3.18  Site-Specific Employment Land Conversion Requests 368

1.

That the report entitled Site-Specific Employment
Area Conversion Requests dated June 17, 2019
be received; and,

That Council support the Site-Specific
Employment Area Conversion Requests submitted
to York Region regarding the following properties:

a. 520,521, 550 & 630 Newpark Boulevard



9.3.19
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(Weston Consulting)

That Council also support the Site-Specific
Employment Area Conversion Request submitted
to York Region regarding 1240 Twinney Drive &
1250 Davis Drive (Rice Group) subiject to:

a. the inclusion of a purpose-built rental
development in the area identified as ‘Block
A’ on Map 15 of Zoning By-law 2010-40; and,

b. the owner executing an agreement with the
Town including a commitment that any rental
building remain rental for a minimum of 20
years; and,

c. a percentage of the units being made
available to Housing York; and,

That the report entitled Site-Specific Employment

Area Conversion Requests dated June 17, 2019

be submitted to York Region as input to the

Municipal Comprehensive Review; and,

That Attachment 2 to the report entitled Site-
Specific Employment Area Conversion Requests
dated June 17, 2019, be submitted to the
province; and,

That Staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

2. That Council support the Site-Specific Employment Area
Conversion Requests submitted to York Region regarding
the following properties:

b. 20 properties within the Mulock Station Area
Secondary Plan (Town of Newmarket).

Audit and Accountability Fund — Submission of Expression
of Interest to the Province

1.

That the report entitled “Audit and Accountability
Fund — Submission of Expression of Interest to the
Province” dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

That Council directs staff to submit an Expression
of Interest to the Province for funding through the
Audit and Accountability Fund by June 30, 2019;

396



9.3.20

9.3.21

9.3.22

9.3.23

9.3.24

9.3.25

11

and,

3. That Council supports the Provincial investment in
municipalities to undertake expenditure reviews
with the goal of finding service delivery
efficiencies; and,

4. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all
things necessary to give effect to this resolution.

Central York Fire Services Joint Council Committee
Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2019

1. That the Central York Fire Services Joint Council
Committee Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2019 be
received.

Elman W. Campbell Museum Board of Management
Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2019

1.  That the EIman W. Campbell Museum Board of
Management Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2019 be
received.

Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
of May 7, 2019

1. That the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee
Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2019 be received.

Item 3.1 of Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee
Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2019

1. That the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee
recommend that the Council of the Town of
Newmarket direct staff to investigate a new
plaque, including associated costs to denote the
location of the historic Trading Tree and provide
the Town history associated with the Tree.

Main Street District Business Improvement Area Board of
Management Meeting Minutes of April 17, 2019

1. That the Main Street District Business
Improvement Area Board of Management Meeting
Minutes of April 17, 2019 be received.

Newmarket Downtown Development Committee Meeting

400
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418

426



9.3.26

9.3.27

9.3.28

9.3.29

9.3.30

9.3.31

12
Minutes of March 29, 2019

1. That the Newmarket Downtown Development
Committee Meeting Minutes of March 29, 2019 be
received.

Newmarket Environmental Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes of June 20, 2018

1. That the Newmarket Environmental Advisory
Committee Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2018 be
received.

Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting Minutes of April
17,2019

1. That the Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting
Minutes of April 17, 2019 be received.

Outstanding Matters List

1. That the list of outstanding matters be received.

Motion - Single-Use Plastics (Councillor Simon)

1. That Council direct staff to bring back a report
which outlines the roles and responsibilities of the
Province, the Region and the Town in relation to
recycling and diversion and provides the following:
a. information on what work is currently being

done to address the reduction and eventual
elimination of single use plastics; and,

b. clear options for Council to consider to
ensure the town is taking steps within its
jurisdiction to reduce and eventually eliminate
single use plastics.

New Business - Ward 1 Traffic Petitions

1. That the petitions regarding traffic issues in Ward
1 be received and referred to staff.

Public Planning - Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-
law Amendment (900 Mulock Drive / 605 Ferndale Ave -
Stickwood Walker Farm)

432

436

442



9.4

9.5

*9.6
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1. That all presentations and deputations relating to
the Public Planning Session - Official Plan
Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment (900
Mulock Drive/605 Ferndale Ave - Stickwood
Walker Farm) be received.

2. That staff be directed to hold a Public Information
Centre on the Stickwood Walker Farm building
design and arrange a meeting between the Ward
1 Councillor and local concerned residents.

Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session) Minutes of June
17,2019

1.

That the Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session)
Minutes of June 17, 2019 be approved.

2018 Financial Statements and Auditor's Report

1.

That the report entitled 2018 Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report dated June 24, 2019 be received; and,

That the draft 2018 financial statements for The
Corporation of the Town of Newmarket, the Town of
Newmarket Main Street District BIA and the Town of
Newmarket Trust Fund; the Financial Statement Discussion
and Analysis prepared by staff; and the Report to the Audit
Committee on the results of the December 31, 2018
financial statements audits from Deloitte LLP be received;
and,

That Council approves the 2018 financial statements for
The Corporation of the Town of Newmarket, the Town of
Newmarket Main Street District BIA and the Town of
Newmarket Trust Fund as endorsed by the Audit
Committee.

Correspondence regarding Site-Specific Employment Land
Conversion Requests

Note: This item relates to item 9.3.18 of the Committee of the Whole
Meeting Minutes from June 17, 2019.

1.

That the Correspondence regarding the Site-Specific
Employment Land Conversion Requests from the Rice
Group be received for information; and,

That the Correspondence regarding the Site-Specific

454
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

14

Employment Land Conversion Requests from Tricap
Properties be received for information.

9.7  Site Specific Exemption to Interim Control By-law 2019-04 for 316 568
Darlington Crescent

1. That the report entitled Site Specific Exemption to Interim
Control By-law 2019-04 — 316 Darlington Crescent dated
June 24, 2019 be received; and,

2. That Council approve the requested site-specific exemption
to Interim Control by-law 2019-04 for 316 Darlington
Crescent and adopt the attached exemption by-law.

9.8  Site Specific Exemption to Interim Control By-law 2019-04 for 624 582
Srigley Street

1. That the report entitled Site Specific Exemption to Interim
Control By-law 2019-04 — 624 Srigley Street dated June 24,
2019 be received; and,

2. That Council approve the requested site-specific exemption
to Interim Control by-law 2019-04 for 624 Srigley Street and
adopt the attached exemption by-law.

By-laws 594

2019-41 A By-law To Exempt Certain Lands From The Part Lot Control
Provisions Of The Planning Act. (Lorne Park Gardens Inc.)

2019-42 A By-law to Permanently Close a Highway (Deerfield Road)
2019-43 A By-law to grant a site specific exemption for the property with
the Municipal address of 316 Darlington Crescent, Newmarket, from
Interim Control By-law 2019-04.

2019-44 A By-law to grant a site specific exemption for the property with
the Municipal address of 624 Srigley Street, Newmarket, from Interim
Control By-law 2019-04.

1. That By-laws 2019-41, 2019-42, 2019-43 and 2019-44 be enacted.
Notices of Motions
Motions
Announcements & Community Events

New Business



15.

16.

17.

15

Closed Session

15.1 Personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees as per Section 239 (2) (b) of
the Municipal Act, 2001.

15.2  Lease Agreement for a Property in Ward 5

A proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the
municipality or local board as per Section 239(2)(c) of the
Municipal Act, 2001

Confirmatory By-law

2019-45 A By-law to Confirm the Proceedings of the June 24, 2019 Council
meeting

1. That By-law 2019-45 be enacted.

Adjournment

602






Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name:
7 d’/l'l T a (Lon

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

NLIGH Bookpteoed MNETORK
Address: . Postal Code:

Qo o ) pi?

Home Phone:

Daytime Phone No:

Email: Date of Meeting:

 —— e 2l =01
Is this an item on the Agenda? | | Yes No Agenda ltem No:

[ ] I'request future notification of meetings [] I'wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable): :

nke p /é/ﬂ“&f,’fq{@,{
L A
ol fhsr aw) FOTORE pe7s e 7hed audy 78 A KLl 2

TV L o il TD U@ﬂf’ﬂ THUC .
& pegriond -

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background mformatlon [1Yes[ INo
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

¢ Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

o Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt

~ of this form; }

* Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

¢ Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211

Fax 905-953-5100







Neighbourhood Network Council Update M MAGNA
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Neighbourhood Network Council Update M MAGNA

I VOLUNTEERS Register Logln PARTNERS Register Loglin

NeighbourhoodNetwork Volunteer Community Events Partners Programs -~ AboutUs ContactUs
Building Better Communities Together

Building better communities 14.313 | 417 110
together' VoI:lnteers Partners Volunteer

Neighbourhood Network supports the neighbourhoods of Opportunities
Aurora, East Gwillimbury, Georgina, King Township, and
Newmarket by promoting volunteerism and linking community
resources to our partnered charities and agencies.

LEARN MORE

6/18/2019 Disclosure or duplication without consent is prohibited 2



Neighbourhood Network Council Update M MAGNA

* Volunteers
— 14,313 engaged volunteers (As of May 28, 2019)
— Aurora 26%

— East Gwillimbury 6%
— Georgina 4%

— King Township 4%

— Newmarket 37%

— Other 23%

6/18/2019 Disclosure or duplication without consent is prohibited 3



Neighbourhood Network Council Update M MAGNA

* Partners
— 417 engaged partners (As of May 28, 2019)
— Aurora 23%

— East Gwillimbury 6%
— Georgina 11%

— King Township 5%

— Newmarket 31%

— Other 24%

6/18/2019 Disclosure or duplication without consent is prohibited 4



Neighbourhood Network Council Update M MAGNA

* Newmarket
— We are a free resource for you and your residents!
— Create a presence on the Town of Newmarket website

— Opportunities for community engagement, ex: hosting a community BBQ,
coordinating volunteer fairs, participating in Town committees, having

booths at Town-run events
— Any ideas you have, please connect with us!

6/18/2019 Disclosure or duplication without consent is prohibited
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name: Attila Vinczer

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

. T

s e

Email: Date of Meeting:
_ June 17, 2019 B

Is this an item on the Agenda? [ | Yes (m] No Agenda Item No:

(m] | request future notification of meetings (m] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):
Matters concerning 330 Premier Place.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [ ] Yes [H] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

« Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

« Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

» Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

e Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If
you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211

Fax 905-953-5100
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name:

John Houston

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

self

I -

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Email: Date of Meeting:

june 24,2019
Is this an item on the Agenda? @] Yes [INo Agenda Item No:
[ 1 1 request future notification of meetings [m] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):

A request for an ICB Exemption has been filed for 316 Darlington Cr. As a resident of 318 Darlington
Cr | would like to have my reasons for objectin considered.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [_] Yes [ | No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

¢ Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

e Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

e Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If
you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7: Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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Newmarket
Town of Newmarket
Minutes
Council
Date: Monday, May 27, 2019
Time: 7:00 PM
Location: Council Chambers
Municipal Offices
395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7
Members Present: Mayor Taylor

Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh
Councillor Simon
Councillor Woodhouse
Councillor Twinney
Councillor Morrison
Councillor Kwapis
Councillor Broome
Councillor Bisanz
Staff Present: P. Noehammer, Acting Chief Administrative Officer
I. McDougall, Commissioner of Community Services
M. Mayes, Acting Commissioner of Corporate Services
L. Lyons, Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk
J. Grossi, Legislative Coordinator

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM.
Mayor Taylor in the Chair.

1. Open Forum

No one in attendance came forward to address Council during Open Forum.
2. Public Notices (if required)

None.
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Additions & Corrections to the Agenda
The Clerk advised of the following addition to the agenda:

e Item 6.1 Deputation request received from Jon Aston representing Common
Ground - York Region

The Clerk advised of the following correction to the agenda:

e Item 9.4.14 An amended resolution was distributed

Moved by: Councillor Broome

Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

1. That the additions and corrections to the agenda be approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
None.

Presentations & Recognitions

5.1 VivaNext Presentation

Paul May, Executive Vice President of York Region Rapid Transit
Corporation (YRRTC) provided a presentation updating Council on the
Davis Drive and Yonge Street rapid transit projects.

Kristina Bergeron, Project Manager of York Region Rapid Transit
Corporation (YRRTC) provided an update on construction
communications, safety campaigns and the business support program.

Members of Council queried the presenters regarding the bike lanes,
construction timelines and the shop Yonge campaign.

Moved by: Councillor Bisanz
Seconded by: Councillor Twinney

1. That the presentation regarding VivaNext be received.
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In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

5.2

Carried (9 to 0)

Transportation Services in the Town of Newmarket

Brian Titherington, Director of Transportation and Infrastructure
Planning for York Region provided an update to Council regarding

the York Region Transportation Services current and future projects. He
outlined traffic signal projects, a snow management facility and a transit
garage.

Ann Marie Carroll, General Manager of Transit for York Region provided
an update regarding transportation operations. She outlined safety
considerations, service changes and partnership programs.

Members of Council queried the presenters regarding service expansions,
electric buses and GO services.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the presentation regarding Transportation Services in the Town of
Newmarket be received.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

Deputations

6.1

Common Ground - York Region

Jon Aston provided a deputation to Council regarding the Common
Ground - York Region's Pan-Partisan Protest Movement's current efforts
in relation to recent Provincial legislation.

Moved by: Councillor Woodhouse
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Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

1. That the deputation provided by Jon Aston representing Common
Ground - York Region be received.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9 to 0)

Approval of Minutes
7.1  Council Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2019
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Broome
1. That the Council Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2019 be approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

Reports by Regional Representatives

(1) Deputy Mayor and Regional Councillor Vegh provided an update on current
initiatives of the Lake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority (LSRCA) including
the following items:

e Addressing climate change by updating the current floodplain mapping;
e Attending the Freshwater Round table which strives to reduce salt use;

e Partnership with York region and Federal government to plant 700,000 trees
by 2027;

(2) Deputy Mayor and Regional Councillor Vegh invited residents to a Public
Information Centre (PIC) on Wednesday June 5, 2019 at the Holland Landing
Community Centre from 7:00 PM to 8:30 PM regarding the Meadow Restoration
Project at Yonge Street and Mount Albert Road.

(3) Mayor Taylor advised that two resolutions were adopted by Council and sent
to the Province as feedback, regarding Bill 108 and single use plastics.
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Reports of Committees and Staff
9.1 Special Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2019

9.2  Special Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session) Minutes of
May 6, 2019

1. That the Closed Session presentation regarding proposed or pending
acquisition or disposition of properties in Ward 5 and Ward 2 be
received and that the confidential direction to staff be approved.

Moved by: Councillor Woodhouse
Seconded by: Councillor Broome

1. That the Special Committee of the Whole MeetingcMinutes of May 6,
2019 and the Special Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed
Session) Minutes of May 6, 2019 be approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

9.2.1 Properties in Ward 5 and Ward 2
Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the Closed Session presentation regarding proposed or
pending acquisition or disposition of properties in Ward 5 and
Ward 2 be received and that the confidential direction to staff be
approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

9.3 Special Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of May 14, 2019
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Moved by: Councillor Morrison

Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

1. That the Special Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of May 14,
2019 be approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

9.4 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of May 21, 2019

Moved by: Councillor Bisanz

Seconded by: Councillor Broome

1. That the Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of May 21, 2019 be
received and the recommendations noted within be adopted.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

9.4.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Carried (9to 0)

Presentation - Regulations for Smoking By-law

1. That the presentation entitled Regulations for Smoking By-law
be received.

Presentation - Development Charges - Statutory Public
Meeting

1. That the presentation by Nataliya Kelbas regarding
Development Charges be received.

Deputation - Regulations for Smoking By-law

1. That the deputation by Nagwa Mounir regarding Regulations for
Smoking By-law be received.

Deputation - Application for Zoning By-Law Amendment - 247
and 251 Kathryn Crescent



9.4.5

9.4.6

9.4.7

9.4.8

9.4.9
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1. That the deputation by Jim Arlow regarding Application for
Zoning By-Law Amendment - 247 and 251 Kathryn Crescent be
received.

Deputation - 2019 Annual Servicing Allocation Review

1. That the deputation by Joanna Fast regarding 2019 Annual
Servicing Allocation Review be received.

Deputation - 2019 Annual Servicing Allocation Review

1. That the deputation by Nick Pileggi regarding 2019 Annual
Servicing Allocation Review be received.

Deputation - 2019 Annual Servicing Allocation Review

1. That the deputation by Paul Bailey regarding 2019 Annual
Servicing Allocation Review be received.

Regulations for Smoking By-law

1. That the report entitled Regulations for Smoking By-law dated
May 21, 2019 be received; and,

That Smoking By-law be enacted; and,
That Delegation By-law 2016-17 be amended; and,
That Parks By-law 2013-14 be amended; and,

o k~ w0 D

That permanent Designated Smoking Areas only for tobacco
consumption be established at Town facilities, if required; and,

6. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.

Potential Redevelopment — 693 & 713 Davis Drive and 35
Patterson Street (Hollingsworth Arena Site)

1. That the report entitled “Potential Redevelopment - 693 & 713
Davis Drive and 35 Patterson Street (Hollingsworth Arena
Site)”, dated April 29, 2019 be received,;

2. That Council endorse in principle the notion of redeveloping the
properties municipally known as 693 Davis Drive, 713 Davis
Drive and a portion of 35 Patterson Street, in a manner
generally consistent with the conceptual drawings entitled
“Scenario 1 — Site Plan” and “Scenario 1 — Aerial View”,
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attached to this Report, prepared by the Briarwood
Development Group, dated December 7, 2018; and,

That a public session be held for the purposes of obtaining
public input into the potential future uses within the community
park; and,

That Staff be directed to prepare options for the development of
the community park and how they would be financed, which will
include some or all of net proceeds from any future sale of a
portion of the Hollingsworth Arena property; and,

That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.

9.4.10 Site Specific Exemptions to Interim Control By-Law 2019-04

1.

That the report entitled Site Specific Exemption to Interim
Control By-law 2019-04 dated April 29, 2019 be received.

9.4.11 Updated Exemption Process for Interim Control Bylaw 2019-04

1.

That the report entitled Updated Exemption Process for Interim
Control By-law 2019-04 dated May 21, 2019 be received; and,

That Council approve the updated process for exemption from
Interim Control By-law 2019-04, as outlined in this report.

9.4.12 By-Law to Regulate Backflow Prevention

1.

That the report entitled By-Law to Regulate Backflow Prevention
dated March 13, 2019 be received; and,

. That Council adopt a New Backflow Prevention Bylaw to

regulate the installation and testing of backflow preventers, as
described in this report and set out in Attachment 1; and,

That a copy of The Town of Newmarket's Backflow Prevention
Bylaw be placed on the Town of Newmarket Website; and,

That new administration fees for surveys and testing of
Backflow Preventers be added to the 2019 Fees and Charges
as set out in Attachment 2, and,

That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.
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9.4.13 Application for Zoning By-Law Amendment - 247 and 251
Kathryn Crescent

1.

That the report entitled Application for Zoning By-Law
Amendment 247 and 251 Kathryn Crescent dated May 21, 2019
be received; and,

That application for Zoning By-Law amendment, as submitted
by Kariminejad Nobatri, for lands on the north side of Kathryn
Crescent, be referred to a statutory public meeting; and,

That following the public meeting, issues identified in this report,
together with comments from the public, Committee, and those

received through the agency and departmental circulation of the
application, be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to

the Committee of the Whole, if required; and,

That Reza Hayati, Sunrise Constrade Corp., 7368 Yonge
Street, Unit 210, Thornhill, L4J 8H9 be notified of this action.

9.4.14 2019 Annual Servicing Allocation Review

1.

2.

3.

4.

That the report entitled 2019 Annual Servicing Allocation
Review dated May 21, 2019 be received; and,

That Council rescind servicing allocation from the following
developments:

a. 345-351 Davis Drive; and,

That Council reinstate servicing allocation to the following
developments:

a. The Davis (175 Deerfield Rd);
b. Redwood Properties Phase 1 (17645 Yonge St);
c. Sundial Phase 2 (Davis Drive W),

d. Landmark Estates Phase 5 (Yonge St and Clearmeadow
Blvd);

e. Maple Lane Homes (680 Gorham St); and,

That Council grant servicing allocation to the following
developments:

a. Goldstein (16333 Leslie St);
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b. Marianneville / Kerbel Phase 2 (I & | Program);
c. 281 Main St N; and,
d. Azure Homes; and,

5. That Council grant servicing allocation to Shining Hill in the
amount of 485 persons of capacity (179 units), subject to
satisfying the following prior conditions:

a. An executed agreement and/or Memorandum of
Understanding be entered into between the Town and
Shining Hill, establishing a timeframe and any other
associated conditions / securities for the servicing allocation
repayment of 647 persons of capacity (to account for the
capacity that was up-fronted, plus the Town’s 25% allocation
for its own use and reserve, as per the Inflow and Infiltration
Agreement dated November 2, 2018); and, if necessary,

b. An amended Inflow and Infiltration Agreement, or other form
of agreement to the satisfaction of the Town and York
Region; and,

6. That Staff work with the owner of the Shining Hill development
to establish a servicing allocation repayment timeframe and
conditions associated with the granting of this allocation
including but not limited to any required amendments to the
inflow and infiltration agreement; and,

7. That the Town’s resulting remaining servicing capacity (the
Town Reserve) of 2797 persons of allocation (of which 20
persons of allocation is to be held in a Severance Reserve) be
maintained; and,

8. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.

9.4.15 Regulatory Review for 2018-2022 Term of Council

1. That the report entitled Regulatory Review for 2018-2022 Term
of Council dated May 21, 2019 be received; and,

2. That Council repeal schedules 3, 5, 6, 8, 13 and 14 of Licensing
By-law 2002-151; and,

10
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3. That Staff be directed to implement the timelines for the review
or development of by-laws and frameworks as set out within this
report; and,

4. That the matter of Short Term Accommodations and Rentals be
scheduled to be presented to Council for consideration in Q1
2020; and,

5. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.

9.4.16 Council Appointments to the Newmarket Historical Society
Board

1. That the report entitled Council Appointments to the Newmarket
Historical Society Board dated May 21, 2019 be received; and,

2. That Council make no further appointment to the Newmarket
Historical Society Board until the review of the Board structure
is complete; and,

3. That staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary
to give effect to this resolution.

9.4.17 Property Tax Rates and By-law for 2019

1. That the report entitled Property Tax Rates and By-law for 2019
dated May 22, 2019 be received; and,

2. That the property tax rates for 2019, as applied to the
assessment roll returned in 2018 for 2019 taxation, be set for
Town purposes as follows:

a. Residential 0.322917%j;

b. Multi-Residential 0.322917%;
c. Commercial 0.413140%;

d. Industrial 0.507109%;

e. Pipeline 0.296761%;

f. Farm 0.080729%; and,

3. That the applicable Tax Rate By-law, attached as Appendix ‘A’
be forwarded to Council for approval; and,

11
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4. That the Treasurer be authorized and directed to do all things
necessary to give effect to this resolution.

9.4.18 Resolution from Brantford City Council regarding Single Use-
Plastic Straws

1. That the Resolution from Brantford City Council regarding
Single-Use Plastic Straws be received for information.

9.4.19 Accessibility Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of June 21,
2018

1. That the Accessibility Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of
June 21, 2018 be received.

9.4.20 Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of
July 3, 2018 and April 16, 2019

1. That the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes of June 3, 2018 and April 16, 2019 be received.

9.4.21 Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting Minutes of January
16, 2019 and March 20, 2019

1. That the Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting Minutes of
January 17, 2019 and March 20, 2019 be received.

9.4.22 Outstanding Matters List
1. That the list of outstanding matters be received.

9.4.23 Motion - Bill 108 Ontario Municipal Board Changes (Councillor
Bisanz)

Whereas the legislation that abolished the OMB and replaced it
with LPAT received unanimous — all party support; and,

Whereas All parties recognized that local governments should have
the authority to uphold their provincially approved Official Plans; to
uphold their community driven planning; and,

Whereas Bill 108 will once again allow an unelected,
unaccountable body make decisions on how our communities
evolve and grow; and,

Whereas On August 21, 2018 Minister Clark once again signed the
MOU with the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and entered

12
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into “...a legally binding agreement recognizing Ontario
Municipalities as a mature, accountable order of government.”; and,

Whereas This MOU is “enshrined in law as part of the Municipal
Act”. And recognizes that as “...public policy issues are complex
and thus require coordinated responses...the Province endorses
the principle of regular consultation between Ontario and
municipalities in relation to matters of mutual interest”; and,

Whereas By signing this agreement, the Province made “...a
commitment to cooperating with its municipal governments in
considering new legislation or regulations that will have a municipal
impact”; and,

Whereas Bill 108 will impact 15 different Acts - Cannabis Control
Act, 2017, Conservation Authorities Act, Development Charges Act,
Education Act, Endangered Species Act, 2007, Environmental
Assessment Act, Environmental Protection Act, Labour Relations
Act, 1995, Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act, 2017, Municipal Act,
2001, Occupational Health and Safety Act, Ontario Heritage Act,
Ontario Water Resources Act, Planning Act, Workplace Safety and
Insurance Act, 1997.

Now Therefore Be it Hereby Resolved:

1. That the Town of Newmarket oppose Bill 108 which in its
current state will have negative consequences on community
building and proper planning; and,

2. That the Town of Newmarket call upon the Government of
Ontario to halt the legislative advancement of Bill 108 to enable
fulsome consultation with Municipalities to ensure that its
objectives for sound decision making for housing growth that
meets local needs will be reasonably achieved; and,

3. That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Honourable Doug
Ford, Premier of Ontario, The Honourable Christine Elliott,
Deputy Premier and MPP Newmarket-Aurora, the Honourable
Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs, the Honourable
Andrea Horwath, Leader of the New Democratic Party, and all
MPPs in the Province of Ontario; and,

13
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4. That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) and all Ontario municipalities for
their consideration.

9.5 Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session) Minutes of May

21, 2019
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

1. That the Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session) Minutes of
May 21, 2019 be approved.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

9.5.1 Hollingsworth Arena
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Broome

1. That Report 2019-08 dated April 29, 2019 entitled Potential
Disposition of Hollingsworth Arena Lands be received; and,

2. That, based upon the recommendation of the Committee of the
Whole to adopt an amended recommendation in Planning &
Building Report 2019-40 to endorse in principle the notion of
redeveloping the properties municipally known as 693 Davis
Drive, 713 Davis Drive and a portion of 35 Patterson Street, in a
manner generally consistent with the conceptual drawings
entitled “Scenario 1 — Site Plan” and “Scenario 1 — Aerial View”,
Council declare surplus and approve the sale of the southerly
21 metres of the Hollingsworth Arena lands (the “21 Metres”);
and,

3. That the Chief Administrative Officer be directed to execute a
conditional agreement of purchase and sale with Briarwood
(NWMKT) Inc. (the “Purchaser”) for the sale of the 21 Metres,
as applicable, based substantially on the terms set out in this
report, and as may be modified as considered reasonably

14
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necessary by the Chief Administrative Officer and/or the
Municipal Solicitor, as amended;and,

4. That Planning staff be directed to execute the necessary
authorization for the Purchaser to submit the relevant
development application as representative of the Town
regarding the 21 metres; and,

5. That Council authorize access to the 21 metres, by the
Purchaser to conduct environmental and geotechnical
investigations prior to execution of the conditional agreement of
purchase and sale, and that staff be directed to execute such
access agreements for this purpose; and,

6. That staff be directed to do all things necessary to give effect to
these recommendations; and,

7. That staff be directed to notify the Purchaser of these actions.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

By-laws

Moved by: Deputy Mayor & Regional
Councillor Vegh

Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

1. That By-laws 2019-30, 2019-31, 2019-32, 2019-33, 2019-34, 2019-35, 2019-
36, 2019-37 and 2019-38 be enacted.

In Favour (9): Mayor Taylor, Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh, Councillor
Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor
Kwapis, Councillor Broome, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (9to 0)

Notices of Motions
None.

Motions

15
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None.
Announcements & Community Events

(1) Councillor Bisanz invited residents to the Ward 7 meeting on Wednesday
June 19, 2019 at Ray Twinney Recreational Complex Lounge 2 from 6:30 PM to
8:00 PM regarding the general planning process.

(2) Councillor Woodhouse advised residents of a developer led PIC on Thursday
May 23, 2019 which related to the potential development of Roxborough Road
and Queen Street. Future engagement opportunities will be available.

(3) Councillor Kwapis invited residents to the D-Day Opening Ceremony
celebrating the 75th Anniversary on Thursday June 6, 2019 at the EIman W.
Campbell Museum at 2:00 PM.

(4) Councillor Kwapis congratulated Public Works Staff for receiving a Roger
Brown Award.

(5) Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh advised that the 2019 spring street
sweeping was completed and will continue throughout the summer months.

(6) Councillor Morrison invited residents to the collective planting day at the
community garden at London and Main Street on Saturday June 1, 2019 from
10:00 AM to 12:00 PM.

(7) Councillor Morrison advised that over 300 riders attended the Bike to Work
Day celebration at Riverwalk Commons and thanked the volunteers and
Sponsors.

(8) Councillor Morrison advised that he attended the Mayor's Challenge event
during National Public Works Week and placed third on behalf of the Town of
Newmarket.

(9) Councillor Broome invited residents to the Relay for Life event at Sir William
Mulock Secondary School on Thursday May 30, 2019.

(10) Councillor Broome invited residents to the community de-pave event at St.
John Chrysostom Catholic Elementary School on Thursday June 6, 2019.

(11) Councillor Broom invited residents to the Terry Fox Public School Family
Fun Fair on Wednesday June 12, 2019 from 4:30 PM to 6:30 PM.

(12) Councillor Broome invited residents to the 12th Annual Moms On The Run
BBQ in support of Relay for Life on Saturday June 22, 2019 from 11:00 AM to
3:00 PM on Jordan Ray Boulevard.

16
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(13) Councillor Twinney invited residents to the following events on Saturday
June 15, 2019 at Riverwalk Commons:

e Craft Beer Festival from 12:00 PM to 9:00 PM
e York Pride Parade on Main Street at 3:00 PM with celebrations to follow
e Fairy Lake Artisan's and Food Truck Festival

(14) Councillor Simon advised residents of National Access Awareness Week
and the following events:

e Celebrate Accessibility and Abilities at the Newmarket Community Centre &
Newmarket Riverwalk Commons on Saturday June 1, 2019 from 9:00 AM to
12:00 PM; and

e Sports for Everyone at the Magna Centre on Monday June 3, 2019 from
10:00 AM to 2:00 PM.

New Business

None.

Closed Session

Mayor Taylor advised that there was no requirement for a Closed Session.
Confirmatory By-law

Moved by: Councillor Morrison

Seconded by: Councillor Twinney

1. That By-law 2019-39 be enacted.

Carried
Adjournment
Moved by: Councillor Woodhouse
Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis
1. That the meeting be adjourned at 8:56 PM.
Carried

17
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John Taylor, Mayor

Lisa Lyons, Town Clerk
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Newmarket

Date:
Time:
Location:

Members Present:

Members Absent:

Staff Present:
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Town of Newmarket
Minutes

Special Council

Monday, June 17, 2019
8:00 PM

Council Chambers
Municipal Offices

395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Mayor Taylor

Councillor Simon

Councillor Woodhouse

Councillor Twinney

Councillor Morrison

Councillor Kwapis

Councillor Bisanz

Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh
Councillor Broome

I. McDougall, Acting Chief Administrative Officer
E. Armchuk, Commissioner of Corporate Services
P. Noehammer, Commissioner of Development & Infrastructure
Services

K. Saini, Deputy Town Clerk

A. Walkom, Legislative Coordinator

For consideration by Council on June 24, 2019.
The meeting was called to order at 8:37 PM.
Mayor Taylor in the Chair.

1. Additions & Corrections to the Agenda

There were no additions or corrections to the agenda.

2. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
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Councillor Woodhouse declared a conflict in relation to sub-item 5.1 -
Appointments to the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory Committee.
He advised that one of the recommended applicants was a client and that he
would take no part in the discussion of the matter.

Deputations
None.
Reports of Committees and Staff

4.1 Item 2 of the Draft Committee of the Whole Meeting (Closed Session)
Minutes of June 20, 2019

Mayor Taylor advised that the Committee of the Whole had previously
resolved into a Closed Session related to personal matters about an
identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees as per
Section 239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 to discuss appointments to
the Audit Committee and the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory
Committee. He advised the following motions be brought forward:

4.1.1 Appointments to the Audit Committee
Moved by: Councillor Woodhouse
Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

1. That staff be directed to resume recruitment for Audit
Committee members as not enough applications were received
and appointments to the Audit Committee be deferred until
enough applications have been received.

In Favour (7): Mayor Taylor, Councillor Simon, Councillor Woodhouse, Councillor
Twinney, Councillor Morrison, Councillor Kwapis, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (7 to 0)

4.1.2 Appointments to the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory

Committee
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Simon
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1. That the Terms of Reference for the Newmarket Economic
Development Advisory Committee be amended to allow up to
13 citizen members; and,

2. That the following individuals be appointed to the Newmarket
Economic Development Advisory Committee:

e Carin Binder

e Steven Bruno

e Robert Bull

e Marek Dabrowski
e Beric Farmer

e Donna Fevreau

e Pat Horgan

e Brian Johns

e Jessica Rawlley
e Rod Scotland

e Darryl Sills

e Beth Stevenson
e Bri-Ann Stuart (Chamber of Commerce Representative)
e Edmund Yeung

In Favour (6): Mayor Taylor, Councillor Simon, Councillor Twinney, Councillor Morrison,
Councillor Kwapis, and Councillor Bisanz

Carried (6 to 0)

Councillor Woodhouse took no part in the discussion or vote on the
foregoing matter due to a declared conflict.

Closed Session
Mayor Taylor advised that there was no need for a Closed Session.

By-laws
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None.

Confirmatory By-law

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

1. That By-law 2019-40 be enacted.

Adjournment
Moved by: Councillor Twinney

Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

1. That the meeting be adjourned at 8:41 PM.

Carried

Carried

John Taylor, Mayor

Kiran Saini, Deputy Town Clerk
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Town of Newmarket
Minutes

Council Workshop

Tuesday, May 28, 2019
9:00 AM

Council Chambers
Municipal Offices

395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Mayor Taylor

Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh

Councillor Simon (9:06 AM - 10:11 AM)

Councillor Woodhouse

Councillor Twinney

Councillor Morrison

Councillor Kwapis

Councillor Broome

Councillor Bisanz

J. Sharma, Chief Administrative Officer

P. Noehammer, Commissioner of Development & Infrastructure
Services

I. McDougall, Commissioner of Community Services
M. Mayes, Acting Commissioner of Corporate Services
L. Lyons, Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk
J. Grossi, Legislative Coordinator

For consideration by Council on June 14, 2019.
The meeting was called to order at 9:03 AM.
Mayor Taylor in the Chair.

1. Notice
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Mayor Taylor advised that in accordance with the Town's Procedure By-law, no
decisions are to be made but rather this meeting was an opportunity for Council
to have informal discussion regarding various matters.

Additions & Corrections to the Agenda

None.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.
ltems

4.1 Asset Management

The Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure provided an
introduction to the presentation and the Manager of Asset Management.

The Manager of Asset Management provided a presentation to Council
outlining the background of Asset Management and provided a status
update on the Town of Newmarket's Asset Management Plan. The
presentation outlined the asset management business drivers,
implementation plan, and work plan.

The Acting Commissioner of Corporate Services outlined the asset
replacement fund (ARF) trends and the projected funding gap.

Members of Council queried staff regarding ARF, future timelines and the
2020 budget process.

Moved by: Councillor Woodhouse
Seconded by: Councillor Broome

1. That the presentation provided by the Manager of Asset Managment
regarding Asset Management be received.

Carried

Adjournment
Moved by: Councillor Morrison
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

1. That the meeting be adjourned at 10:11 AM.
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Carried

John Taylor, Mayor

Lisa Lyons, Town Clerk
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Town of Newmarket
Minutes

Council Workshop

Monday, June 10, 2019
9:00 AM

Council Chambers
Municipal Offices

395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Mayor Taylor

Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh

Councillor Simon

Councillor Woodhouse

Councillor Twinney

Councillor Morrison

Councillor Kwapis

Councillor Broome

Councillor Bisanz

J. Sharma, Chief Administrative Officer

E. Armchuk, Commissioner of Corporate Services

J. Unger, Acting Commissioner of Development & Infrastructure
Services

I. McDougall, Commissioner of Community Services
L. Lyons, Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk
T. Horton, Planner

A. Walkom, Legislative Coordinator

For consideration by Council on June 24, 2019.
The meeting was called to order at 9:01 AM.
Mayor Taylor in the Chair.

1. Notice
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Mayor Taylor advised that in accordance with the Town's Procedure By-law, no
decisions are to be made but rather this meeting was an opportunity for Council
to have informal discussion regarding various matters.

Additions & Corrections to the Agenda

None.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

ltems

4.1

Residential Parking Review

The Acting Commissioner of Development and Infrastructure Services
provided an introduction to the presentation.

The Planner provided a presentation to Council concerning residential
parking. The presentation provided the background of the issues, the
effects of supply of both on and off street parking, and how the population
trends throughout the Town affect residential parking.

Members of Council discussed various issues related to residential
parking, including options for winter parking, expanded parking
exemptions, and widened driveways for greater residential parking.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

1. That the presentation regarding Residential Parking Review be
received.

Carried

Adjournment

Moved by: Deputy Mayor & Regional

Councillor Vegh

Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the meeting be adjourned at 11:05 AM.
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Carried

John Taylor, Mayor

Lisa Lyons, Town Clerk
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Town of Newmarket
Minutes

Committee of the Whole

Monday, June 17, 2019
10:00 AM

Council Chambers
Municipal Offices

395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Mayor Taylor

Councillor Simon

Councillor Woodhouse

Councillor Twinney

Councillor Morrison

Councillor Kwapis

Councillor Broome (10:04 AM - 2:54 PM)

Councillor Bisanz

Deputy Mayor & Regional Councillor Vegh

J. Sharma, Chief Administrative Officer (10:04 AM - 1:06 PM)
E. Armchuk, Commissioner of Corporate Services

P. Noehammer, Commissioner of Development & Infrastructure
Services

I. McDougall, Commissioner of Community Services, Acting
Chief Administrative Officer (1:06 PM - 8:29 PM)

L. Lyons, Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk

K. Saini, Deputy Town Clerk

R. Prudhomme, Director of Engineering Services

J. Unger, Acting Director of Planning & Building Services

A. Cammaert, Senior Planner, Policy

T. Horton, Planner

E. Bryan, Business Development Specialist

A. Walkom, Legislative Coordinator
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For consideration by Council on June 24, 2019.

The meeting was called to order at 10:04 AM.

The Committee of the Whole recessed at 12:19 PM and reconvened at 12:41 PM.
The Committee of the Whole recessed at 2:54 PM and reconvened at 7:00 PM.
Mayor Taylor in the Chair.

1. Additions & Corrections to the Agenda
The Clerk advised of the following additions to the agenda:

e |tem 3.1: Recognition of National Indigenous Peoples Day (June 21, 2019)
and Land Acknowledgement

e |tem 3.2: Presentation - Protection of Trees on Private Property
e Item 4.3: Deputation by Ahmad El-Farram - Traffic Signage on Wayne Drive

e Item 4.5: Deputation by Catherine Wellesley - Protection of Trees on Private
Property

e Item 4.6: Deputation by Edie Andrews - Protection of Trees on Private
Property

e |tem 4.7: Deputation by John McGovern - Site-Specific Employment Land
Conversion Requests - Protection of Trees on Private Property

e |tem 5.10: Audit and Accountability Fund — Submission of Expression of
Interest to the Province

e |tem 12.1: Presentation related to the Public Hearing Matter: Official Plan
Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment (Stickwood Walker Farm)

The Clerk advised of the following corrections to the agenda:

e Item 5.8: 2019 Development Charges Review staff report was withdrawn and
deferred to the August 26, 2019 Committee of the Whole meeting followed be
a Special Council meeting that same day to adopt new Development Charge

by-laws.
Moved by: Councillor Broome
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

1. That the additions and corrections to the agenda be approved; and,
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2. That the Committee of the Whole suspend the Procedure By-law to permit

more than five deputations.

Carried (2/3 majority)

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

Councillor Morrison declared a conflict related to Item 5.9 Site-Specific
Employment Land Conversion Requests, specifically related to the 20
properties within the Mulock Station Area Secondary Plan. He advised that he
operates as an independent practitioner within a Health Care Clinic that has a
location located within the area.

Councillor Woodhouse declared a conflict in relation to sub-item 11.2 -
Appointments to the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory
Committee. He advised that one of the recommended applicants was a client
and that he would take no part in the discussion of the matter.

Presentations & Recognitions

Mayor Taylor recognized the lives and careers of former Member of Newmarket
Town Council Henry Vanden Bergh and former Member of Provincial Parliament
Julia Munro who represented York-Simcoe. Council observed a moment of
silence in memory of Henry Vanden Bergh and Julia Munro.

3.1

3.2

Recognition of National Indigenous Peoples Day (June 21, 2019) and
Land Acknowledgement

Mayor Taylor advised that June 21st is National Indigenous Peoples Day,
and as such, he acknowledged the land that Newmarket is on and
thanked the first people of the Williams Treaties First Nations and other
indigenous peoples for sharing the land with us. He also acknowledged
the Chippewas of Georgina Island as the closest Indigenous community.

Protection of Trees on Private Property

Note: This item was dealt with under sub-item 5.2. Please see sub-item
5.2 for motion.

Ted Horton, Planner provided a presentation which outlined the Town's
existing policies and by-laws related to trees, the value of trees to Town's
residents and the consultation and public input conducted so far. He the
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provided an outline of the next steps related to the development and
implementation of a tree protection by-law.

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 2018 Annual General Meeting

Note: This item was dealt with under sub-item 3.4. Please see sub-item
3.4 for motion.

Paul Ferguson, President of Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution
Ltd. provided a presentation which outlined the 2018 financial year and the
strategic framework until 2022.

ENVI 2018 Annual General Meeting

Gianni Creta, President of Envi Network provided a presentation
which outlined the 2018 financial year, which was the first year of
operation for Envi.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

1. That the presentations by Paul Ferguson regarding the Newmarket
Hydro Holdings 2018 Annual General Meeting and Gianni Creta
regarding the ENVI 2018 Annual General Meeting be received.

Carried

4. Deputations

4.1

Routes Connecting Communities

Danielle Koren, Executive Director of Routes Connecting Communities
Inc. provided a deputation which outlined the work of the non-profit
organization in providing transportation services throughout the region.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the deputation by Danielle Koren regarding Routes Connecting
Communities be received.
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Carried

Property Water Damage

John Day provided a deputation which outlined the ongoing issues with
water drainage on his property.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

1. That the deputation by John Day regarding Property Water Damage be
received.

Carried

Traffic Signage on Wayne Drive

Ahmad El-Farram provided a deputation regarding the concerns of traffic
signage on Wayne Drive in front of Glen Cedar Public School and
provided an update related to his previous deputation in January 2019.

Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

1. That the deputation regarding Traffic Signage on Wayne Drive be
received and referred to staff.

Carried

Protection of Trees on Private Property

Chris Howie provided a deputation in support of the Protection of Trees on
Private Property staff report. He advised of similar by-laws already in
place in other communities and provided items he believed should be
included in the proposed by-law.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis

Seconded by: Councillor Morrison



4.5

4.6

4.7

49

1. That the deputation by Chris Howie regarding the Protection of Trees
on Private Property be received.

Carried

Protection of Trees on Private Property

Catherine Wellesley provided a deputation in support of the Protection of
Trees on Private Property staff report. She provided information on the
value of trees both to the Town as a whole and to the individual property
owners.

Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the deputation by Catherine Wellesley regarding the Protection of
Trees on Private Property be received.

Carried

Protection of Trees on Private Property

Edie Andrews provided a deputation regarding the property north of the
Mulock Farm and south of the hydro corridor and advised that trees from
the property were to be removed. She presented Council with a petition
against the removal of the trees.

Moved by: Councillor Broome
Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

1. That the deputation by Edie Andrews regarding the Protection of Trees
on Private Property be received.

Carried

Site-Specific Employment Land Conversion Requests
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John McGovern, Vice President, Development, Rice Commercial Group
Limited provided a deputation concerning the Site-Specific Employment
Land Conversion Requests staff report. He requested Council support the
Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion Request submitted to York
Region regarding 1240 Twinney Drive & 1250 Davis Drive.

Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Broome

1. That the deputation by John McGovern regarding Site-Specific
Employment Land Conversion Requests be received.

Carried

Consent Items
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

1. That sub-items 5.3, 5.4, 5.6, 5.10, 5.11, 5.12, 5.13, 5.15, 5.16, 5.17, 5.18 and
5.19 be adopted on consent. See following sub-items 5.1, 5.2, 5.5, 5.7, 5.9
and 5.14 for motions.

Carried

5.1 Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the President
Moved by: Councillor Kwapis
Seconded by: Councillor Twinney

That the Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the President dated
June 4, 2019 regarding the financial statements of Newmarket Hydro
Holdings Inc. (the “Corporation”), the written resolutions of Newmarket —
Tay Power Distribution Ltd. (“NT Power”), the written resolutions of Envi
Networks Ltd. (“Envi”) and appointment of the sole director and auditors
be received and the following recommendations be adopted:

Whereas the Corporation of the Town of Newmarket (the
“Sole Shareholder”) is the sole shareholder of the Corporation; and,
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Whereas the Sole Shareholder by a Shareholder Declaration

dated November 1, 2000 appointed the Mayor as its legal representative
for the purpose of communicating any shareholder consent or approval
required by either the terms of the Shareholder Declaration or the
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”); and,

Whereas the Corporation owns a majority of the common shares of NT
Power and Envi; and,

Whereas pursuant to s.102(2) of the OBCA where a body corporate is the
shareholder of a corporation the corporation shall recognize any individual
properly authorized by the body corporate to represent it at meetings of
shareholders of the corporation; and,

Whereas pursuant to s.104 of the OBCA a written resolution dealing with
all the matters required to be dealt with at a shareholders meeting and
signed by the shareholders entitled to vote at that meeting satisfies all
requirements of the OBCA relating to that meeting of shareholders;

Now therefore be it resolved by the Municipal Council of the Corporation
of the Town of Newmarket as follows:

1. That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative, is
directed to sign the following Corporation Shareholder resolutions:

a. That the Corporation’s financial statements for the financial year
ended December 31, 2018 together with the report of the
Corporation’s auditors, Baker Tilly KDN LLP (“Baker Tilly”),
Chartered Accountants, formerly Collins Barrow, thereon dated
May 14, 2019 be approved and adopted; and,

b. That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
the Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders at such remuneration as may be fixed by the sole
director and the sole director is authorized to fix such remuneration;
and,

c. That Jag Sharma be appointed as the sole director of the
Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders or until his or her successor is elected or appointed,;
and,
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That Jag Sharma, so long as he or she is the sole director of the
Corporation, shall represent the Corporation at meetings of the
shareholders of NT Power and Envi; and,

That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments,
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the
sole director and sole officer of the Corporation to December 31,
2018, as the same are set out or referred to in the resolutions of the
sole director, or in the financial statements of the corporation, are
approved, sanctioned and confirmed; and,

2. That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative, direct
Jag Sharma, the sole director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following NT Power shareholder resolutions in
lieu of an annual meeting:

a.

That the financial statements of NT Power for the financial year
ended December 31, 2018 together with the report of NT Power’s
auditors, Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 30, 2019 be approved and
adopted; and,

That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
NT Power to hold office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders at such remuneration as may be fixed by the directors
and the directors are authorized to fix such remuneration; and,

That J. Taylor, T. Walker, B. Gabel, R. Betts, D. Charleson, C.
Prattas and P. Ferguson are elected directors of NT Power to hold
office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their
successors are elected or appointed; and,

. That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments

elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the
directors and officers of NT Power to December 31, 2018, as the
same are set out or referred to in the resolutions of the board of
directors, the minutes of the meetings of the board of directors or in
the financial statements of NT Power, are approved, sanctioned
and confirmed; and,

. That the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative, direct

Jag Sharma, the sole director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following Envi shareholder resolutions in lieu
of an annual meeting; and,
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a. That the financial statements of Envi for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 together with the report of Envi’s auditors,
Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 18, 2019 be approved and adopted,;
and,

b. That Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
Envi to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at
such remuneration as may be fixed by the directors and the
directors are authorized to fix such remuneration; and,

c. Thatl. Collins, J, Schatz, T. Van Bynen and B. Kwapis are elected
directors of Envi to hold office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders or until their successors are elected or appointed;
and,

d. That all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the
directors and officers of Envi to December 31, 2018, as the same
are set out or referred to in the resolutions of the board of directors,
the minutes of the meetings of the board of directors or in the
financial statements of Envi, are approved, sanctioned and
confirmed.

Carried

Protection of Trees on Private Property

An alternate motion was presented and is noted below in bold.
Moved by: Councillor Kwapis

Seconded by: Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the report entitled Protection of Trees on Private Property dated
June 17, 2019 be received; and,

2. That the presentation regarding Protection of Trees on Private
Property be received; and,

3. That staff be directed to take the proposed approach for internal and
public consultation; and,

4. That following the internal and public consultation, issues identified in
this report, together with comments from the public, and Committee,

10
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be addressed by staff in a comprehensive report to the Committee of
the Whole with a draft by-law; and,

5. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Carried

Asset Management Policy

1. That the report entitled Asset Management Policy dated June 17, 2019
be received; and,

2. That the Asset Management Policy (Appendix A) be approved; and,

3. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Application for Draft Plan of Condominium (19CDMN-2019-001) 955
and 995 Mulock Drive Lorne Park Gardens Inc.

1. That the report entitled Application for Draft Plan of Condominium
(19CDMN-2019-001) dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

2. That approval be given to draft plan of condominium 19CDMN-2019
001 subject to the Schedule of Conditions attached and forming part of
this report; and,

3. That Michael Vani, Weston Consulting, 201 Millway Ave. Suite 19,
Vaughan, ON L4K be notified of this action.

Implications of Bill 108 - More Homes More Choice Act

An alternate motion was presented and is noted below in bold.
Moved by: Councillor Bisanz

Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

1. That the report entitled Implications of Bill 108 — More Homes More
Choices Act dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

11
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2. That the report entitled Implications of Bill 108 — More Homes More
Choices Act dated June 17, 2019 be submitted to the province as
feedback; and,

3. That a copy of the report be sent to the Honourable Christine
Elliott, Deputy Premier and MPP Newmarket-Aurora, and to the
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) for their
consideration; and,

4. That Council call on the province to engage in significant and
meaningful consultation with municipalities prior to the
development of the regulations; and,

5. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Carried

Fire Learning Management System Software
The Joint Council Committee recommends:

1. That Fire Services Report 2019-04 Fire Learning Management System
Software dated 2019-04-18 be received; and,

2. That Council approve Central York Fire Service (CYFS) enter into a
long-term, non-competitive agreement with the current web based Fire
Learning Management System (FLMS) service provider, being
Stillwater Consulting Limited, at a cost of approximately $153,000.00
over a ten (10) year time frame and renewable annually thereafter for
support, maintenance and licence fees based on available approved
budgets.

Youth Engagement, Diversity and Inclusivity, and Consultation on
the Environment

Moved by: Councillor Simon

Seconded by: Councillor Bisanz

12
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1. That the report entitled Youth Engagement, Diversity and Inclusivity,
and Consultation on the Environment dated June 17, 2019 be
received; and,

2. That staff be directed to continue the initiatives related to Youth
Engagement and Diversity and Inclusivity that are outlined in this
report; and,

3. That staff be directed to plan a Climate Change Open House for Fall
2019 and a Spring 2020 e-Waste Collection event as part of a one-
year pilot environmental consultation program and report back in 2020
with a review of this program; and,

4. That staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Carried

2019 Development Charges Review

Note: This item was withdrawn and deferred to the August 26, 2019
Committee of the Whole meeting.

Site-Specific Employment Land Conversion Requests

Mayor Taylor advised that recommendation 2b would be dealt with
separately due to a conflict declared by Councillor Morrison.

An alternate motion was presented and is noted below in bold.
Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

1. That the report entitled Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion
Requests dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

2. That Council support the Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion
Requests submitted to York Region regarding the following properties:

a. 520, 521, 550 & 630 Newpark Boulevard (Weston Consulting)

3. That Council also support the Site-Specific Employment Area
Conversion Request submitted to York Region regarding 1240
Twinney Drive & 1250 Davis Drive (Rice Group) subject to:

13
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a. theinclusion of a purpose-built rental development in the area
identified as ‘Block A’ on Map 15 of Zoning By-law 2010-40;
and,

b. the owner executing an agreement with the Town including a
commitment that any rental building remain rental for a
minimum of 20 years; and,

c. apercentage of the units being made available to Housing
York; and,

4. That the report entitled Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion
Requests dated June 17, 2019 be submitted to York Region as input to
the Municipal Comprehensive Review; and,

5. That Attachment 2 to the report entitled Site-Specific Employment Area
Conversion Requests dated June 17, 2019, be submitted to the
province; and,

6. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Carried

Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Simon

2. That Council support the Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion
Requests submitted to York Region regarding the following properties:

b. 20 properties within the Mulock Station Area Secondary Plan
(Town of Newmarket).

Carried

Councillor Morrison took no part in the discussion or vote on the foregoing
matter due to a declared conflict.

Audit and Accountability Fund — Submission of Expression of
Interest to the Province

14
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1. That the report entitled “Audit and Accountability Fund — Submission of
Expression of Interest to the Province” dated June 17, 2019 be
received; and,

2. That Council directs staff to submit an Expression of Interest to the
Province for funding through the Audit and Accountability Fund by
June 30, 2019; and,

3. That Council supports the Provincial investment in municipalities to
undertake expenditure reviews with the goal of finding service delivery
efficiencies; and,

4. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give
effect to this resolution.

Central York Fire Services Joint Council Committee Meeting Minutes
of March 5, 2019

1. That the Central York Fire Services Joint Council Committee Meeting
Minutes of March 5, 2019 be received.

Elman W. Campbell Museum Board of Management Meeting Minutes
of April 18, 2019

1. That the Elman W. Campbell Museum Board of Management Meeting
Minutes of April 18, 2019 be received.

Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of May 7,
2019

1. That the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of
May 7, 2019 be received.

Item 3.1 of Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
of May 7, 2019

Moved by: Councillor Bisanz

Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

15
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The Strategic Leadership Team/Operational Leadership Team
recommend that the following be referred to staff for review and
implementation:

1. That the Heritage Newmarket Advisory Committee recommend that
the Council of the Town of Newmarket direct staff to investigate a new
plaque, including associated costs to denote the location of the historic
Trading Tree and provide the Town history associated with the Tree.

Carried

Main Street District Business Improvement Area Board of
Management Meeting Minutes of April 17, 2019

1. That the Main Street District Business Improvement Area Board of
Management Meeting Minutes of April 17, 2019 be received.

Newmarket Downtown Development Committee Meeting Minutes of
March 29, 2019

1. That the Newmarket Downtown Development Committee Meeting
Minutes of March 29, 2019 be received.

Newmarket Environmental Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes of
June 20, 2018

1. That the Newmarket Environmental Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes of June 20, 2018 be received.

Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting Minutes of April 17, 2019

1. That the Newmarket Public Library Board Meeting Minutes of April 17,
2019 be received.

Outstanding Matters List

1. That the list of outstanding matters be received.

16
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6. Action Items
None.

7. Reports by Regional Representatives
None.

8. Notices of Motions

8.1 Indigenous Land Recognition

Mayor Taylor provided notice for a motion regarding a plaque at the
Newmarket Town Offices related to Indigenous Land Recognition.

9. Motions
9.1 Single-Use Plastics (Councillor Simon)
Moved by: Councillor Simon
Seconded by: Councillor Kwapis

1. That Council direct staff to bring back a report which outlines the roles
and responsibilities of the Province, the Region and the Town in
relation to recycling and diversion and provides the following:

a. information on what work is currently being done to address the
reduction and eventual elimination of single use plastics; and,

b. clear options for Council to consider to ensure the town is taking
steps within its jurisdiction to reduce and eventually eliminate single
use plastics.

Carried

10. New Business
10.1 Ward 1 Traffic Petitions

Councillor Simon advised that she had received three petitions from Ward
1 residents related to traffic issues.

Moved by: Councillor Simon

17
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Seconded by: Councillor Twinney

1. That the petitions regarding traffic issues in Ward 1 be received and
referred to staff.

Carried

Closed Session
11.1 Land Exchange of Town Land and a Property in Ward 5

11.2 Appointments to Audit Committee and Newmarket Economic
Development Advisory Committee

Moved by: Councillor Broome
Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

1. That the Committee of the Whole resolve into Closed Session to discuss the
following matters:

a. Land Exchange of Town Land and a Property in Ward 5 - A proposed or
pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or local board
as per Section 239(2)(c) of the Municipal Act, 2001

b. Appointments to Audit Committee and Newmarket Economic
Development Advisory Committee - Personal matters about an identifiable
individual, including municipal or local board employees as per Section
239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001

Carried
The Committee of the Whole resolved into Closed Session at 2:31 PM.

The Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) Minutes are recorded under
separate cover.

The Committee of the Whole resumed into Open Session at 2:54 PM.

Councillor Woodhouse took no part in the discussion or vote on the matter
related to the appointments to the Newmarket Economic Development Advisory
Committee due to a declared conflict. He left Council Chambers during
discussion of the item.

18
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Public Hearing Matter (7:00 PM)

The Deputy Clerk welcomed the public to the Committee of the Whole meeting.
She advised that the Planning Act requires the Town to hold at least one public
meeting on any proposed Official Plan Amendment or Zoning By-law
Amendment.

The Deputy Clerk advised that the purpose of the public meeting is to hear from
anyone who has an interest in the Official Plan and Zoning Amendment for the
Stickwood Walker Farm located on 900 Mulock Drive.

The purpose and effect of this amendment is to allow a day nursery and
accessory community uses in addition to the exiting permitted uses on the lands.

She further advised that the Committee of the Whole would not make a decision
regarding the proposed applications at the public meeting, but will refer all written
and verbal comments to Planning Staff to consider and return with a report to a
future Committee of the Whole or Council meeting.

The Deputy Clerk advised that if anyone present wished to be notified of any
subsequent meetings regarding these matters, they may complete the further
request form.

The Deputy Clerk noted that in accordance with the Planning Act, the Local
Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss an appeal to the Tribunal, without holding
a hearing, if the appellant failed to make either oral submissions at the public
meeting or provide written submissions to Council prior to adoption of the
applications.

The Deputy Clerk thanked residents for their participation and interest in the
meeting.

12.1 Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment (900
Mulock Drive / 605 Ferndale Ave - Stickwood Walker Farm)

The Acting Director of Planning provided a presentation which included a
history of the site and the existing farmhouse, an outline of the request for
proposal process and the successful proponent's proposal. The
presentation included an overview of Denison Child Care's proposal such
as intended uses for the property and drawings of the proposed new
buildings.

Nancy Mosey and Telly Papageorge of Denison Child Care provided
additional information on the planned programming and the coordination
with other non-profit organizations in the area.
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Moved by: Councillor Simon
Seconded by: Councillor Twinney

1. That staff be directed to hold a Public Information Centre on the
Stickwood Walker Farm building design and arrange a meeting between
the Ward 1 Councillor and local concerned residents.

Carried

Moved by: Councillor Twinney
Seconded by: Councillor Morrison

2. That the presentation and deputations regarding the Official Plan
Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment for 900 Mulock Drive / 605
Ferndale Ave - Stickwood Walker Farm be received.

Carried

12.1.1 Deputations

e Jim Knight provided a deputation which raised his concerns
regarding the recreational uses for the property, the proposed
community uses at the site, and the site plans for the property.

e James Greenholgh provided a deputation which shared his
concerns related to traffic and parking, including potential safety
issues. He also raised concern with potential use of the
neighbouring playground by the daycare.

¢ Nagi Ahsan provided a deputation which advised of Council of
his concerns with the process of the application including the
notices which had been sent to residents.

e Tanya Mirza provided a deputation which outlined her concerns
with parking and traffic issues that could be caused by the
presence of the daycare.

e Stephen Hunt of 4 Architecture provided a deputation and
advised that his firm has designed the new buildings proposed

20
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Adjournment
Moved by:

Seconded by:

64

for the site. He advised that his firm is responsive to residents'
concerns and is connected with the community.

Gavin Lawrence provided a deputation which outlined his

concerns with the proposal including the potential accessory
uses which are broadly defined.

John Van Dyke provided a deputation which raised his concerns
with the trees on the property, the construction process and the
potential parking issues with the property.

Councillor Kwapis

Councillor Woodhouse

1. That the meeting be adjourned at 8:28 PM.

Carried

John Taylor, Mayor

Lisa Lyons, Town Clerk
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Background ”ﬁ

Newmarket

2004 2007 m

First policy on Woodlot By-law Consideration of York Region

tree replacement adopted need for Forest
during regulation of Management Plan
development removal of trees adopted
applications outside of
development Newmarket Urban
applications Forest Study
completed

Council requests
review of existing
tree policies
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Background ”ﬁ

Newmarket

Phase 1: Public Phase 2: Tree Phase 3. Private
Tree Protection Policy updated tree protection
By-law

Strategic Priorities wummarizes

Environmental Stewardship

Loadling proactive planning and action related to clmate change and other environmental initintives
< Low Impact Design (LID) Leadership

< Alternative Energy (solar; battery)

< Community Energy Plan

< Partnerships/Collaboration

“»Implement Tree Related Policy Frameworks

Ql®©
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Value of Newmarket's Trees ”ﬁ

Newmarket

« Replacement value $364 million

e Store 35,345t of carbon $2.74 million SEEEE

 Remove 40t of air pollution $321,564 / year

* Reduce residential energy use $3,345,533/year

 Manage stormwater runoff $499,950 / year
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Consultation & Public Input ”ﬁ

Newmarket

 Randomly-selected phone survey (Fall 2018)
 HeyNewmarket online consultation
* Reports and information on Town website

* Resident petition
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Consultation & Public Input ”ﬁ

Newmarket

| believe that the presence of trees enhances my
. . 98%
quality of life.

The municipal government should be doing more
e
to protect trees
There is a problem in Newmarket with developers
- %
cutting down trees
| think it would be a good idea for people to need
ssi - L e%
permission to cut down trees on private property.

Home-owners should be allowed to do whatever
- L e
they want to trees on their own property.

There is a problem in Newmarket with
P F 20%

homeowners cutting down trees

QDO




Present Day . ”)k t

« Town goals of expanding and protecting
Newmarket’s tree canopy

* Policy direction reinforces need for a healthy urban
canopy

* Increasing public awareness of the importance of
trees as natural green infrastructure

o Current approach requires improvement
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3-Tiered Approach ”ﬁ

Newmarket

3-TIERED APPROACH




Tier 1: Areas not subject to a ”)
development application Newmarket

« Allow residents to remove trees on private property
provided replanting or compensation is provided

* Respect private property rights by allowing tree
removal

« Ensure commitment to environmental sustainability by
requiring replanting or compensation




Tier 1: Areas not subject to a ”]
development application Newmarket

e Less administration required
e Less discretion / more tree

Option 1: WEWEE]
e Application fee and
compensation (S or replanting)

e More administration required

e More discretion / less tree
Optlon 2: removal and more education

e Application fee and
compensation (S or replanting)

e




Tier 2: Areas subject to a ”)
development application Newmarket

B »

Current policy:
 Encourage tree preservation where possible

 Where not possible, compensation is taken

* No ability to leverage fines or penalties against
developers who do not follow the policy or remove
trees prior to filing the development application to
avoid paying compensation

Implementing a by-law:
 Would set out fines and penalties to enable staff
to properly enforce the Tree Policy




Tier 3: Areas subject to Natural ”)
Heritage Designation Newmarket

« Aim to protect these areas from development and
encourage reforestation

* Protect vulnerable ecological areas, watercourses,
and woodlots

Implementing a by-law:

* Would prohibit tree removal in areas subject to the
Natural Heritage Designation unless approved with
studies during the development process

 Would then require demonstration of necessity of
removals

 Would set fines and penalties to enable proper
enforcement
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Implementation ”ﬁ

Newmarket

By-law
e Education and awareness

« Balancing ecological protection and respecting private
property rights

« Contributes toward Council’'s Strategic Priority of
Environmental Stewardship through tree protection
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Next Steps ”ﬁ

Newmarket

i | G ]
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* Report recommendations

» Feedback from Committee

* Ongoing consultation
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Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.

2018 Annual General Meetlng ‘Wﬁ
2’

O

June 17/, 2019
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2018 in Review

Newmarket — Tay Power Distribution

» Strategic Framework Developed
» Risk based using all-hazards analysis

» Acquisition of Midland Power Ultility

» Electric bus pilot — Davis Drive
* YRT has ordered busses
= NT Power has ordered on-route charger system

» Ameresco Battery Energy Storage
= 4 MW distribution connected storage facility
» Under an Independent System Operator contract
= Achieved commercial operation this year
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2018 in Review

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.
Tay Hydro Inc.

» Developed a business Plan, preliminary pro-
forma financials and financing arrangements for
a community based broadband company

» Launched Envi Networks Ltd.



NT Power

Strategic Framework
All Hazards Analysis

NTPDL.:

Future-Ready
LDC
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Newmarket-Tay — Strategic Framework 2017-2022 ”“”Tz‘%%{g

Mewmarket-Tay Powear Distribution Ltd

Our Vision

| An independent, industry-leading LDC committed to our customers’ changing needs. |

Our Mission

| Earning the trust of our customers by safely and reliably meeting their electricity needs. |

Core Values

Employees are the strength of our company. We demonstrate the following values in everything we do:

» Safety First — our top priority on the job and in the communities we serve.

* Respect - is how we treat each other and our customers.

* Reliable — our customers depend on us to provide electricity and the services they need.
+ Customer-focus — serving our customers is why we exist.

Strategic Imperatives

1. Enhance the company and its governance to meet the changing demand profile
2. Continuously develop our strong and capable team
3. Develop and deliver strategic growth

Key Objectives
Ensure . Continuously Achieve Smart AL an SIEEIT, .
. Empower Deliver on Efficient and Assess Emerging
Leadership Improve Control Across the . . -
. Employees Customer Needs . - Financially Needs in Context
Alignment Operations Distribution System -
Sustainable LDC
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Financial
Highlights

Newmarket — Tay Power Distribution

« Statements reflect the purchase of Midland Power on
Sept. 7, 2018

Purchase price plus acquisition costs (Legal, Consulting)
Cash on hand and debt utilized for the purchase

* Recovery of lost revenue from 2012 to 2018 due to
conservation

« Costs of asset registry development and strategic
planning



Performance
Highlights

Safety First

« Zero lost time injuries
« Fully compliant Public Safety Audit under Ontario Regulation 22/04

Respect

« 88% of customers reported they had a good experience when
contacting the company (National 84%, Ontario 83%)

Reliable

« 92% of customers reported reliability met their expectations
(National 88%, Ontario 88%)

Customer Focus
* 95% of customers reported they are very or fairly satisfied with our
service (National 91%, Ontario 89%)
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2018 Dividends

Newmarket Shareholder:
* Dividend of $1,336,000.00

Tay Shareholder
« Dividend of $101,000.00

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. & Tay
Hydro Inc:
« Dividend of $1,620,000.00

Envi start-up capital



2018
Other Payments

Newmarket Shareholder:

* Promissory Note Interest
$1,205,600.00

* Facility Rent
$275,000.00

Tay Shareholder
* Promissory Note Interest

$95,616.00
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Envi Network
President’s Report — Council AGMs June 2019

*
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Envi Network

NETWORK UPDATE
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Envi Network

- Core Network Equipment
- Primary Points of Presence installed and operational
- Town Operations Centre
-  Upper Canada Mall
- Connectivity to Toronto via diverse connections installed and operational
- 4 Secondary Points of Presence installed and operational
- Fibre Connectivity
- % of ring topology completed (Mulock, Harry Walker, and Davis). Need to complete ring
along Yong Street between Davis and Mulock
- Fibre built out along Harry Walker corridor including the following cross roads:
Nicholson
Gorham
Kerrisdale
Ringwell
- Engineering to complete work along Stellar and Pony, and to gain access to Leslie
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Envi Network

- SIGNED CONTRACTS / CUSTOMERS TO DATE
- 50 Customer Locations signed
- 20 Enterprise Locations
- 30 SMB Locations
- Total Monthly Recurring Charges : $21,000
- Total One Time Charges : $31,700
- Customers Installed to Date

Canadian Mental Gullco International Newmarket Hydro

Health

Chaggares & hvGrid-Tech Pretium GRG

Bonhomme

Completely Managed International Safety Technical Concrete
Solutions

Dynamic Functional New Market Group

Solutions

Toronto Concrete
Solutions

Toronto Automatic
Doors

Town of Newmarket
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Envi Network

- 2018 was the first year of reporting audited financials

- The financials included all costs related to ENVI from 2016, 2017, and 2018

- Much of the costs from 2016 and 2017 were related to consulting and legal to establish ENVI
as an entity

- Baker Tilley (formerly Collins Barrow) were used as the auditor




e

Envi Network

- Financing Activities to date
- Equity financing of $1.92M
- Newmarket Hydro Holdings — 93% shareholder
- Tay Hydro Inc. — 7% shareholder
- Commercial Debt Guarantee (TD Bank) : $1.2M

- Revenue was effectively SO for the year as we were in build mode
- Operating Expenses : $1.04M

- Capital Expenditures to end of 2018 : $S1.15M
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

N : .
4Me Danielle Koren

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Routes Connecting Communities Inc.

s 0 e |

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Email: Date of Meeting:

I June 17, 2019

Is this an item on the Agenda? [ ] Yes @] No Agenda Item No:

[ ] 1 request future notification of meetings (W] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):
Creating awareness of Routes Connecting Communities

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [l Yes [_] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

¢ Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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About Us

* York Region community based not-for-profit ¥ i

* Helping people who are dealing with life
challenges get to where they need to go

* Timely, safe, affordable transportation
e Caring conversation along the way

e Located in Sutton
e Since 1989

SEus]

Y. G
LA et

rdutes

connecting communities



Our Funders

N CHATS

Community & Home
Assistance to Seniors

A

York Region

106

GEORGINA

Ontario ‘7 Fondation
Trillium T Trillium
Foundation \/ de I'Ontario

An agency of the Government of Ontario
Un organisme du gouvernement de I'Ontario
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Our Numbers 2018

o=

®

15,135 7,283
Rides Riders
43 38%
Volunteer Annual
Drivers 5017 2018 Growth
948 27
Ur.nque Bus Trips
Clients

rdutes

connecting communities
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Our Services — Compassionate Transportation

e For people facing

e Social, physical, mental and/or
financial barriers

e To timely, safe and compassionate
transportation.

e \Volunteer transportation program
e Community Vehicle

rdutes

connecting communities
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Our Clients

=

o 1 85.8% Georgina

- 2.8% East Gwillimbury

- 8.4% Newmarket

e - 0.9% Aurora
° | 1.2% Whitchurch — Stouffville
o~ - 0.2%King

0 7 0.7% Markham

PO

rcutes

necting commu
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Our Costs

e Cash rides: based on S0.47/km
* Paid by third party (i.e. ODSP)
* Fee subsidy assistance available

e Fully subsidized rides to Food
Pantries/Banks, Community Meals

rdutes

connecting communities
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Our Destinations

* Ontario Addiction Treatment Centre
e Georgina Community Food Pantry

e Southlake Regional Health Centre
 Maple Hill Baptist Church

e Rose of Sharon

* York Medical Centre

e Canadian Mental Health Centre

* Newmarket Food Pantry

8.5%
7.9%
6.5%
4.9%
3.2%
3.0%
3.0%
2.5%

rdutes

cccccc ting communities
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Our Volunteer Drivers

e Reimbursement for mileage at S0.47
e Flexible hours based on their availability Iz

A

=
- gl
A
o

e Appreciation and support =
e Training opportunities W

-
TTEe——

rdutes

connecting communities
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Our Services — Bus Trips

e Malls

e Ripley’s

e ROM

e St. Lawrence Market
e Orillia Boat cruise

e Canada Blooms

e Blue Mountain

e Christmas Shows

iclites

necting commun

e To reduce social isolation 2
rcutes

connecting communities
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Our Most Needed Support

* Corporations to sponsor rides

* VVolunteer drivers to Food Pantry
once per month

e
I i "
e

8 4 =

\

rcutes

connecting communities
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Questions and Comments

rdutes

connecting communities
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name: -:J'bh‘x/?- 041{

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Is this an item on the Agenda? [ ] Yes IZ] No Agenda Item No:

[] | request future notification of meetings P/ 1 wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take

(if applicable): , o/,
~ fhoPERT Y emt TEK TOAGTE

/
Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [\ Yes [ ] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines: :

¢ Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day; '

o Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If
you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, ¢.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of

Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name:

Ahmad El-Farram

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Glen Cedar Public School - Council Chair

I

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Email: Date of Meeting:
June 17th, 2019
Is this an item on the Agenda? [ ] Yes @] No Agenda Item No:
[ ] 1 request future notification of meetings (W] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):

This is a followup deputation from January 14th, 2019 regarding street safety on Wayne Drive in front
of Glen Cedar Public School. I have been working with town engineer Mark Kryzanowski and
members of the YRDSB on ways to imprpove the safety during pick up and drop off at the school.
Based on Marks recommendation, | will present a community petition in favour of the suggested steet
signage changes we would like to see moving forward.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [l Yes [_] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

¢ Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name: Chris Howie

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Park Avenue and Beechwood residents

“= e -

Davtime Phone No: Home Phone:

Date of Meeting:

June 21st 2019
Is this an item on the Agenda? [H] Yes [ 1No Agenda Item No:
@] | request future notification of meetings (W] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):

Over 50 trees have been removed by Builders without requiring approval or paying compensation due to a known loophole: Builders can
clear cut trees then submit an application; demolition or building, THEN they are asked for a Tree Protection and Preservation Plan

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [l Yes [_] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

¢ Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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Tree Removal and Protection Bylaw in Newmarket

) Petition Closed

This petition had 302 supporters
ﬂ Town of Newmarket and Town of
Aurora: Tree Removal and...
Ed1 Share on Facebook

E1 Send a Facebook message

Send an email to friends

W Tweet to your followers

0 Chris Howie started this petition to Town of Newmarket Council and Staff

& Copy link
Heritage Trees are being clear cut by greedy developers that do

not care about our neighbourhood or the immense value of

mature trees for all of us.
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Alex Sodo - 2 years ago

How is it possible that there are no laws protecting mature trees in
Newmarket'’s residential areas? The environmental benefits to having
mature trees and canopy in growing cities and towns are well documented
but on top of that the beauty and environment they provide are what
make these areas special to the residents and everyone who passes by
them. Developers will fight tooth and nail for their own best interests. As
residents, we have to rely on town council to do this on our behalf. The
guestion is, why aren’t they? If you allow one developer to do this, what
message does that send to other developers? How long will it be until the
landscape is completely changed?
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Catherine Wellesley - 2 years ago

| am both saddened and disgusted at this most recent assault on mature
trees in our neighbourhoods. I've lived on Park Avenue now for a few
years and | feel sick to my stomach every time | hear a chainsaw --
sometimes it's simply tree maintenance, but many other times is tree
removal by one of my neighbours. In the case of this particular property,
it's the sheer volume of destruction that is so shocking and truly evil. |
know a woman who walked these woods as a child and | often tell her that
| am protecting her trees (at least on my property). If these home owners
don't love mature trees, then why move here(?) Absolutely no trees
should be removed without being reviewed and approved by the Town.
And if a tree has to be removed (i.e. disease), then the owner should be
required to replace it.
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Jennifer Douglas
2 years ago

| grew up in the historical district, and these trees are integral to the landscape of the core of the town.
There is enough suburban sprawl on the edges of the town, why aren't the town councillors protecting

the heart of our beautiful community?

Qo

&
1]
-

Lois Fowler

2 years ago
| have lived here 30 years and I'm mad as can be. | wrote the Mayor and asked for this area to be
declared an "area of distinction" to ensure our homes, lots, trees and uniqueness of the area be
preserved to a certain level. | got no where. Let's band together and save our unique neighbourhood.

Report

Q 2 Dort
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Over 50 Trees have been removed by Builders on Park
Avenue, Beechwood, Woodmount, Avenue Road,
Sherwood Court...without requiring an approval!

* Builders know the loophole that | requested to be changed over 3 years ago: prior to an
application; demolition or building, builders can clear cut trees WITHOUT approval or payment
then when the application is submitted they are ask for a Tree Preservation Plan

e 181 Beechwood: | warned Council and Planning in November 2016 of the career Builder that
bought the Bc()jyd property then 12 trees including the Largest Sugar Maple in the neighbourhood
were removed.

* Planning then accepted cash for the removal of 8 more trees including the oldest Tamarac/Larch,
oldest Cheery and 2 more 100+ year old Sugar Maples which enable the Builder to max out the
lot coverage of the house being built. How much was paid? Trees should be planted NOT cash!

. Eov?v many more trees are going to be removed for the 5400 sq ft proposed house on the West
ot:

e How many trees are coming down at 258 Park Avenue? How much cash is Planning ask for?

e Planning Dept was asked to review each application for this area as a whole not as a Lot however
they continue to accept cash at the expense of the Heritage Trees that make up this Historic
neighbourhood!
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Quality of trees — where are the Oaks, Sugar Maples,
Beech? Poor quality outside of Heritage area and Town
olanted trees; Cherry/Ash...are not what is needed
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ree canopy coverage does not take into consideration
that many trees have structural issues and/or are
diseased without younger trees to replace them

Many older trees have
Structural issues and may
be lost due to wind/ice

Beech scale and bark disease
are wiping out Beeches

Cytospora fungus canker is
damaging Sugar Maples
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Call before you cut!

Tree Preservation By-law in effect.
Markham enacted its Tree Preservation By-law - regulating the destruction or injury of trees - for all properties on June 24, 2008. The by-law is effective immediately.

The Tree Preservation By-law was adopted by Council to support a greener community and a healthier environment. It exists to preserve significant trees on all properties within the City and to sustain Markham's u

Call before you cut! - Permit required

Property owners must apply for a permit before injuring or destroying any tree in Markham with a trunk diameter of 20 centimetres (about 8 inches) or more, measured at 1.37 metres (about 54 inches) abave the
ground at the base of the tree.

Call before you cut! You need a permit before cutting a tree with a diameter of 20 c¢cm (8 inches) or more measured at 1.37 metres (54 inches) above the ground. Anyﬂne contravening the Tree Preservation By—
law and found guilty of an offence will be subject to penalties.
Permit Process
Note: This process applies to both permit applications and bylaw exemption requests.
Submit a Tree Permit Application using one of the following methods:

Online Tree Permit Application or fill out the Tree Permit Application Form [PDF] and submit completed application in person to the Contact Centre, Unionville Entrance at the Markham Civic
Centre, 101 Town Centre Boulevard.

If your tree is exempt, no permit fee is required. A written confirmation — a permit — will be issued by Markham where a permit is applicable, fees may apply.
Applications can take up to 30 days to process.

Following the review of a permit application, the City may determine the removal of the tree does not require a permit and will refund any fees paid or confirm that a site inspection is required.

e Construction Related Tree Permit Application Process
s Standard Tree Permit Application Process
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Private Tree Protection Bylaw Approval

On May 24, 2016 the Town of Aurora Council approved a revised by-law
regarding the destruction of trees on private property and enacted
Bylaw Number 5850-16. The new bylaw is called the "Private Tree
Protection Bylaw.

The purpose of this bylaw is to regulate the cutting and injuring of trees
within the Town of Aurora. It also helps to preserve the very valuable
urban tree canopy now estimated to cover 28 per cent of the Town's
overall land which is considerably more coverage than many other
Greater Toronto Area (GTA) Municipalities.
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e Newmarket has the lowest Tree coverage, lowest population of Large
Trees and the only Town in the GTA without a Tree Removal Bylaw

e Severe lack of quality trees 40-75 years old to replace the Heritage
trees that are being destroyed and are dying off

Table 9: Tree density, carbon storage and annual carbon sequestration by urban forests in Canadian cities that have
completed an i-Tree Eco analysis.

Newmarket, ON 76.5 9.1 0.4
Aurora, ON 395.5 20.8 0.8
Richmond Hill, ON 250.9 16.2 0.7
Vaughan, ON 182.6 13.1 0.5
Markham, ON 148.3 10.8 0.4
Pickering, ON 354.4 221 0.9
Oakville, ON 192.9 13.4 0.6
London, ON 185.5 15.3 0.5
Toronto, ON 160.4 17.4 0.7

Brampton, ON 134.3 6.5 0.3
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET
URBAN FOREST STUDY

Technical Report
March, 2016

Recommendation 8: Evaluate and develop strategic steps to protect and increase the proportion of
large, mature trees in the urban forest. This can be achieved using a range of tools including Official
Plan policy, by-law enforcement and public education. Where tree preservation cannot be achieved,
Official Plan policy can be considered that will require compensation for the loss of mature trees and
associated ecosystem services.

Recommendation 9: Develop municipal guidelines and regulations for sustainable streetscape and
subdivision design that ensure adequate soil quality and quantity for tree establishment and
eliminate conflict between natural and grey infrastructure.
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Recommendations

w

O 0N O Uk

Finally get a Tree Removal bylaw in place with hefty fines for any removal without a Permit.
Reduce Minimum caliper size to protect as many young trees as possible

Planning to consider Heritage area as exactly that vs a Lot: 185 Beechwood — 8 Heritage Trees could
have been saved by moving the house forward and telling the career Builder that he would have to
build a house less than the 35% Lot coverage.

Stop the practice of Planning accepting cash and use the cash to plant trees!
Establish a Permit Fee that fund trees being planted (possibly on Private land).
Start planting Larger trees that add more value: hardwood Maples, Oaks...
Start planting better quality trees on Town property.

Tax Rebate for residents that plant trees on their own property.

Inventory of Heritage Trees should have been done already. Trees are a critical asset however there
is no care: pruning, fertilizing, aerating

Town Arborist should be able to enforce the Tree Preservation Plan and assess corrective
treatments: aerating, fertilizing...
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name: Catherine Wellesley

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Date of Meeting:
June 17, 2019

Is this an item on the Agenda? [l Yes [ INo Agenda Item No:3.2 Protection of Trees

[ | request future notification of meetings [ | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):
| would like to speak in support of the 'Protection of Trees on Private Property' staff report. | will
encourage Council to accept the recommendations of this report and ask them to proceed with the
process for a bylaw.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [_] Yes [l No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

e Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, ¢.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

Name:

Edie Andrews

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

concerned residents on Jordanray Blvd.

- T

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Email: Date of Meeting:
I June 17 2019

Is this an item on the Agenda? [ ] Yes @] No Agenda Item No:

[ ] 1 request future notification of meetings (W] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):

Late Friday afternoon, my neighbours and | on Jordanray Blvd. got a letter from the Town, that some of the trees on the west side of Yonge St. north of Mulock Farm
and south of the Hydro corridor, directly behind our property would be cut down, beginning this week,by the developer who owns it. We have concerns that we
urgently want to share with council today. SEE ATTACHED MAP

we are asking the Mayor and Council today to use their powers of persuasion to stop Criterion from cutting down any trees at this time for the following reasons:

« Protect the nests of birds and animals on the property

* Keep a green buffer between our back yards and the noise, dust ,pollution of the Viva rapidway construction. Let us enjoy our back yards this summer.

« Keep the property from becoming another empty lot and eyesore on Yonge St.

We have a petition to present to The Mayor and Council to seriously look at acquiring the property and to make the parcel part of the iconic Mulock farm
development linking it to the hydro corridor. In the towns’ own words “the parks and open space strategy for the Urban Centres supports connectivity with the
existing parks and open space system....... and the recognition of the potential for ... Hazard Lands as contributing to open space opportunities” and the Mulock
Farm is a strategic priority for the town and should be the best is can be for all residents of Newmarket.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [_] Yes [_] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

¢ Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211

Fax 905-953-5100
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Deputation and Further Notice Request Form

Please complete this form to speak at a meeting of Town Council or Committee of the Whole or to receive
further notification regarding an item on the agenda. If filling out by hand please print clearly.

Please email to clerks@newmarket.ca, fax to 905-953-5100 or mail or drop off at Legislative Services
Department, Town of Newmarket Municipal Offices, 395 Mulock Drive, PO Box 328, STN Main, L3Y 4X7

N :
4Me John McGovern

Organization / Group/ Business represented:

Rice Group

N 0

Daytime Phone No: Home Phone:

Email: Date of Meeting:

June 17, 2019

Is this an item on the Agenda? [H] Yes [ ] No Agenda Item No:5.9.3

@] | request future notification of meetings (W] | wish to address Council / Committee

Describe in detail the reason for the deputation and what action you will be asking Council/Committee to take
(if applicable):

To speak against staff recommendation of refusal and ask Committee to approve conversion based
on information provided. Thank you.

Do you wish to provide a written or electronic communication or background information [l Yes [_] No
Please submit all materials at least 5 days before the meeting.

Deputation Guidelines:

o Deputations related to items on the agenda can be accommodated up to and including the meeting
day;

¢ Deputations related to items not on the agenda may be scheduled within sixty (60) days of receipt
of this form;

o Deputations will not be heard on a matter decided upon by Council until ninety (90) days have
passed from the date of the matter's disposition by Council;

o Deputations are limited to 5 minutes.

Be advised that all Council and Committee of the Whole meetings are audio-video recorded and live streamed online. If

you make a presentation to Council or Committee of the Whole, your presentation becomes part of the public record and
you will be listed as a presenter in the minutes of the meeting. We post our minutes online, so the listing of your name in
connection with the agenda item may be indexed by search engines like Google.

Personal information on this form will be used for the purposes of sending correspondence relating to matters before
Council. Your name, address, comments, and any other personal information, is collected and maintained for the purpose
of creating a record that is available to the general public in a hard copy format and on the internet in an electronic format
pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.M.56, as
amended. Questions about this collection should be directed to the Director of Legislative Services/Town Clerk, Town of
Newmarket, 395 Mulock Drive, P.O. Box 328, STN Main, Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7; Telephone 905 895-5193 Ext. 2211
Fax 905-953-5100
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RICE
GROUP

June 12, 2019

Town of Newmarket,
395 Mulock Drive
Newmarket, ON L3Y 4X7

Attention: Jason Unger, Acting Director of Planning
RE: Site-Specific Employment Area Conversion Requests Staff Report to Council

Report Number: 2019-64 Meeting Date June 17, 2019
1240 Twinney Drive & 1250 Davis Drive

Mr. Unger,

| respectfully ask you to reconsider the Staff Recommendation regarding the addition of residential
uses as detailed in the above captioned Staff Report for the following reasons.

1. Seeking residential permissions is not driven by a desire to sell townhouses or condominiums
but to build, own and provide rental accommodation to assist the Town and the Region with
the current deficit of affordable housing options.

2. In your Comments section on page 251 you state “ The lands are currently being developed for
these non-employment uses...” | have attached the current Phase 1 Site Plan { A100) for
reference and you will see the mix of uses includes commercial athletic centre, retail stores,
service commercial, restaurants and drive through restaurants. In my opinion they are
improperly characterized as non-employment as they are all employment uses and these
permitted uses were embedded in the approved Zoning Bylaw without the need for an Official
Plan Amendment.

3. You will also note an open area marked Phase 1A and as the Mayor, members of Council, and
Economic Development staff are aware this is the area we have been actively soliciting a hotel
use for years. Those efforts have been unsuccessful for a number of reasons and it is in this
specific area we would propose our rental accommodation, and above any commercial first
floor activities where justified.

4. Also, this location would not impose a compatibility concern for abutting lands as it is
completely surrounded by our own property and is adjacent to the zoned portion of the site
that allows Major Retail ( see attached Zoning Map ).

5. We believe the nature of this site would benefit from people living in the immediate area and
would contribute to the success of the businesses there and the Commercial Centre itself over
the long term.
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6. You correctly note that this is in Major Transit Station Area ( MTSA 56) as it is adjacent to a BRT
station. What we are proposing is consistent with A Place to Grow Act as follows:
a. 2.2.4 Transit Corridors and Station Areas,
3. Major transit station areas on priority transit corridors or subway lines will be
planned for a minimum density target of:
b.160 residents and jobs combined per hectare for those that are served by light
rail transit or bus rapid transit; or
b. | have added emphasis to “will be planned” and “160 residents and jobs combined”. We
believe the addition of residential permissions will assist in achieving this requirement.
7. And finally, at the end of the captioned report you request the MMAH to identify the
employment lands you feel are Provincially Significant in Newmarket. By specifically excluding
our lands (outlined in blue) and in accordance with the new A Place to Grow Act, the Council of
the Town of Newmarket has the decision making power to convert these lands as they see fit.

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

ohh McGovern
i¢e President, Development

Cc: Jag Sharma, CAO

Attachment 1: Site Plan A100
Attachment 2: Zoning Map
Attachment 2: MTSA Area 56 map

Attachment 4: Newmarket PSEZ mapping
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Exception Zoning Map By-Law Reference File Reference
109 EM-109 15 2012-20 D14-NP-1108
i)  Location: Southeast corner of Davis Drive and Harry Walker Parkway South

i) Legal Description: 1250 Davis Drive & 1240 Twinney Drive, Town of Newmarket

iii) Uses: In addition to those uses already permitted in the EM zone, the following uses shall also be
permitted:
Block A and B- Retail Store, Light Equipment Sales and Rental, sole medical practitioner and
accessory outdoor display and sales.
Block B - a Large Format Retail Store

iv) For the purposes of this by-law a Large Format Retail Store shall be defined as follows:
Means a premises in which goods and merchandise are offered or kept for retail sale or rental to the
public and shall include a Retail Warehouse Store.

V) Notwithstanding any other provision of the by-law to the contrary, the following provisions shall

apply to the lands zoned EM-109 and shown on schedule ‘X’ attached hereto:

f) A Large Format Retail Store shall not have a Gross floor area greater than 12,541 m2 and be
limited to one Large Format Retail Store on the lands subject to this by-law.

g) A parking requirement of 1 space per 20m2 of Gross floor area shall be required for a Large
Format Retail Store.

h) stand alone retail uses shall not have a Gross floor area greater than 3,716 m2 per premises.
i) the maximum permitted Gross floor area for all stand alone retail uses is 8,350 square metres
j) A hotel shall be permitted to have a maximum height of 6 storeys (18m)

k) A minimum Front Yard building setback (Davis Drive) of 3.0m shall be required.

) A landscape buffer having a minimum width of 3.0m shall be provided along Davis Drive.

m) A loading space shall be permitted to have a minimum length of 9.0m.

n) Where the lands subject to this by-law abut lands under the jurisdiction of the Ministry of
Transportation, a minimum setback of 14m shall be required for any structure, utilities, fire
routes and required parking.

Town of Newmarket Zoning By-Law 2010-40 Consolidated November 2018 155




MTSA 56

Highway 404 BRT Station 149

On Davis BRT Corridor
Along Davis Drive at Highway 404, Newmarket

¢ P TOWNIGE
e e,
x:swlgumeunv

| B+ i P
. PR Gl
X -;'l ; '. ‘l
- MTSA(sS gl
5 w . |
DavisDriv

a5 F E |D1.|'.:_|D.'-' o
iy A ; e ~
) : : EWMARKH;T TOWNIOF,

WHITEHURCH-STOUFFVILLE

1
I
- !, .

T §
b e
N e
- é k|
e ' El
& X - .." - 4 e i— /
L) I-1 i e | c 3 L
--—‘—-'---- _-. Wy T }.\ / '}"?:_"‘_""'
& e N ’
g 1 { >
“ -t
B! ~ -
f ¢ s 0
stackhouse Road a4 1
Legend
Major Transit Station Priority Transit Commidors  Base Map Information Highway 404
Required BRT === BRT s Local Municipal Boundary BRT Station
. 1 s00m Radius Gross Area:
Draft MTSA Boundary 3951 ha

I = ~djacent Draft MTSA Boundary



)

DAVIS DR

_EORHAN AVE

Town of Newmarket
Additional

it | | Provincially Significant

GORHAM ST o Employment Zone

Additional
Provincially Significant
Employment Zone

Road
Property Line

@

Newmarket

=== Municipal Boundary

Designed & praduced by Information Technology — GIS
Sources: Land Parcel Boundaries - @ Teranet ?r:’c. and its suppliers. All rights reserved. NOT A
| 15 PLAN OF SURVEY. 2019: Roads, Municipal Boundary - Data, Analytics and Visualization
3 P | Services Branch. Corporate Services @ The Regional Municipality of York. 2019; All other data -
A= io MULOCK DR | € Town of Newmarket, 2019, DISCLAIMER: This mapping is based on the POLARIS parcel
= — fabric product compiled using Land Registry System records and recent surveys and control
points where available. This mapping is a representation of the earth’s surface and provides
sstimates of area and distance. While every effort has been made to accurately depict the
|information. data/mapping emors may exist. This mag has been produced for ilustratve

rinted: 2019-02-18.

purposes only. It is not a substitute for a legal survey.



jmcgovern
Line

jmcgovern
Line

jmcgovern
Line

jmcgovern
Line

jmcgovern
Line

jmcgovern
Line


151



152

590 Steven Court, Newmarket, Ontario L3Y 622
Tel: [905] 895-2309
NEWMARKET Fax:  [905] 895-8931

Email: nmhydro@nmhydro.ca

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.

June 4, 2019
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.
Report of the President
TO: Town of Newmarket Committee of the Whole

SUBJECT: Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 2018 Annual General Meeting

ORIGIN: President, Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

THAT the Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Report of the President dated
June 4, 2019 regarding the financial statements of Newmarket Hydro
Holdings Inc. (the “Corporation”), the written resolutions of Newmarket —
Tay Power Distribution Ltd. (“NT Power”), the written resolutions of Envi
Networks Ltd. (“Envi”’) and appointment of the sole director and auditors
be received and the following recommendations be adopted:

WHEREAS the Corporation of the Town of Newmarket (the “Sole
Shareholder”) is the sole shareholder of the Corporation;

AND WHEREAS the Sole Shareholder by a Shareholder Declaration dated
November 1, 2000 appointed the Mayor as its legal representative for the
purpose of communicating any shareholder consent or approval required
by either the terms of the Shareholder Declaration or the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) (the “OBCA”);

AND WHEREAS the Corporation owns a majority of the common shares of
NT Power and Envi;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to s.102(2) of the OBCA where a body corporate
is the shareholder of a corporation the corporation shall recognize any
individual properly authorized by the body corporate to represent it at
meetings of shareholders of the corporation;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to s.104 of the OBCA a written resolution dealing
with all the matters required to be dealt with at a shareholders meeting and
signed by the shareholders entitled to vote at that meeting satisfies all
requirements of the OBCA relating to that meeting of shareholders;
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NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Municipal Council of the
Corporation of the Town of Newmarket as follows:

1. THAT the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative, is
directed to sign the following Corporation Shareholder resolutions:

a. THAT the Corporation’s financial statements for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 together with the report of the Corporation’s auditors,
Baker Tilly KDN LLP (“Baker Tilly”), Chartered Accountants, formerly Collins
Barrow, thereon dated May 14, 2019 be approved and adopted.

b. THAT Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of the
Corporation to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at
such remuneration as may be fixed by the sole director and the sole director
is authorized to fix such remuneration.

c. THAT Jag Sharma be appointed as the sole director of the Corporation to
hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until his or her
successor is elected or appointed.

d. THAT Jag Sharma, so long as he or she is the sole director of the
Corporation, shall represent the Corporation at meetings of the shareholders
of NT Power and Envi;

e. AND THAT all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the sole director
and sole officer of the Corporation to December 31, 2018, as the same are
set out or referred to in the resolutions of the sole director, or in the financial
statements of the corporation, are approved, sanctioned and confirmed.

2. AND THAT the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative,
direct Jag Sharma, the sole director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following NT Power shareholder resolutions in lieu
of an annual meeting:

a. THAT the financial statements of NT Power for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 together with the report of NT Power’s auditors,
Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 30, 2019 be approved and adopted.

b. THAT Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of

NT Power to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at such
remuneration as may be fixed by the directors and the directors are
authorized to fix such remuneration.
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c. THAT J. Taylor, T. Walker, B. Gabel, R. Betts, D. Charleson, C. Prattas
and P. Ferguson are elected directors of NT Power to hold office until the next
annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are elected or
appointed.

d. AND THAT all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the directors and
officers of NT Power to December 31, 2018, as the same are set out or
referred to in the resolutions of the board of directors, the minutes of the
meetings of the board of directors or in the financial statements of NT Power,
are approved, sanctioned and confirmed.

3. AND THAT the Mayor, as the Sole Shareholder’s legal representative,
direct Jag Sharma, the sole director and legal representative of the
Corporation, to sign the following Envi shareholder resolutions in lieu of an
annual meeting:

a. THAT the financial statements of Envi for the financial year ended
December 31, 2018 together with the report of Envi’s auditors,
Baker Tilly, thereon dated April 18, 2019 be approved and adopted.

b. THAT Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, be appointed auditors of
Envi to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders at such
remuneration as may be fixed by the directors and the directors are
authorized to fix such remuneration.

c. THAT 1. Collins, J, Schatz, T. Van Bynen and B. Kwapis are elected
directors of Envi to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders
or until their successors are elected or appointed.

d. AND THAT all acts, contracts, bylaws, proceedings, appointments
elections and payments, enacted, made, done and taken by the directors and
officers of Envi to December 31, 2018, as the same are set out or referred to
in the resolutions of the board of directors, the minutes of the meetings of the
board of directors or in the financial statements of Envi, are approved,
sanctioned and confirmed.

Background

Financial Statements of the Corporation

The audited financial statements for the Corporation, NT Power and Envi are
attached. The financial statements of the Corporation and NT Power are in
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International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) format. The CFO of NT
Power will answer any questions regarding them. The Envi financial statements
are also in IFRS format. The President and CEO of Envi will answer any
guestions regarding them.

Appointment of Auditors

The Board of Directors of NT Power (the “Board”) notes that, with the
implementation of IFRS over the next few years and the acquisition of Midland
Power Utility Corporation, the additional workload that would be involved with a
request for proposal for audit services and the possible change in audit firms will
hamper these initiatives. The Board therefore recommends the re-appointment
of the current auditors, Baker Tilly for the period January 1 to December 31, 2019
for the Corporation and NT Power. The Board of Directors of Envi concurs with
this recommendation for Envi as well as they are still a new company in start-up
mode and would similarly be hampered by a change in audit firms.

Election of Directors for the Corporation

Esther Armchuk is currently the sole director of the Corporation. With the recent
appointment of Jag Sharma as the CAO of the Town of Newmarket, the
Shareholder has requested that he be appointed to this position.

Election of Directors — NT Power

The existing directors of NT Power are:

J. Taylor, Mayor of the Town of Newmarket
T. Walker, Mayor of the Township of Tay
R. Betts, Independent Director

B. Gabel, Independent Director

C. Prattas, Independent Director

D. Charleson, Independent Director
P.Ferguson, President of NT Power

The appointments of The Mayor of Newmarket, the Mayor of Tay and the
President of NT Power are de facto. In response to a request by the Township of
Tay, The Corporation of the Town of Newmarket, The Corporation of the
Township of Tay, Tay Hydro Inc. Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. and NT Power
have agreed to amend the Shareholders Agreement between them to allow for
the Mayors to designate a sitting member of Council in their place on the board
of directors. At present, both the Mayor of Newmarket and the Mayor of Tay have
chosen to sit on the board of directors. The independent directors being Betts,
Prattas, Charleson and Gabel are eligible for re-appointment and are recommend
by the Board of Directors of NT Power.
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Election of Directors — Envi

The existing directors of Envi are:

l. Collins, Independent Director

J. Schatz, Independent Director

T. Van Bynen, Independent Director

B. Kwapis, Ward 5 Councillor, Town of Newmarket

In accordance with the Envi Shareholders Agreement, the Town of Newmarket is
to appoint one sitting member of Council to the board of Envi. Ward 5 Councillor
B. Kwapis was appointed to the inaugural board in January, 2019 and no change
to this appointment has been requested. The independent directors being
Collins, Schatz and Van Bynen are eligible for re-appointment and are
recommend by the Board of Directors of Envi.

[Original signed by]
P.D. Ferguson P.Eng.

President,
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc.
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Baker Tilly KDN LLP
272 Charlotte Street

Peterborough, ON
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Canada K9J 2v4

To the Shareholder of

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. MES SR aRAE

F: 705.742.9775
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

www.bakertilly.ca
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc., which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and accumulated other comprehensive income, income and comprehensive income and
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the company as at December 31, 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 were
audited by Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP, which became Baker Tilly KDN LLP effective January 10, 2019.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 3 and note 28 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the
purchase of Midland Power Utility Company effective September 7, 2018.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company'’s financial reporting process.

ASSURANCE - TAX + ADVISORY

Baker Tilly KDN LLP is a member of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative, which is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Limited.
All members of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative and Baker Tilly International Limited are separate and independent legal entities.

Peterborough Courtice Lindsay Cobourg
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT, continued

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Baker Tilly KDN LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Peterborough, Ontario
May 14, 2019
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2018 2017
$ $
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash (note 29) - 10,711,573
Short term investment (note 5) 25,084 -
Accounts receivable (note 6) 17,283,094 13,274,599
Unbilled revenue 11,856,298 9,221,039
Inventories 882,196 858,956
Prepaid expenses 460,089 281,898
Income taxes receivable 1,483,659 682,111
31,990,420 35,030,176
Other assets
Investments (note 7) 100 -
Property, plant and equipment (note 8) 108,523,738 96,740,058
Intangible assets (note 9) 7,696,753 997,723
Goodwill (note 10) 6,864,284 -
Deferred income taxes (note 11) 844,922 2,466,971
Refundable deposit - 1,000,000
123,929,797 101,204,752
155,920,217 136,234,928
Regulatory deferral account debit balances (note 12) 10,985,630 2,894 845
166,905847 139,129,773
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2018 2017
$ $
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness (note 29) 2,037,029 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 13) 15,613,407 12,833,230
Bank loan (note 14) 1,200,000 -
Due to shareholder - 87,412
Current portion of long-term debt (note 15) 3,232,267 657,006
Current portion of deposits held (note 18) 705,212 498,000
22,787,915 14,075,648
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt (note 15) 26,072,837 5,076,065
Interest rate swaps (note 16) 1,296,751 -
Subordinate debt (note 17) 23,742,821 23,742,821
Contributed capital (note 19) 33,141,061 31,358,906
Deferred income taxes (note 11) 1,498,793 -
Deposits held (note 18) 2,426,324 3,343,159
Employee future benefits (note 20) 1,157,004 1,047,729
89,335,591 64,568,680
EQUITY
Equity of the owners of the parent
Share capital (note 22) 29,609,342 29,609,342
Retained earnings 18,148,244 18,565,713
Accumulated other comprehensive income 30,665 30,665
47,788,251 48,205,720
Non-controlling interest (note 23) 3,381,444 3,397,609
51,169,695 51,603,329
163,293,201 130,247,657
Regulatory deferral account credit balances (note 12) 3,612,646 8,882,116
166,905,847 139,129,773

Subsequent event (note 36)

Approved on behalf of the Board

Director

Director
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Accumulated
other Non-
Retained comprehensive controlling
Share capital earnings income Total interest Total equity
$ $ $ $ $ $
Balance, December 31, 2016 29,609,342 17,639,031 131,010 47,379,383 3,350,906 50,730,289
Net income for the year - 2,255,129 - 2,255,129 162,809 2,417,938
Other comprehensive loss - - (100,345) (100,345) (7,553) (107,898)
Dividends paid - (1,336,000) - (1,336,000) (101,000) (1,437,000)
Balance, December 31, 2017 29,609,342 18,558,160 30,665 48,198,167 3,405,162 51,603,329
Net income for the year - 926,084 - 926,084 56,282 982,366
Investment in Envi Networks Ltd. - - - - 134,400 134,400
Dividends paid - (1,336,000) - (1,336,000) (214,400) (1,550,400)
Balance, December 31, 2018 29,609,342 18,148,244 30,665 47,788,251 3,381,444 51,169,695
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2018 2017
3 3
Revenue
Distribution revenue 21,616,917 15,108,008
Cost of power revenue 80,224,152 74,225 796
101,841,069 89,333,804
Cost of power purchased 85,026,423 75,934,541
Gross profit 16,814,646 13,399,263
Other income (note 24) 2,225,644 1,219,972
Gross income from operations 19,040,290 14,619,235
Expenses
Amortization 6,151,855 3,598,756
Operating expenses (note 25) 12,510,889 9,404,893
Loss on interest rate swap (note 16) 1,296,751 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (469,800) (23,480)
19,489,695 12,980,169
Income (loss) before undernoted items and income taxes (449,405) 1,639,066
Finance costs (income)
Finance income (note 26) (412,214) (322,760)
Finance costs (note 26) 1,737,568 1,481,411
1,325,354 1,158,651
Income (loss) before income taxes and net movement on regulatory
accounts, net of deferred tax (1,774,759) 480,415
Provision for income taxes (note 11)
Current 908,522 845,889
Deferred 3,120,842 473,987
4,029,364 1,319,876
Loss before net movement on regulatory accounts, net of deferred
tax (5,804,123) (839,461)
Net movement on regulatory accounts, net of deferred tax 6,786,489 3,257,399
Net income for the year 982,366 2,417,938
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 926,084 2,255,129
Non-controlling interests 56,282 162,809
982,366 2,417,938




165

NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2018

@ bakertilly

2018 2017
$ $
Net income for the year 982,366 2,417,938
Comprehensive loss
Actuarial loss, not reclassified to net income - (146,800)
Actuarial loss related deferred income tax not reclassified to net
income - 38,902
Comprehensive loss - (107,898)
Net income and comprehensive income for the year 982,366 2,310,040
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 926,084 2,154 784
Non-controlling interests 56,282 155,256
982,366 2,310,040
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2018 2017
$ $
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
Operating activities
Net income for the year 982,366 2,417,938
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 5,968,367 3,678,454
Amortization of intangible asset 582,770 175,389
Deferred income taxes 3,120,842 473,987
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 483,939 (23,480)
Change in employee future benefits 109,275 24,421
Current income tax 908,522 845,889
Net finance costs 1,325,354 1,158,652
Recognition of contributed capital (1,229,868) (707,028)
Loss on interest rate swap 1,296,751 -
13,548,318 8,044,222
Change in non-cash working capital items (note 27) (6,029,089) 2,373,866
7,619,229 10,418,088
Investing activities
Purchase of investments (100) -
Purchase of short-term investments investments (25,084) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (18,275,985) (5,454,494)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 23,480
Purchase of goodwill (6,864,284) -
Refundable deposit 1,000,000 (1,000,000)
Change in regulatory deferral accounts (13,360,255) (391,411)
Proceeds of contributed capital 3,012,023 1,405,507
Purchase of intangible assets (7,241,800) (737,353)
(41,755,485) (6,154,271)
Financing activities
Advances to parent company (87,412) -
Repayment of long-term debt (747,843) (641,183)
Proceeds of long-term debt 24,319,877 -
Interest paid (1,737,568) (1,481,412)
Increase in bank indebtedness 1,200,000 -
Dividends paid (1,459,400) (1,437,000)
21,487 654 (3,559,595)
Increase (decrease) in cash (12,748,602) 704,222
Cash - beginning of year 10,711,573 10,007,351
Cash (bank indebtedness) - end of year (2,037,029) 10,711,573
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. ("the Company") was incorporated April 10, 2000 under the
Business Corporations Act of the Province of Ontario. The Company commenced operations on
November 1, 2000. Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. is wholly-owned by the Town of Newmarket.
The address of its registered office and its principal place of business is 590 Steven Ct,
Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z2.

The principal activity of the Company is to distribute electricity to the residents and businesses in
the Town of Newmarket, the Town of Midland and the Township of Tay under licence issued by
the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The Company is regulated by the OEB and adjustments to its
distribution rates require OEB approval.

The Company also offers high speed internet to the Newmarket community by providing its
customers with the necessary infrastructure and equipment to utilize the service. The Company is
looking to expand its operations into other surrounding local areas. The Company is regulated by
the Canadian Radio-television Telecommunications Commission ("CRTC") and American
Registry for Internet Numbers ("ARIN").

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC").

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were approved and authorized
for issue by the board of directors on May 14, 2019.

3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of its subsidiaries Newmarket-Tay
Power Distribution Ltd. and Envi Networks Ltd. The purchase of Midland Power Utility Corporation
("Midland PUC") was approved by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) in 2018. Midland PUC was
amalgamated by Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. effective September 7, 2018. Tay Hydro
Inc. has a 7% interest in Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd and Envi Networks Ltd. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The significant policies are detailed as follows:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(a) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the relevant accounting
policies.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

(b) Electricity requlation

The Company is licensed and regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The OEB is
charged with the responsibility of approving rates for the transmission and distribution of
electricity and the responsibility for ensuring that distribution companies fulfil obligations to
connect and service customers.

The following regulatory policy is practiced in a rate regulated environment:
Regulatory accounts

Regulatory accounts represent future revenue or expenses incurred in the current or prior
periods that are expected to be recovered (repaid) through the rate setting process.

These assets and liabilities include various rate and retail variance accounts which arise from
differences in amounts billed to customers (based on regulated rates) and the actual cost of
electricity services to the Company. These amounts are accumulated for accounting
purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered (repaid) in future rates. The
Company continually assesses the likelihood of the recovery of regulatory assets and
likelihood or repayment of regulatory liabilities. If recovery or repayment is no longer
considered probable, the amounts are charged to operations in the year the assessment is
made.

Regulatory accounts recognized at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are
disclosed in note 12.

(c) Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a promised good or service,
a performance obligation under the contract, to a customer and where the company is
entitled to consideration as a result of completion or the performance obligation.

Prior to January 1, 2018, revenue was recognized to the extent that it was probable that
economic benefits will flow to the company and that the revenue can be reliably measured.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(c) Revenue recognition, continued

Distribution Revenue

Distribution revenue is measured based on the OEB approved rate and the meter readings
for customer usage, net of sales tax and debt retirement charge. Distribution revenue also
includes unbilled revenue accrued in respect of electricity delivered but not yet billed.
Revenue is recognized as electricity is delivered and consumed by customers and
measured.

Cost of Power Revenue
Cost of power revenue is recorded on the basis of the power billed by the Independent
Electricity System Operator ("IESQ").

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital represent certain items of property, plant and equipment which are
acquired or constructed with financial assistance in the form of contributions from
developers. Prior to January 1, 2018 such contributions, whether in cash or in-kind, were
recognized as contributed capital and amortized into income over the life of the related
assets. Contributed capital in-kind were valued at their fair value at the date of their
contribution.

On implementation of IFRS 15, contributions received from customers where the Company
has an ongoing performance obligation to the customer are within the scope of IFRS 15.
These contributions will be initially recorded at fair value recognized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated life of the contract with the customers. Where contracts are perpetual, the
contributed asset will be used to provide ongoing goods or services to customers and as
such the estimated life of the contract with the customers is estimated to be equivalent to the
economical useful life of the asset to which the contribution relates.

Contributions from developers are not within the scope of IFRS 15 as they do not give rise to
a contract with a customer. Currently, there is no specific IFRS guidance on accounting for
contributions received from developers. The Company has an accounting policy for the initial
recognition of such contributions and subsequent recognition of the related revenue, as
described in note 4(i).

Conservation and Demand Management Revenue

Revenues related to Conservation and Demand Management ("CDM") agreements with the
Independent Electricity System Operator ("IESO") are recognized on a net basis.
Performance fees are recognized as CDM programs are delivered.

Other Income
Other operating revenue is recorded when services are provided.

(d) Cash

Cash consists of balances with financial institutions.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(e) Foreign exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities of the Company which are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at year end exchange rates. Other assets and liabilities are translated at rates
in effect at the date the assets were acquired and liabilities incurred. Revenue and expenses
are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at their transaction dates. The resulting
gains or losses are included in operations.

() Inventories

Inventories, which consist of parts and supplies acquired for internal construction or
consumption, are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on
a weighted-moving average basis and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the
inventories and other costs to bring the inventories to their existing location and condition.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset or its development when those costs are necessarily incurred for the asset to
function in the manner intended by management. When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

All assets having limited useful lives are amortized using the straight-line over their estimated
useful lives. Assets are amortized from the date of acquisition. Internally constructed assets
are amortized from the time an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

In the year of acquisition, amortization is taken at one-half of the below rates.

The residual value, useful life and amortization method applied to each class of assets are
reassessed at each reporting date.

The amortization rates applicable for each class of asset are calculated on a straight-line
basis as follows:

Land and building:

- Building 25 - 30 years
- Shelters 10 years
Distribution equipment 10 - 50 years
Transportation and fibre equipment:

- Transportation equipment 5-10years
- Fibre cable and network equipment 5 - 25 years
Office and other 5-10 years

10
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(9) Property, plant and equipment, continued

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of these assets is not
recoverable and exceeds their fair value.

(h) Gooawill and intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software, land rights, licensed customer lists and
goodwill. They are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalized costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, if applicable. Residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to
impairment testing. The useful lives of the intangibles are as follows:

Computer software 3-5 years
Land rights 30 years
Licensed customer list not amortized
Goodwill not amortized

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software, (expenditure relating to patches and other minor updates as well as their
installation), are expensed as incurred.

Land rights are capitalized based on the payments made for easements, right of access and
right of use over land for which the Company does not hold title. Land rights are measured
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The licensed customer list is measured at cost and not amortized but assessed for
impairment annually.

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired local distribution companies in Midiand in excess of
fair value of the net identifiable assets purchased. Goodwill is measured at cost and is not
amortized but assessed for impairment annually.

(i)  Contributed capital

Contributions for capital construction consist of contributions from customers and developers
toward the cost of constructing distribution assets. The contributions are calculated through
an economic evaluation as per the OEB Distribution Service Code (represents fair value) and
are recorded as received. Contributed capital is amortized over the same period as the
asset to which they relate, 10 to 50 years.

11
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
() Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(k) Related parties

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured
at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by
the related parties. Details of related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note
21,

12



173
NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
() Employee future benefits

The Company accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement
System ("OMERS"), a multi employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution
plan. Both participating employers and employees are required to make plan contributions
based on the participating employees' contributory earnings. The Company recognizes the
expense related to this plan as contributions are made. No liability has been established for
this plan.

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. These plans are not funded and accordingly have no plan assets. The
Company's net obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that are
expected to be paid out discounted to determine its present value. This calculation is
actuarially performed using the projected unit credit method. The last full valuation
performed was as at December 31, 2017 for Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Limited and
December 31, 2016, updated September 7, 2018, for Midland Power Utility Corporation
("Midland PUC"). Service costs are recognized in the Statement of Income in operating
expenses, and include current and past service costs as well as gains and losses on
curtailment. Net interest expense is included in finance costs.

Details related to the employee future benefits are detailed in note 20.
(m) Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of income
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). Deferred income taxes
are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In providing for income taxes,
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and their carrying amounts
are reflected as deferred income taxes. The tax rates anticipated to be in effect when these
temporary differences reverse are used to calculate deferred income taxes. Additional details
related to the calculation and method of accounting for PILS is included in note 11.

13
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(n) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates. These financial
statements include estimates which, by their nature, are uncertain. The impacts of such
estimates are pervasive throughout the financial statements, and may require accounting
adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions include the following:

Useful lives of depreciable assets - Depreciation and amortization expense is based on
estimates of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The
Company estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets based on management's judgment, historical experience and an asset study
conducted by an independent consulting firm.

Payment in lieu of taxes payable - The Company is required to make payments in lieu of
taxes calculated on the same basis as income taxes on taxable income earned. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision and liability or asset for income taxes.
Changes in deferred taxes may be required due to changes in future tax rates.

Employee future benefits - The cost of providing certain health, dental and life insurance
benefits on behalf of its retired employees are determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation uses managements assumptions which have been outlined in note 20.

Accounts receivable impairment - In determining the allowance for doubtful accounts, the
Company considers the life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the account balance.

(o) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

Some of the Company's assets may have provision obligations. As the Company expects to
use the majority of its fixed assets for an indefinite period, no removal costs can be
determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any asset
retirement obligations has not been made at this time.

14
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(p) Financial instruments

Financial assets are identified and classified based on the business model used by the
Company for managing those financial assets, as one of the following: at amortized cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair value through profit or loss. Prior to
January 1, 2018, the financial assets were identified and classified as one of the following:
measured at fair value through profit or loss or loans and receivables. Financial assets that
were not classified in any of the above categories were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets. Financial liabilities continue to be classified as measured at fair value
through profit or loss or at amortized cost, as there is no change in classification of financial
liabilities under IFRS 9.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a net basis when the Company has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

At amortized cost

Accounts receivable, due from related parties and unbilled revenue are classified as financial
assets at amortized cost. These financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. After initial recognition, they are measured at
amortized cost when they are held for collection of cash flows, where those cash flows solely
represent payments of principal and interest using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset, or a shorter period when appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset.

The Company's bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, customer
deposits, subordinate debt, due to related parties and long term debt are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost and recognized on the date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual arrangement. Financial liabilities are derecognized when
the contractual obligations are are discharged, cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities are
initially recognized at fair value including discounts and premiums, plus directly attributable
transaction costs, such as issue expenses, if any. Subsequently, these liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

15
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(p) Financial instruments, continued

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling, where
the assets' cash flows solely represent payments of principal and interest, are classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. These financial assets
are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses recognized in other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment
losses, reversal of impairment losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses, gain or loss previously recognized in net income. On de-recognition of the financial
asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to net income. Interest income from these financial assets is recognized as other
income using the effective interest rate method. As at December 31, 2018, the Company
does not have any financial assets, classified at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

At fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include instruments that are
designated as financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or those financial
instruments that do not meet the criteria for classification under any other category. Upon
initial recognition, directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in net income as
incurred. Changes in fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized in net income.

Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost

The policy for accounts receivable and unbilled revenue allowances is to measure at an
amount equal to the life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The policy for other financial assets is
at life-time expected credit loss if credit risk increased significantly, if not, then at 12-month
expected loss.

16
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(q) Change in accounting policies
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Company adopted IFRS 9 using the retrospective approach. The adoption resulted in no
impact to the opening balances of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 replaces
IAS 30 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The new standard amends
the requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, impairment, and
hedge accounting. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes profit or loss, and fair value through other comprehensive income. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. The Company's updated accounting policies resulting
from implementation of the new standard, along with analysis of the changes from the
previous accounting standard as set of in the Financial Instruments section of the significant
accounting policies.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach with the
cumulative effect of any adjustments recognized in the opening balance of retained earnings
as of January 1, 2018. However, the implementation of IFRS 15 did not result in any
adjustment to the retained earnings or to the presentation of the financial statements. IFRS
15 is based on the core principal to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods and
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15 focuses on the transfer of
control. IFRS 15 replaces all of the revenue guidance that previously existed in IAS 11 -
Construction Contracts and IAS 18 - Revenue and related interpretations. The Company's
updated accounting policies resulting from implementation of the new standard, along with
analysis of the changes from the previous accounting standard are set out in the Revenue
Recognition section of the significant accounting policies.

17
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
()  New Standards and interpretations not yet effective or adopted
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and brings leases onto companies’ balance sheets,
increasing the visibility of their assets and liabilities. IFRS 16 removes the classification of
leases as either operating or finance leases for the lessee treating all leases as finance
leases. Short term and low value assets are exempt from these requirements.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments provides guidance on the recognition and
measurement of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities under IAS 12 - Income Taxes,
where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors have been amended by the IASB in October 2018. The
amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied. The amendments
ensure that the definition is consistent across all IFRS standards. Early adoption is permitted.

The Company is currently assessing the impact that the standards will have on the
statements.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

2018 2017
$ $
Term deposit held with TD Canada Trust at an interest rate of
1.4% per annum with a maturity date of January 4, 2019. 25,084 -

This short-term investment is related to a stand-by letter of guarantee in the amount of $25,000

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2018 2017

3 3

Accounts receivable 17,512,722 13,354,959
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 229,628 80,360

17,283,094 13,274,599

18
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7. INVESTMENTS
2018 2017
$ $
Utility Collaborative Services Inc. (UCS), recorded using the cost
method, 100 common shares, 16.7% interest 100 -

Utility Collaborative Services Inc. (UCS) provides billing, mailing, call centre and IT infrastructure
services for Midland PUC customers. The Company gave formal notice of retraction of the shares
in UCS on January 16, 2019 effective May 16, 2019. The notice period is 3 years or a penalty
equal to the previous 3 years of service fees will be levied.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Transportation
Land and Distribution and fibre Office and
building  equipment equipment other Total
$ $ $ $
Cost
At January 1, 2018 5,768,783 100,777,027 1,584,860 2,045,656 110,176,326
Additions 342 480 18,329,033 2,090,466 656,183 21,418,162
Disposals (69,278) (602,099) (311,366) (16,637) (999,380)

At December 31, 2018 6,041,985 118,503,961 3,363,960 2,685,202 130,595,108

Amortization

At January 1, 2018 36,180 11,577,090 866,788 956,210 13,436,268
Additions (8,433) 8,291,633 604,484 181,927 9,069,611

Disposals (8,264) (182,859) (226,749) (16,637) (434,509)
At December 31, 2018 19,483 19,685,864 1,244,523 1,121,500 22,071,370

Net book value at
December 31, 2018 6,022 502 98,818,097 2,119,437 1,663,702 108,523,738
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, continued
Transportation
Land and  Distribution and fibre Office and
building  equipment equipment other Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cost
At January 1, 2017 5,756,446 96,257,378 1,446,777 1,261,232 104,721,833
Additions 12,337 4,519,649 138,083 784,424 5,454,493

At December 31, 2017 5,768,783 100,777,027 1,684,860 2,045656 110,176,326

Amortization

At January 1, 2017 27,068 8,348,699 591,468 790,580 9,757,815
Additions 9,112 3,228,391 275,320 165,630 3,678,453
At December 31, 2017 36,180 11,577,090 866,788 956,210 13,436,268

Net book value at
December 31, 2017 5,732,603 89,199,937 718,072 1,089,446 96,740,058

Included in distribution equipment additions is amortization expense of $86,445 (2017 - $255,087)
and work in progress of $1,968,992 (2017 - $15,115). Included in land and building is land with a
value of $5,576,475 (2017 - $5,556,475). Included in the 2018 cost additions are amounts related
to the Midland PUC purchase, refer to note 28 for business combination disclosures.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018 2017
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ 3
Computer software 1,063,130 723,039 340,091 997,723

Land rights 417,871 76,576 341,295 -

Licensed customer list 7,015,367 - 7,015,367 -
8,496,368 799,615 7,696,753 997 723

During the year, the Company had additions of $7,241,801 (2017 - $737,353), disposals of
$559,719 (2017 - $Nil) and amortization of $582,770 (2017 - $175,389). Additions are a result of
the Midland PUC purchase during 2018, refer to note 28 for business combination disclosures.
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10. GOODWILL

2018 2017
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
$ $ $ 3
Goodwill 6,864,284 - 6,864,284 -

Goodwill, representing 4.2% of the Company's total assets, is allocated to the entire business as a
cash generating unit. The goodwill at December 31, 2018 of $6,864,334 (2017 - $Nil) represents
the cost of acquired local distribution companies in excess of fair value of the net identifiable
assets purchased and is not amortized.

Based on the results of the annual goodwill impairment test, Newmarket determined the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is more than its carrying value. No impairment
has been recorded in the period ended December 31, 2018.

The impairment analysis involves the use of an income approach that relies on estimating the net
future cash flows and applying the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. This
approach employs several assumptions: projected revenue growth, market expectations, financial
margin, operating and administrative expenses, working capital requirements, future capital
expenditure requirements, income tax rates, regulatory capital management requirements, as well
as an appropriate discount rate. If future growth and results of the CGU differs significantly from
management's current best estimates, it is reasonably possible that this could have an adverse
impact on the estimate recoverable amounts of the CGU, including the amounts allocated to
goodwill.

11. INCOME TAXES

(a) The provision for income taxes recorded in the consolidated financial statements differs from
the amount which would be obtained by applying the statutory income tax rate of 39.5% (2017
- 39.5%) to the income (loss) for the years as follows:

2018 2017

3 $

Income (loss) for the year before income taxes (1,774,759) 480,415
Net movement in regulatory deferral accounts 4802272 3,522,000

3,027,513 4,002,415

Anticipated income tax 1,195,868 1,580,954
Tax effect of the following:

Permanent expense differences 8,025 230,026
Other comprehensive income - (57,986)
General rate reduction (393,577) 131,523
Impact of deferred taxes and other 3,219,048 (564,641)
Provision for income taxes 4,029,364 1,319,876
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s INCOME TAXES, continued

(b) Deferred income tax assets are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In
providing for income taxes, temporary differences between the tax basis of the underlying
assets and their carrying amounts as per the financial statements are reflected as deferred
income taxes. When the tax basis is greater than the carrying amount, a deferred tax asset is
created. When the tax basis is less than the carrying amount, a deferred tax liability is created.
The tax rates anticipated to be in effect when these temporary differences reverse are used to
calculate deferred income taxes.

Opening Closing

balance at balance at

January 1, Recognize in December 31,

2018 net income 2018

$ $ $

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and
cumulative eligible capital 2,189,320 (2,189,320) -

Reserves deductible when paid 277,651 275,200 552,851
Loss carryforward - 292,071 292 071
2,466,971 (1,622,049) 844 922

Opening Closing

balance at balance at

January 1, Recognize in December 31,

2017 net income 2017

$ $ $

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and

cumulative eligible capital 1,859,780 329,540 2,189,320
Reserves deductible when paid 232275 45,376 277,651
2,902,055 374,916 2,466,971

Opening Closing

balance at balance at

January 1, Recognize in December 31,

2018 net income 2018

$ $ $

Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment - 1,498,793 1,498,793

- 1,498,793 1,498,793
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i P INCOME TAXES, continued

2018 2017
$ 3
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 844 922 2,466,971
2018 2017
$ $
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,498,793 -

The Company expects to be able to use the above tax loss carryforward before expiration.
Included in reserves deductible when paid are post-employment benefits and net unrealized
losses. Included in tax basis of property, plant and equipment are goodwill and intangible assets.

12. REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNTS

All amounts deferred as regulatory deferral account debit balances are subject to approval by the
OEB. As such, amounts subject to deferral could be altered by the regulators. Remaining recovery
periods are those expected and the actual recovery or settlement periods could differ based on
OEB approval. Due to previous, existing or expected future regulatory articles or decisions, the
Company has the following amounts expected to be recovered in future periods which are
comprised of the following:

Remaining
recovery/ Net balances
reversal arising/
period December recovered in Recovery/ December 31,
Note (years) 31, 2017 the period reversal 2018
$ $ $ $
Regulatory deferral account debit
Retail
settlement
variance
account i 1 (54,843) 4,438,205 - 4,383,362
Other ii A 758,386 1,588,549 - 2,346,935
Deferred tax
debit
balance iii A 2,191,302 2,064,031 - 4,255,333
2,894,845 8,090,785 - 10,985,630
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12. REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNTS, continued

Regulatory deferral account credit

Recovery

account iv A 508,729 209,795 (688,655) 29,869
Other ii A 203,217 (111,508) - 91,712
IFRS

conversion v 1 7,648,830 (645,620) (4,378,158) 2,625,052
Deferred tax

credit

balance iii A 521,340 344 673 - 866,013

8,882,116 (202,657) (5,066,813) 3,612,646

(a) These amounts are expected to reverse when the Company submits their next cost of service
filing which is anticipated to be within the next ten years.

(i) Retail Settlement Variance Account variances represent the difference between the amounts
charged by the company to its customers, and the amounts paid by the company to the
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESO”) and Hydro One for the cost of energy. The
settlement variances include network and connection service charges, energy sales and the
global adjustment. The balance for settlement variances and carrying charges are calculated
and recorded on a monthly basis.

(i) Other Deferral Accounts include debit and credit balances in other regulatory assets,
including Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism variances, Smart Metering Entity Charge
variances, Retail Cost variances, IFRS transition expenditures, payments in lieu of taxes and
Smart Meter expenditures. The costs incurred in these deferral accounts have been captured
for future recovery or settlement. Carrying charges are recorded monthly on the opening
balances.

(iii) Deferred tax on the regulatory balances that will ultimately be recovered from/paid back to its
customers.

(iv) Recovery Accounts are used to record the disposition of deferral and variance account
balances that have been approved by the OEB. The variances are to be recovered or settled
when the company submits their next Cost of Service filing.

(v) In2012, the Company adjusted the estimated useful life related to the amortization period for
certain capital assets, based upon the Ontario Energy Board's regulatory accounting
direction as contained in the revised 2012 Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity
Distributors. As a result of OEB direction related to the settlement of these amounts, the
company has recorded a payable in the deferral account of $2,625,052 (2017 - $7,648,830).

In 2018, the Company was approved through its annual Incentive Regulation Mechanism
(IRM) application to the OEB for the settlement of this balance. The Company is continuing
to refund this balance until April 30th of 2019, after which any remainder is expected to be
approved for settlement through their 2019 IRM and the amount will be refunded to its
respective customers by class over a one year period. This balance also includes $569,566
of carrying charges based on the Company's weighted average cost of capital.

24



185
NEWMARKET HYDRO HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

13. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2018 2017

$ $

Accounts payable - purchased power 6,329,726 5,201,533
Other trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,030,167 3,249,271
Water and sewer billings payable (note 21) 2,490,850 2,606,698
Credits on customer accounts 1,430,903 1,482,348
Conservation demand management programs 331,761 293,380

15,613,407 12,833,230

14. BANK LOAN

2018 2017
$ $
Interim construction facility loan 1,200,000 -

The Company has an interim construction facility loan with total credit available of $3,500,000.
The loan is payable on demand with interest to be paid monthly bearing a rate of prime plus
0.25% per annum. The loan will be fully repaid in five years with the proceeds of a committed
reducing term facility loan. The contract term starts five years from the date of drawdown of the
interim construction facility loan.

A general security agreement covering all assets of Envi Networks Ltd. and assignment of
business/liability insurance has been pledged as security for the interim construction facility.

Newmarket-Tay Distribution Ltd. is a limited guarantor of advances in the amount of the
$3,500,000 credit available to Envi Networks Ltd.
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15. LONG-TERM DEBT

2018 2017
$ $
(a) Bank loan payable, 4.41% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $50,957 10,142,213 -
(b) Bank loan payable, 4.4% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $42,611 7,721,893 -
(c) Bank loan payable, 2.44% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $65,738 5,076,065 5,733,071
(d) Bank loan payable, 4.26% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $33,088 4,364,933 -
(e) Bank loan payable, 30 day bankers acceptances, interest
only, no defined terms of repayment 2,000,000 -
29,305,104 5,733,071
Less principal payments due within one year 3,232,267 657,006
Due beyond one year 26,072,837 5,076,065

(a) The bank loan payable is a 30 year term loan due October 9, 2048 with a payment due at
maturity of $50,957. Refer to note 16 and 32 for details on interest swap agreements.

(b) The bank loan payable is a 10 year term loan due October 10, 2028 with a payment due at
maturity of $5,633,365. Refer to note 16 and 32 for details on interest swap agreements.

(c) The bank loan payable is a 5 year term loan due December 10, 2020 with a payment due at
maturity of $3,771,150. Refer to note 16 and 32 for details on interest swap agreements.

(d) The bank loan payable is a 15 year term loan due October 11, 2033 with a payment due at
maturity of $33,088. Refer to note 16 and 32 for details on interest swap agreements.

(e) The Company has $4,000,000 available in the form of a demand loan bearing interest at prime
plus 0%. As at year-end $2,000,000 has been drawn upon.

Estimated principal repayments are as follows:

$

2019 3,232,267
2020 4,986,701
2021 609,758
2022 636,812
2023 665,056
Subsequent years 19,174,510
29,305,104
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16. INTEREST RATE SWAPS

To reduce exposure to interest rate fluctuations, the Company entered into four interest rate
swaps during the year where they pay a fixed interest rate over the term of the loan. As at
December 31, 2018, the mark-to-market loss related to the swap agreement is $1,296,751.

7. SUBORDINATE DEBT

2018 2017

$ $

Note payable, 5.48% - Township of Newmarket 22,000,000 22,000,000
Note payable, 5.48% - Township of Tay 1,742,821 1,742,821

23,742,821 23,742,821

Estimated principal repayments are as follows:

$
Unspecified 23,742,821

The notes payable are unsecured and have no specific terms of repayment. Since the holders of
the notes have confirmed they will not request repayment of this amount during the next fiscal
year, these amounts have been classified as a non-current liability in the accompanying financial
statements.

18. DEPOSITS HELD

Deposits held represent cash deposits from electricity distribution customers and retailers, as well
as construction deposits.

Deposits from electricity distribution customers are refundable to customers demonstrating an
acceptable level of credit risk as determined by the Company in accordance with policies set out
by the OEB or upon termination of their electricity distribution service.

Construction Deposits represent cash payments from developers in order to secure the
performance of the developer's obligations under the Construction Agreement for Expansion
Facilties and Connection Assets Supplied by Developer - Residential Subdivision (The
Construction Agreement).

2018 2017

$ $

Current portion of customer deposits 705,212 498,000
Long-term portion of customer depaosits 2,208,681 2,322,251
Long-term portion of construction deposits 217,643 1,020,908

2,426,324 3,343,159
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19. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

2018 2017

$ $

Deferred contributions, net, beginning of year 31,358,906 30,660,427
Contributed capital received 3,012,023 " 1,405,507
Contributed capital recognized as revenue (note 24) (1,229,868) (707,028)
Deferred contributions, net, end of year 33,141,061 31,358,906

20. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company provides certain health, dental and life insurance benefits for retired employees
pursuant to the Company's policy. The accrued benefit obligation and net periodic expense for
the year were determined by an actuarial valuation. The most recent valuation was performed for
December 31, 2017 for Newmarket-Tay Hydro Distribution Limited and December 31, 2016 for
Midland PUC, updated for September 7, 2018.

Information about the Company's defined benefit plan is as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 1,047,729 876,508

Accrued benefit obligation, Midland PUC, September 7, 2018 92,705 -

Current service cost 30,207 38,200
Interest expense 36,945 33,300
Benefits paid (57,174) (47,079)
Actuarial loss 6,592 146,800

1,157,004 1,047,729

Current service costs and interest on accrued benefit obligation are recognized in the statement of
income. Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions are accounted for in other
comprehensive income. The total benefit costs for the year is $73,744 (2017 - $218,300).

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of Newmarket-Tay staff are the discount rate of
3.4% (2017 - 3.4%), salary increase rate of 2.8% (2017 - 2.8%), cost trend including health
benefits of 5.96% (2017 - 6.20%) and dental benefits 4.5% (2017 - 4.5%) and retirement age of
65 (2017 - 65). The health benefits are expected to decrease at 0.25% per year until 2025 when it
reaches 4.50% and dental benefits will remain at 4.50% to 2025. The actuarial assumptions used
in the valuation of Midland PUC is a discount rate of 3.7%.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of Midland PUC staff for post-retirement life
insurance is an assumed 10% of the total benefit obligation (2017 - 10%).

The impact of a change in the actuarial assumptions would have the following impact on the

obligation:
Reasonable Defined benefit
possible change obligation Difference Difference
$ $ %
Discount rate +1% 1,017,100 (139,904) (12)
Discount rate -1% 1,335,100 178,096 15
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21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND ADVANCES FROM PARENT COMPANY

(a) The Company entered into transactions with its parent, the Town of Newmarket which is the
sole shareholder of Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. Revenue charged during the year
included energy, street light capital and street light maintenance charged at commercial rates
to the Town of Newmarket.

Included in accounts payable (note 13) are water and sewer amounts collected which are
due to the Town. These amounts are collected and remitted in accordance with a contract
with URB Olameter and remitted on their behalf.

Included in subordinate debt (note 17) are notes payable to related parties.

(b) Transactions

These transactions are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

2018 2017
$ $
Revenue

Energy sales 2,707,348 2,035,574
Services - Street light capital 1,380 25,770
Services - Street light maintenance 19,686 59,268
2,728,414 2,120,612

Expenses
Interest 1,205,600 1,205,600
Rent and property tax 440,874 424 988

1,646,474 1,630,588

(c) The following amount is due from the Town of Newmarket and included in the financial

statements:
2018 2017
$ $
Accounts receivable 310,709 310,627

The key management personnel of the company has been defined as members of its board
of directors, executives, and other management personnel. Total wages and benefits to
these individuals total $2,606,622 (2017 - $2,136,294).
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22. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
2018 2017
$ $
10,000 Common shares 29,609,342 29,609,342
23. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
The changes in non-controlling interest consist of:
2018 2017
$ $
Non controlling interest, beginning of year 3,405,162 3,350,906
Income 56,282 162,809
Dividends paid (214,400) (101,000)
Other comprehensive income - (7,553)
Investment in Envi Networks Ltd. 134,400 -
Non-controlling interest, end of year 3,381,444 3,405,162
24, OTHER INCOME
Other income consists of the following:
2018 2017
$ $
Account set up fees 132,142 121,290
Pole rentals 237,278 137,535
Collection charges 125,994 133,932
Non rate-regulated utility operations, net 214,034 -
Recognition of contributed capital (note 19) 1,229,868 707,028
Other 286,328 120,187
Other income 2,225,644 1,219,972
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25. OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses consist of the following:

2018 2017

$ $

Wages and benefits 5,295,734 4,253,254
Materials, equipment and other operating expenses 2,098,184 1,678,827
Administration and overhead 5,116,971 3,472,811
Operating expenses 12,510,889 9,404,892

The prior year amounts have been restated to conform to current year classifications.

26. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Finance income recognized in net income consists of the following:

2018 2017
$ $
Interest income on accounts receivable 188,923 186,503
Income on cash balance 130,329 109,120
Interest income on regulatory balances 92,962 27,137
412 214 322,760

Finance costs recognized in net income consists of the following:
2018 2017
$ 3
Interest on long-term debt 1,696,765 1,448,363
Customer deposit interest 40,803 33,048

1,737,568 1,481,411

27. CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS

2018 2017

$ $

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (3,965,095) 823,941
Decrease (increase) in unbilled revenue (2,635,259) 2,145,538
Decrease (increase) in inventories (23,240) 16,195
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (178,192) 201,361
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,780,177 (1,641,205)
Increase (decrease) in deposits held (709,623) 833,681
Interest received 412,214 322,760
Taxes paid (1,715,758) (1,528,000)
Taxes received 5,687 1,199,595

(6,029,089) 2,373,866
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28.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Effective September 7, 2018, the Company acquired all issued and outstanding common shares
of Midland Power Utility Corporation ("Midland PUC"), an Ontario regulated local distribution
company, from the Corporation of the Town of Midland. The acquisition was accounted for by the
purchase method. The total purchase price for Midland PUC was $21,969,487 plus working
capital adjustment of $256,147. The results of operations are included in the accounts from the
effective date of acquisition. Details of the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value of net assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Regulatory assets

Goodwill

Long-term investments

Deferred Taxes

Working capital

Contributions in aid of construction
Customer and construction deposits
Long-term debt

Employee future benefits

Deferred taxes

291,344
13,911,878
7,073,929
989,212
6,695,577
100
24,103
(449,651)
(2,142,898)
(223,845)
(3,577,070)
(92,705)
(274,339)

22,225,635

$

Consideration given:

22,225,635

Goodwill of approximately $5,435,577 arising from the Midland PUC acquisition consists largely of
the synergies and economies of scale expected from combining the operations of Newmarket and
Midland PUC. This is in addition to goodwill of $1,260,000 previously recorded as an asset by
Midland PUC. Midland PUC contributed revenues of $6,040,431 and $285,871 of net loss to the
Company's financial results for the year ended December 31, 2018. All costs related to the
acquisition have been expensed through the Statement of Income.
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29. SHORT TERM CREDIT FACILITIES

The Company has $7,250,000 available in operating facilities from a major chartered bank,
reduced from $11,750,000 in the year. The facilities include a 364 day committed revolving
operating loan, bearing interest at prime plus 0%, to be repaid within one year from date of
acquisition unless extended by the bank. A commitment fee of 0.125% per annum, payable
quarterly applies to any unused portion of the facility. As at December 31, 2018 the Company has
$2,865,805 (2017 - $Nil) on this facility with reconciling items of $915,182. The operating loan
includes restrictive clauses with respect to repayment.

The Company has provided prudential support in the amount of $3,861,670 to the Independent
Electricity System Operator. The prudential support is secured by a letter of credit with a major
chartered bank for $3,861,670, contains restrictive clauses with respect to debt repayments and
bears interest at 0.5% per annum.

A general security agreement covering all assets of the Company and assignment of
business/liability insurance has been pledged as security for the operating facilities. At December
31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all covenants.

Included in the Company's bank indebtedness balance is restricted cash in the amount of
$244,015, which consists of monies received by the Company from the Ontario provincial
government to administer the Affordability Fund Trust (AFT) program.

The AFT was established as part of the Fair Hydro Act, to serve house-holds not eligible for
income qualified electricity support services. The AFT exists as a legal trust and the Company is
only able to offer disbursements to qualified beneficiaries.

30. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees' Retirement Fund
(O.M.E.R.S.), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of retirement benefits to be received by the employees
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to O.M.E.R.S. for the year ended was $511,737 (2017 - $423,036).

31. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Company’'s primary objective when managing capital is to address the expectations as
provided in the Shareholder Agreement with its shareholder, the Town of Newmarket. The
expectation is that the Company will maintain a prudent financial structure in order to safeguard
the Company's assets and to provide adequate returns for its shareholders and benefits to the
stakeholders.

Changes to the Company’s capital structure are constrained by existing covenants contained in
the banking agreement. The Company must maintain a maximum debt to capitalization ratio of
0.60 to 1 and maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.2. As at year end the Company is
compliant with these covenants.
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments consist of recorded amounts of cash, accounts receivable, unbilled revenue
which will result in future cash receipts, as well as accounts payable and accrued liabilities, bank
loan, deposits held, due to shareholder, long-term debt and subordinate debt which will result in
future cash outflows.

The Company does not believe that it is exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.
The Company is exposed to the following risks in respect of certain financial instruments held:
(a) Interest rate risk

The Company manages exposure to interest rate risk through a combination of fixed and
floating rate borrowings. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate cash flow risk to the extent that the floating rate credit
facility bears interest at a floating rate. The Company is also exposed to interest rate price
risk to the extent that loans bear interest at fixed rates and has entered into an interest rate
swap arrangement to manage the impact of fluctuating interest rates on bank loan payable.
The swaps require the periodic exchange of interest payments without the exchange of the
notional principal amount on which the payments are based (notes 15, 16 and 21).

(b) Credit risk

Financial assets carry credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation which
would result in a financial loss. Financial assets held by the Company, such as accounts
receivable, expose it to credit risk. The Company earns its revenue from a broad base of
customers located in the service area. No single customer accounts for revenue in excess of
10% of total revenue.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
impairment and the amount of related impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income. Subsequent recoveries of receivables previously provisioned are credited to the
income statement. The balance of the allowance for impairment at December 31, 2018 is
$229,628 (2017 - $80,360). The Company's credit risk associated with accounts receivable is
primarily related to payments from distribution customers. The Company has approximately
43,970 customers, the majority of which are residential. Credit risk is managed through
collection of security deposits from customers in accordance with directions provided by the
OEB. As at December 31, 2018, the Company holds security deposits in the amount of
$3,131,536 (2017 - $3,841,159). The Company’s activities provide for a variety of financial
risks, particularly credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The accounts receivable balance
is expected to be fully repaid within 90 days excluding the allowance for doubtful accounts
portion of the balance.
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32.

33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
(c) Liquidity risk

The Company does have a liquidity risk in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$15,613,407 (2017 - $12,833,230). Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot repay
its obligations when they become due to its creditors. The Company reduces its exposure to
liquidity risk by ensuring that it documents when authorized payments become due;
maintains an adequate line of credit to repay trade creditors and repays long-term debt
interest and principal as they become due. In the opinion of management the liquidity risk
exposure to the Company is low and is not material.

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest

payments:
Between 0 -3 Between 4 -
Months 12 months Over 1 year
3 $ $
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15,613,407 - -
Deposits held 176,303 528,909 2,426,324
Long-term debt 808,067 2,424 200 49,815,658
Employee future benefits - - 1,157,004
Bank loan - - 1,200,000

16,597,777 2,953,109 54,598,986

The bank loan is classified as current in the statement of financial position given the demand
features of the loan. The expected payment of the loan is in 5 years and therefore, has been
shown as due in over 1 year above.

COMMITMENT

The Company is in negotiations with the Town of Newmarket on a new lease agreement for the
building which was not finalized as of the report date.

The Company entered into a 10 year lease agreement on September 7, 2018, with the Town of
Midland, to rent office space for minimum lease payments of $7,896 per month. In addition, an
agreement was entered into with the Town of Midland to lease various substation properties for a
period of twelve years at $49,980 per annum for the first five years, followed by fair market rental
rate per annum for the remaining term of the lease.
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) In the normal course of business, the Company enters into agreements that meet the definition
of a guarantee. The guarantees include indemnities under lease agreements, purchase and sale
agreements, confidentiality agreements, outsourcing, service and information agreements. The
nature of these indemnification agreements prevents the Company from making a reasonable
estimate of the maximum exposure due to the difficulties in assessing the amount of liability
related to the likelihood and predictability of future events. Historically, the Company has not
made any significant payments under similar indemnification agreements and therefore no
amount has been accrued in the statement of financial position with respect to these agreements.

(b) Indemnity has been provided to all directors and/or officers of the Company for various items
including, but not limited to, all costs to settle suits or actions due to association with the
Company, subject to certain restrictions. The Company has purchased directors' and officers'
liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any potential suits or actions. The amount of any
potential future liability which exceeds the amount of insurance coverage cannot reasonably be
determined.

(c) The Company participates with other municipal utilities in Ontario in an agreement to exchange
reciprocal contracts of indemnity through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange. Under this agreement, the Company is contingently liable for additional assessments
to the extent that premiums collected are not sufficient to cover actual losses, claims and costs
experienced.

35. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The financial statements have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the presentation
used in the current year. Due to a special audit performed in 2018, there was a reclass of
$1,813,255 between cost of power purchased and net movement in regulatory deferral accounts.
The changes do not affect retained earnings or equity and is solely a reclass between accounts
receivable and the regulatory deferral account balances on the balance sheet.

36. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to year end, the Company purchased shares in CustomerFirst, for total consideration
of $5,339. CustomerFirst designs high-quality energy efficient and renewable energy programs
through partnerships with electric utilities, gas utilities and government agencies. This investment
will be accounted for using the equity method.
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Baker Tilly KDN LLP
272 Charlotte Street
Peterborough, ON
Canada K9J 2V4
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT D: 705.742. 3418

F: 705. :
To the Shareholders of 5.742.9775

Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. www.bakertilly.ca

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of changes in equity and
accumulated other comprehensive income, income, comprehensive income and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter
The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited
by Collins Barrow Kawarthas LLP, which became Baker Tilly KDN LLP effective January 10, 2019.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 1 and note 24 of the financial statements, which describes the purchase of
Midland Power Utility Company effective September 7, 2018.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’'s financial reporting
process.

ASSURANCE - TAX * ADVISORY

Baker Tilly KDN LLP is a member of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative, which is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Limited.
All members of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative and Baker Tilly International Limited are separate and independent legal entities.

Peterborough Courtice Lindsay Cobourg
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT, continued

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Baker Tdly KDN LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Peterborough, Ontario
April 30, 2019



201

NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2018

@ pbakertilly

2018 2017
$ $
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash (note 25) - 10,381,961
Accounts receivable 17,287,521 13,274,180
Inventories 882,196 858,956
Prepaid expenses 447,373 281,898
Income taxes receivable 1,489,892 676,424
Unbilled revenue 11,856,298 9,221,039
31,963,280 34,694,458
Non current
Long-term investment (note 4) 100 -
Property, plant and equipment (note 5) 107,395,992 96,737,276
Intangible assets (note 6) 7,681,517 997,723
Goodwill (note 7) 6,864,284 -
Deferred income taxes (note 8) 552,850 2,466,971
Refundable deposit - 1,000,000
122,494,743 101,201,970
154,458,023 135,896,428
Regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred
tax (note 9) 10,985,630 2,894,845
165,443,653 138,791,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

1
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION, continued

As at December 31, 2018

@ bakertilly

2018 2017
$ $
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness (note 25) 3,636,972 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10) 15,345,360 12,823,488
Current portion of long-term debt (note 11) 3,232,267 657,006
Current portion of deposits held (note 15) 705,212 498,000
22,819,811 13,978,494
Non current
Long-term debt (note 11) 26,072,837 5,076,065
Interest rate swaps (note 12) 1,296,751 -
Subordinate Debt (note 13) 23,742,821 23,742,821
Contributed capital (note 14) 33,141,061 31,358,906
Deferred income taxes (note 8) 1,483,328 -
Advances from parent company (note 17) 2,450,663 2,636,879
Deposits held (note 15) 2,426,324 3,343,159
Employee future benefits (note 16) 1,157,004 1,047,729
91,770,789 67,205,559
114,590,600 81,184,053
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (note 18) 27,140,206 27,140,206
Retained earnings 20,067,228 21,551,925
Accumulated other comprehensive income 32,973 32,973
47,240,407 48,725,104
161,831,007 129,909,157
Regulatory deferral account credit balances
and related deferred tax (note 9) 3,612,646 8,882,116
165,443,653 138,791,273
Guarantee (note 19)
Approved on behalf of the Board
Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AND ACCUMULATED OTHER C
For the year ended December 31, 2018
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$6-pakertilly

Accumulated

other
Retained comprehensive
Share capital earnings income Total
$ $ $ $
Balance, December 31, 2016 27,140,206 20,663,101 140,871 47,944 178
Net income for the year - 2,325,824 - 2,325,824
Other comprehensive loss - - (107,898) (107,898)
Dividends paid - (1,437,000) - (1,437,000)
Balance, December 31, 2017 27,140,206 21,551,925 32,973 48,725,104
Net income for the year - 1,572,303 - 1,572,303
Dividends paid - (3,057,000) - (3,057,000)
Balance, December 31, 2018 27,140,206 20,067,228 32,973 47,240,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

3
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2018

@ bakertilly

2018 2017
$ $
Revenue
Distribution revenue 21,616,917 15,108,008
Cost of power revenue 80,224,152 74,225,796
101,841,069 89,333,804
Cost of power purchased 85,026,423 75,934,541
Gross profit 16,814,646 13,399,263
Other income (note 20) 2,225,644 1,219,972
Gross income from operations 19,040,290 14,619,235
Expenses
Amortization 6,127,765 3,598,756
Operating expenses (note 21) 11,592,217 9,398,125
Loss on interest rate swap (note 12) 1,296,751 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (469,800) (23,480)
18,546,933 12,973,401
Income before undernoted items and income taxes 493,357 1,645,834
Finance income (note 22) (412,185) (322,760)
Finance costs (note 22) 1,845,190 1,602,606
Income (loss) before income taxes and net movement in regulatory
deferral accounts, net of deferred tax (939,648) 365,988
Provision for income taxes (note 8)
Current 877,089 823,576
Deferred 3,397,449 473,987
4,274,538 1,297,563
Loss before net movement in regulatory deferral accounts, net of
deferred tax (5,214,186) (931,575)
Net movement in regulatory deferral accounts, net of deferred tax 6,786,489 3,257,399
Net income for the year 1,572,303 2,325,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

4
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (C. ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

2018 2017

$ $

Net income for the year 1,572,303 2,325,824

Comprehensive loss

Actuarial loss, not reclassified to net income - (146,800)
Actuarial loss related deferred income tax not reclassed to net income - 38,902
Comprehensive loss - (107,898)
Net income and comprehensive income (loss) for the year 1,572,303 2,217,926

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

5
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2018

@ bakertilly

2018 2017
$ $
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
Operating activities
Net income for the year 1,572,303 2,325,824
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 5,945,076 3,678,454
Amortization of intangible asset 581,968 175,389
Deferred income taxes 3,397,449 473,987
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 483,939 (23,480)
Change in employee future benefits 109,275 24,388
Current income tax 877,089 823,576
Net finance costs 1,433,005 1,279,846
Recognition of contributed capital (1,229,868) (707,028)
Loss on interest rate swap 1,296,751 -
14,466,987 8,050,956
Change in non-cash working capital items (note 23) (6,303,438) 2,391,201
8,163,549 10,442,157
Investing activities
Purchase of long-term investment (100) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,127,731) (5,454,493)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 23,480
Change in regulatory deferral accounts (13,360,255) (391,411)
Purchase of intangible assets (7,225,762) (737,353)
Refundable deposit 1,000,000 (1,000,000)
Proceeds of contributed capital 3,012,023 1,405,507
Purchase of goodwill (6,864,284) -
(40,566,109) (6,154,270)
Financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt (747,844) (641,184)
Proceeds of long-term debt 24,319,877 -
Advances from parent company (186,216) 83,234
Interest paid (1,845,190) (1,602,606)
Dividends paid (3,057,000) (1,437,000)
18,483,627 (3,597,556)
Increase (decrease) in cash (13,918,933) 690,331
Cash - beginning of year 10,381,961 9,691,630
Cash (bank indebtedness) - end of year (3,536,972) 10,381,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

6
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. (the "Company") is a subsidiary of Newmarket Hydro
Holdings Inc. and was formed as a result of the amalgamation of Newmarket Hydro Ltd. and Tay
Hydro Electric Distribution Company Inc. on May 1, 2007. The purchase of Midland Power Utility
Corporation ("Midland PUC") was approved by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) in 2018. Midland
PUC was amalgamated by the Company effective September 7, 2018. Tay Hydro Inc. has a 7%
non-controlling interest in the Company. The address of its registered office and its principal place
of business is 590 Steven Ct, Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z2.

The principal activity of the Company is to distribute electricity to the residents and businesses in
the Town of Newmarket, Town of Midland and the Township of Tay under licence issued by the
Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The Company is regulated by the OEB and adjustments to its
distribution rates require OEB approval.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC").
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were approved and authorized
for issue by the board of directors on April 30, 2019.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The significant accounting policies are detailed as follows:

(a) Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the relevant accounting

policies.

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

(b) Electricity regulation
The Company is licensed and regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). The OEB is
charged with the responsibility of approving rates for the transmission and distribution of
electricity and the responsibility for ensuring that distribution companies fulfil obligations to
connect and service customers.

The following regulatory policy is practiced in a rate regulated environment:
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . (C. ba ke rti uy

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(b) Electricity regulation, continued
Regulatory accounts

Regulatory accounts represent future revenue or expenses incurred in the current or prior
periods that are expected to be recovered (repaid) through the rate setting process.

These assets and liabilities include various rate and retail variance accounts which arise from
differences in amounts billed to customers (based on regulated rates) and the actual cost of
electricity services to the Company. These amounts are accumulated for accounting
purposes because it is probable that they will be recovered (repaid) in future rates. The
Company continually assesses the likelihood of the recovery of regulatory assets and
likelihood of repayment of regulatory liabilities. If recovery or repayment is no longer
considered probable, the amounts are charged to operations in the year the assessment is
made.

Regulatory accounts recognized at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are
disclosed in note 9.

(c) Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a promised good or service,
a performance obligation under the contract, to a customer and where the company is
entitled to consideration as a result of completion or the performance obligation.

Prior to January 1, 2018, revenue was recognized to the extent that it was probable that
economic benefits will flow to the company and that the revenue can be reliably measured.

Distribution Revenue

Distribution revenue is measured based on the OEB approved rate and the meter readings
for customer usage, net of sales tax and debt retirement charge. Distribution revenue also
includes unbilled revenue accrued in respect of electricity delivered but not yet billed.
Revenue is recognized as electricity is delivered and consumed by customers and
measured.

Cost of Power Revenue
Cost of power revenue is recorded on the basis of the power billed by the Independent
Electricity System Operator ("IESQ").

Contributed Capital

Contributed capital represent certain items of property, plant and equipment which are
acquired or constructed with financial assistance in the form of contributions from
developers. Prior to January 1, 2018 such contributions, whether in cash or in-kind, were
recognized as contributed capital and amortized into income over the life of the related
assets. Contributed capital in-kind were valued at their fair value at the date of their
contribution.
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke r ti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

(©

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition, continued

On implementation of IFRS 15, contributions received from customers where the Company
has an ongoing performance obligation to the customer are within the scope of IFRS 15.
These contributions will be initially recorded at fair value recognized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated life of the contract with the customers. Where contracts are perpetual, the
contributed asset will be used to provide ongoing goods or services to customers and, as
such, the estimated life of the contract with the customers is estimated to be equivalent to the
economical useful life of the asset to which the contribution relates.

Contributions from developers are not within the scope of IFRS 15 as they do not give rise to
a contract with a customer. Currently, there is no specific IFRS guidance on accounting for
contributions received from developers. The Company has an accounting policy for the initial
recognition of such contributions and subsequent recognition of the related revenue, as
described in note 3(h).

Conservation and Demand Management Revenue

Revenues related to Conservation and Demand Management ("CDM") agreements with the
Independent Electricity System Operator ("IESQO") are recognized on a net basis.
Performance fees are recognized as CDM programs are delivered.

Other Income
Other operating revenue is recorded when services are provided.

Cash

Cash consists of balances with financial institutions.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist of parts and supplies acquired for internal construction or
consumption, are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on

a weighted-moving average basis and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the
inventories and other costs to bring the inventories to their existing location and condition.
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
()  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset or its development when those costs are necessarily incurred for the asset to
function in the manner intended by management. When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

All assets having limited useful lives are depreciated using the straight-line or declining
balance method over their estimated useful lives. Assets are depreciated from the date of
acquisition. Internally constructed assets are depreciated from the time an asset is capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.

In the year of acquisition, depreciation is taken at one-half of the below rates on buildings,
distribution equipment, transportation equipment, office and other.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method applied to each class of assets are
reassessed at each reporting date.

The methods of depreciation and depreciation rates applicable for each class of asset are as

follows:
Buildings 25-30 years
Distribution equipment 10-50 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years
Office and other 5-10 years

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of these assets is not
recoverable and exceeds their fair value.

10
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(9) Gooawill and intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software, land rights, licensed customer lists and
goodwill. They are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalized costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, if applicable. Residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to
impairment testing. The useful lives of the intangibles are as follows:

Computer software 3-5 years
Land rights 30 years
Licensed customer list not amortized
Goodwill not amortized

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software, (expenditures relating to patches and other minor updates as well as their
installation), are expensed as incurred.

Land rights are capitalized based on the payments made for easements, right of access and
right of use over land for which the Company does not hold title. Land rights are measured
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The licensed customer list is measured at cost and not amortized but assessed for
impairment annually.

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired local distribution companies in Midland in excess of
fair value of the net identifiable assets purchased. Goodwill is measured at cost and is not
amortized but assessed for impairment annually.

(h) Contributed capital

Contributions for capital construction consists of contributions from customers and
developers toward the cost of constructing distribution assets. The contributions are
calculated through an economic evaluation as per the OEB Distribution Service Code
(represents fair value) and are recorded as received. Contributed capital is amortized over
the same period as the asset to which they relate, 10 to 50 years.

11
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(i)  Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and regulatory deferral account
debit balances to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

() Related parties

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured
at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by
the related parties. Details of related party transactions and balances are disclosed in note
17.

12
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(k) Employee future benefits

The Company accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement
System ("OMERS"), a multi employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution
plan. Both participating employers and employees are required to make plan contributions
based on the participating employees' contributory earnings. The Company recognizes the
expense related to this plan as contributions are made. No liability has been established for
this plan.

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. These plans are not funded and accordingly have no plan assets. The
Company's net obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that are
expected to be paid out discounted to determine its present value. This calculation is
actuarially performed using the projected unit credit method. The last full valuation
performed was as at December 31, 2017 for Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Limited and
December 31, 2016, updated to September 7, 2018, for Midland Power Utility Company
("Midland PUC").  Service costs are recognized in the Statement of Income in operating
expenses, and include current and past service costs as well as gains and losses on
curtailment. Net interest expense is included in finance costs.

Details related to the post-employment benefits are detailed in note 16.
() Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of income
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). Deferred income taxes
are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In providing for income taxes,
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and their carrying amounts
are reflected as deferred income taxes. The tax rates anticipated to be in effect when these
temporary differences reverse are used to calculate deferred income taxes. Additional details
related to the calculation and method of accounting for PILS is included in note 8.

13
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke r ti uy

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(m) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates. These financial
statements include estimates which, by their nature, are uncertain. The impacts of such
estimates are pervasive throughout the financial statements, and may require accounting
adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions include the following:

Useful lives of depreciable assets - Depreciation and amortization expense is based on
estimates of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The
Company estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets based on management's judgment, historical experience and an asset study
conducted by an independent consulting firm.

Payment in lieu of taxes payable - The company is required to make payments in lieu of
taxes calculated on the same basis as income taxes on taxable income earned. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision and liability or asset for income taxes.
Changes in deferred taxes may be required due to changes in future tax rates.

Employee future benefits - The cost of providing certain health, dental and life insurance
benefits on behalf of its retired employees are determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation uses managements assumptions which have been outlined in note 15.

Accounts receivable impairment - In determining the allowance for doubtful accounts, the
Company considers the life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the account balance.

(n) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

Some of the Company's assets may have provision obligations. As the Company expects to
use the majority of its fixed assets for an indefinite period, no removal costs can be
determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any asset
retirement obligations has not been made at this time.

14
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(o) Financial Instruments

Financial assets are identified and classified based on the business model used by the
Company for managing those financial assets, as one of the following: at amortized cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair value through profit or loss. Prior to
January 1, 2018, the financial assets were identified and classified as one of the following:
measured at fair value through profit or loss or loans and receivables. Financial assets that
were not classified in any of the above categories were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets. Financial liabilities continue to be classified as measured at fair value
through profit or loss or at amortized cost, as there is no change in classification of financial
liabilities under IFRS 9.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a net basis when the Company has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

At amortized cost

Accounts receivable, due from related parties and unbilled revenue are classified as financial
assets at amortized cost. These financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, if any. After initial recognition, they are measured at
amortized cost when they are held for collection of cash flows, where those cash flows solely
represent payments of principal and interest using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset, or a shorter period when appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset.

15
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NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke r t i lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(o) Financial Instruments, continued

The Company's bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, customer
deposits, subordinate debt, due to related parties and long term debt are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost and recognized on the date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual arrangement. Financial liabilities are derecognized when
the contractual obligations are are discharged, cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities are
initially recognized at fair value including discounts and premiums, plus directly attributable
transaction costs, such as issue expenses, if any. Subsequently, these liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling, where
the assets' cash flows solely represent payments of principal and interest, are classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. These financial assets
are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses recognized in other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment
losses, reversal of impairment losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses, gain or loss previously recognized in net income. On de-recognition of the financial
asset, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to net income. Interest income from these financial assets is recognized as other
income using the effective interest rate method. As at December 31, 2018, the Company
does not have any financial assets, classified at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

At fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include instruments that are
designated as financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or those financial
instruments that do not meet the criteria for classification under any other category. Upon
initial recognition, directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in net income as
incurred. Changes in fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized in net income.

Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost

The policy for accounts receivable and unbilled revenue allowances is to measure at an
amount equal to the life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The policy for other financial assets is
at life-time expected credit loss if credit risk increased significantly, if not, then at 12-month
expected loss.

16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(p) Change in Accounting Policies
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Company adopted IFRS 9 using the retrospective approach. The adoption resulted in no
impact to the opening balances of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 replaces
IAS 30 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The new standard amends
the requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, impairment, and
hedge accounting. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes profit or loss, and fair value through other comprehensive income. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. The Company's updated accounting policies resulting
from implementation of the new standard, along with analysis of the changes from the
previous accounting standard as set out in the Financial Instruments section of the significant
accounting policies.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach with the
cumulative effect of any adjustments recognized in the opening balance of retained earnings
as of January 1, 2018. However, the implementation of IFRS 15 did not result in any
adjustment to the retained earnings or to the presentation of the financial statements. IFRS
15 is based on the core principal to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods and
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15 focuses on the transfer of
control. IFRS 15 replaces all of the revenue guidance that previously existed in IAS 11 -
Construction Contracts and IAS 18 - Revenue and related interpretations. The Company's
updated accounting policies resulting from implementation of the new standard, along with
analysis of the changes from the previous accounting standard are set out in the Revenue
Recognition section of the significant accounting policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(q) New Standards and interpretations not yet effective or adopted
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and brings leases onto companies’ balance sheets,
increasing the visibility of their assets and liabilities. IFRS 16 removes the classification of
leases as either operating or finance leases for the lessee treating all leases as finance
leases. Short term and low value assets are exempt from these requirements.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments provides guidance on the recognition and
measurement of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities under IAS 12 - Income Taxes,
where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors have been amended by the IASB in October 2018. The
amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied. The amendments
ensure that the definition is consistent across all IFRS standards. Early adoption is permitted.

The Company is currently assessing the impact that the standards will have on the

statements.
4. LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
2018 2017
$ $
Utility Collaborative Services Inc. (UCS), recorded using the cost
method, 100 common shares, 16.7% interest 100 -

Utility Collaborative Services Inc. (UCS) provides billing, mailing, call centre and IT infrastructure
services for Midland PUC customers. The Company has given formal notice of retraction of the
shares in UCS on January 16, 2019 effective May 16, 2019. The notice period is 3 years or a
penalty equal to the previous 3 years of service fees will be levied.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and Distribution Transportation Office and
building equipment equipment other Total
$ $ $ $
Cost
At January 1,

2018 5,766,004 100,777,027 1,584,860 2,045,656 110,173,547
Additions 20,000 18,329,033 1,276,849 644,025 20,269,907
Disposals (69,278) (602,099) (311,366) (16,637) (999,380)
At December

31,2018 5,716,726 118,503,961 2,550,343 2,673,044 129,444,074
Amortization
At January 1,

2018 36,181 11,577,090 866,789 956,211 13,436,271
Additions (11,186) 8,291,633 585,132 180,741 9,046,320
Disposals (8,264) (182,859) (226,749) (16,637) (434,509)
At December

31,2018 16,731 19,685,864 1,225,172 1,120,315 22,048,082
Net book

amount at

December

31,2018 5,699,995 98,818,097 1,325,171 1,652,729 107,395,992
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, continued
Land and Distribution Transportation Office and
building equipment equipment other Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cost
At January 1,

2017 5,753,667 96,257,378 1,446,777 1,261,232 104,719,054
Additions 12,337 4,519,649 138,083 784,424 5,454,493
At December

31,2017 5,766,004 100,777,027 1,584,860 2,045656 110,173,547
Amortization
At January 1,

2017 27,069 8,348,700 591,468 790,580 9,757,817
Additions 9,112 3,228,390 275:321 165,631 3,678,454
At December

31, 2017 36,181 11,577,090 866,789 956,211 13,436,271
Net book

amount at

December

31,2017 5,729,823 89,199,937 718,071 1,089,445 96,737,276

Included in distribution equipment additions is amortization expense of $86,445 (2017 - $255,087)
and work in progress of $1,968,992 (2017 - $15,115). Included in land and building is land with a
value of $5,576,475 (2017 - $5,556,475). Included in the 2018 cost additions are amounts related
to the Midland PUC purchase. Refer to note 24.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2018
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
$ $ $
Computer software 1,047,092 722,237 324,855
Land rights 417,871 76,576 341,295
Licensed customer list 7,015,367 - 7,015,367
8,480,330 798,813 7,681,517
2017
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
$ $ $
Computer software 1,413,910 753,635 660,275
Land rights 400,375 62,927 337,448
1,814,285 816,562 997,723

During the year, the Company had additions of $7,225,762 (2017 - $737,353), disposals of
$559,717 (2017 - $Nil) and amortization of $581,968 (2017 - $175,389). Additions are a result of
the acquisition of Midland PUC during 2018. Refer to Note 24 for business combination

disclosures.
7 GOODWILL
2018
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
3 $ $
Goodwill 6,864,284 - 6,864,284
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i GOODWILL, continued

Goodwill, representing 4.2% of the Company's total assets, is allocated to the entire business as a
cash generating unit. The goodwill at December 31, 2018 of $6,864,334 (2017 - $Nil) represents
the cost of acquired local distribution companies in excess of fair value of the net identifiable
assets purchased and is not amortized.

Based on the results of the annual goodwill impairment test, the Company determined that the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is more than its carrying value. No impairment
has been recorded in the period ended December 31, 2018.

The impairment analysis involves the use of an income approach that relies on estimating the net
future cash flows and applying the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. This
approach employs several assumptions: projected revenue growth, market expectations, financial
margin, operating and administrative expenses, working capital requirements, future capital
expenditure requirements, income tax rates, regulatory capital management requirements, as well
as an appropriate discount rate. If future growth and results of the CGU differs significantly from
management's current best estimates, it is reasonably possible that this could have an adverse
impact on the estimate recoverable amounts of the CGU, including the amounts allocated to
goodwill.

8. INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes assets are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In
providing for income taxes, temporary differences between the tax basis of the underlying assets
and their carrying amounts as per the financial statements are reflected as deferred income taxes.
When the tax basis is greater than the carrying amount, a deferred tax asset is created. The tax
rates anticipated to be in effect when these temporary differences reverse are used to calculate
deferred income taxes.

Opening Closing
balance at balance at
January 1, Recognize in December 31,
2018 net income 2018
$ $ $
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and
cumulative eligible capital 2,189,320 (2,189,320) -
Reserves deductible when paid 277 651 275,199 552,850
2,466,971 (1,914,121) 552,850
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8. INCOME TAXES, continued
Opening Closing
balance at balance at
January 1, Recognize in December 31,
2017 net income 2017
$ $ $
Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment and
cumulative eligible capital 1,859,780 329,540 2,189,320
Reserves deductible when paid 232,275 45,376 277,651
2,092,055 374,916 2,466,971

Deferred income taxes assets are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In
providing for income taxes, temporary differences between the tax basis of the underlying
liabilities and their carrying amounts as per the financial statements are reflected as deferred
income taxes. When the tax basis is less than the carrying amount, a deferred tax liability is
created. The tax rates anticipated to be in effect when these temporary differences reverse are
used to calculate deferred income taxes.

Opening Closing
balance at balance at
January 1, Recognize in December 31,
2018 net income 2018
$ $ $
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - 1,483,328 1,483,328
2018 2017
$ $
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 552,850 2,466,971
2018 2017
$ $
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,483,328 -

Included in reserves deductible when paid are post-employment benefits and net unrealized
losses. Included in tax basis of property, plant and equipment are goodwill and intangible assets.

23



224
NEWMARKET-TAY POWER DISTRIBUTION LTD.

For the year ended December 31, 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke r ti lly

8. INCOME TAXES, continued

The provision for income taxes recorded in the financial statements differs from the amount which
would be obtained by applying the statutory income tax rate of 39.5% (2017 - 39.5%) to the

income (loss) for the years as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Income (loss) for the year before income taxes (939,648) 365,988
Net movement in regulatory deferral accounts 4,802,272 3,522,000
3,862,624 3,887,988

Anticipated income tax 1,525,736 1,535,755

Tax effect of the following:

Permanent expense differences 7,739 230,026
Other comprehensive income - (57,986)
General rate reduction (502,141) 131,523
Impact of deferred taxes and other 3,243,204 (541,755)
Provision for income taxes 4,274,538 1,297,563
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9. REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNTS

All amounts deferred as regulatory deferral account debit balances are subject to approval by the
OEB. As such, amounts subject to deferral could be altered by the regulators. Remaining recovery
periods are those expected and the actual recovery or settlement periods could differ based on
OEB approval. Due to previous, existing or expected future regulatory articles or decisions, the
Company has the following amounts expected to be recovered in future periods which are

comprised of the following:

Remaining
recovery/
reversal Net balances
period December 31, arisinginthe Recovered in December 31,
Note (years) 2017 period the period 2018
$ $ $ $
Regulatory deferral account debit
Retail
settlement
variance
account i 1 (54,843) 4,438,205 - 4,383,362
Other ii A 758,386 1,588,549 - 2,346,935
Deferred tax
debit
balance iii A 2,191,302 2,064,031 - 4,255,333
2,894,845 8,090,785 - 10,985,630
Regulatory deferral account credit
Recovery
Account iv A 508,729 209,795 (688,655) 29,869
Other i A 203,217 (111,505) - 91,712
IFRS
Conversion v 1 7,648,830 (645,620) (4,378,158) 2,625,052
Deferred tax
credit
balance iii A 521,340 344,673 - 866,013
8,882,116 (202,657) (5,066,813) 3,612,646
(A) These amounts are expected to reverse when the company submits their next cost of

service filing which is anticipated to be within the next ten years.
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9. REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNTS, continued

(i) Retail Settlement Variance Account variances represent the difference between the amounts
charged by the company to its customers, and the amounts paid by the company to the
Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO”) and Hydro One for the cost of energy. The
settlement variances include network and connection service charges, energy sales and the
global adjustment. The balance for settlement variances and carrying charges are calculated and
recorded on a monthly basis.

(i) Other Deferral Accounts include debit and credit balances in other regulatory assets, including
Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism variances, Smart Metering Entity Charge variances, Retail
Cost variances, IFRS transition expenditures, payments in lieu of taxes and Smart Meter
expenditures. The costs incurred in these deferral accounts have been captured for future
recovery or settlement. Carrying charges are recorded monthly on the opening balances.

(ii) Deferred tax on the regulatory balances that will ultimately be recovered from/paid back to its
customers.

(iv) Recovery Accounts are used to record the disposition of deferral and variance account
balances that have been approved by the OEB. The variances are to be recovered or settled
when the company submits their next Cost of Service filing.

(v) In 2012, the Company adjusted the estimated useful life related to the amortization period for
certain capital assets, based upon the Ontario Energy Board's regulatory accounting direction as
contained in the revised 2012 Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity Distributors. As a
result of OEB direction related to the settlement of these amounts, the company has recorded a
payable in the deferral account of $2,625,052 (2017 - $7,648,830).

In 2018, the Company was approved through its annual Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM)
application to the OEB for the settlement of this balance. The Company is continuing to refund
this balance until April 30th of 2019, after which any remainder is expected to be approved for
settlement through their 2019 IRM and the amount will be refunded to its respective customers by
class over a one year period. This balance also includes $569,566 of carrying charges based on
the Company's weighted average cost of capital.

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2018 2017

$ $

Accounts payable - purchased power 6,371,866 5,201,533
Other trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,719,980 3,239,529
Water and sewer billings payable (note 17) 2,490,850 2,606,698
Credits on customer accounts 1,430,903 1,482,348
Conservation demand management programs 331,761 293,380

15,345,360 12,823,488
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1. LONG-TERM DEBT

2018 2017
$ $
(a) Bank loan payable, 4.41% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $50,957 10,142,213 E
(b) Bank loan payable, 4.4% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $42,611 7,721,893 -
(c) Bank loan payable, 2.44% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $65,738 5,076,065 5,733,071
(d) Bank loan payable, 4.26% fixed rate, payable in blended
monthly payments of $33,088 4,364,933 -
(e) Bank loan payable, 30 day bankers acceptances, interest
only, no defined terms of repayment 2,000,000 -

29,305,104 5,733,071

Less principal payments due within one year 3,232,267 657,006

Due beyond one year 26,072,837 5,076,065

(a) The bank loan payable is a 30 year term loan due October 9, 2048 with a payment due at
maturity of $50,957. Refer to note 12 and 28 for details on interest rate swap agreements.

(b) The bank loan payable is a 10 year term loan due October 10, 2028 with a payment due at
maturity of $5,633,365. Refer to note 12 and 28 for details on interest rate swap agreements.

(c) The bank loan payable is a 5 year term loan due December 10, 2020 with a payment due at
maturity of $3,771,150. Refer to note 12 and 28 for details on interest rate swap agreements.

(d) The bank loan payable is a 15 year term loan due October 11, 2033 with a payment due at
maturity of $33,088. Refer to note 12 and 28 for details on interest rate swap agreements.

(e) The Company has $4,000,000 available in the form of a demand loan bearing interest at prime
plus 0%. As at year-end $2,000,000 has been drawn upon.
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1. LONG-TERM DEBT, continued

Estimated principal repayments are as follows:

$

2019 3,232,267
2020 4,986,701
2021 609,758
2022 636,812
2023 665,066
Subsequent years 19,174,500
29,305,104

12. INTEREST RATE SWAPS

To reduce exposure to interest rate fluctuations, the Company entered into four interest rate
swaps during the year where they pay a fixed interest rate over the term of the loan. As at
December 31, 2018, the mark-to-market loss related to the swap agreement is $1,296,751.

13. SUBORDINATE DEBT

2018 2017
$ $
Note payable, 5.48% - Township of Newmarket 22,000,000 22,000,000
Note payable, 5.48% - Township of Tay 1,742,821 1,742,821
23,742,821 23,742,821

Estimated principal repayments are as follows:
$
Unspecified 23,742 821

These promissory notes are subordinated and postponed to all the bank loans payable listed in
Note 11. No repayment of this subordinated debt is permissible until all payment obligations of the

bank loans payable listed in Note 11 are fulfilled.
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14.

15.

16.

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
$ $
Deferred contributions, net, beginning of year 31,358,906 30,660,427
Contributed capital received 3,012,023 1,405,507
Contributed capital recognized as revenue (note 20) (1,229,868) (707,028)
33,141,061 31,358,906
DEPOSITS HELD

Deposits held represent cash deposits from electricity distribution customers and retailers, as well
as construction deposits.

Deposits from electricity distribution customers are refundable to customers demonstrating an
acceptable level of credit risk as determined by the Company in accordance with policies set out
by the OEB or upon termination of their electricity distribution service.

Construction Deposits represent cash payments from developers in order to secure the
performance of the developer's obligations under the Construction Agreement for Expansion
Facilities and Connection Assets Supplied by Developer - Residential Subdivision (The
Construction Agreement).

2018 2017

$ $

Current portion of customer deposits 705,212 498,000
Long-term portion of customer deposits 2,208,681 2,322,251
Long-term portion of construction deposits 217,643 1,020,908

2,426,324 3,343,159

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company provides certain health, dental and life insurance benefits for retired employees
pursuant to the Company's policy. The accrued benefit obligation and net periodic expense for
the year were determined by an actuarial valuation. The most recent valuation was performed for
December 31, 2017 for Newmarket-Tay Hydro Distribution Limited and December 31, 2016 for
Midland PUC, updated for September 7, 2018.

Information about the Company's defined benefit plan is as follows:
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16. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS, continued

2018 2017

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 1,047,729 876,508

Accrued benefit obligation, Midland PUC, September 7, 2018 92,705 -

Current service cost 30,207 38,200
Interest expense 36,945 33,300
Benefits paid (57,174) (47,079)
Actuarial loss 6,592 146,800

1,157,004 1,047,729

Current service costs and interest on accrued benefit obligation are recognized in the statement of
income. Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions are accounted for in other
comprehensive income. The total benefit costs for the year is $73,744 (2017 - $218,300).

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of Newmarket-Tay staff are the discount rate of
3.4% (2017 - 3.4%), salary increase rate of 2.8% (2017 - 2.8%), cost trend including health
benefits of 5.96% (2017 - 6.20%) and dental benefits 4.5% (2017 - 4.5%) and retirement age of
65 (2017 - 65). The health benefits are expected to decrease at 0.25% per year until 2025 when it
reaches 4.50% and dental benefits will remain at 4.50% to 2025. The actuarial assumptions used
in the valuation of Midland PUC is a discount rate of 3.7%.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of Midland PUC staff for post-retirement life
insurance is an assumed 10% of the total benefit obligation (2017 - 10%).

The impact of a change in the actuarial assumptions would have the following impact on the

obligation:
Defined
Reasonable benefit
possible obligation
change change Difference Difference
% $ $ %
Discount rate 1 1,017,100 (139,904) (12)
Discount rate (1) 1,335,100 178,096 15
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND ADVANCES FROM PARENT COMPANY

(a) The Company entered into transactions with its majority parent, Newmarket Hydro Holdings
Inc. (NHHI) and with The Town of Newmarket which is the sole shareholder of Newmarket
Hydro Holdings Inc. Revenue charged during the year included energy, street light capital
and street light maintenance charged at commercial rates to the Town of Newmarket.

Included in accounts payable (note 10) are water and sewer amounts collected which are
due to the Town. These amounts are collected and remitted in accordance with a contract
with URB Olameter.

Included in subordinate debt (note 13) are notes payable to related parties.

(b) Transactions

These transactions are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

2018 2017
$ $
Revenue

Energy sales 2,707,348 2,035,574
Services - Street light capital 1,380 25,770
Services - Street light maintenance 19,686 59,268
2,728,414 2,120,612

Expenses
Interest 1,205,600 1,205,600
Rent and property tax 440,874 424,988

1,646,474 1,630,588

(c) The following amounts are due from the Town of Newmarket and Envi Networks Ltd. and
included in the financial statements:

2018 2017

$ $

Town of Newmarket accounts receivable 310,709 310,627
Envi Networks Ltd. accounts receivable 153,451 -

464,160 310,627
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17.

18.

19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, continued

(d) The following amount is due to the parent company:

2018 2017
$ $
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. 2,450,663 2,636,879

Advances from the parent company, Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. includes promissory
notes in the amount of $2,153,000 (2017 - $2,153,000) which are due March 16, 2022. The
remainder of the balance has no specific terms of repayment. As the parent company has
confirmed they will not request repayment of this amount during the next fiscal year, the
amount has been classified as a non-current liability in the financial statements.

The balances are unsecured and bear interest at the OEB deemed debt rate of 5.48% for
2018 (2017 - 5.48%).

The key management personnel of the company has been defined as members of its board
of directors, executives, and other management personnel. Total wages and benefits to
these individuals total $2,606,622 (2017 - $2,136,294).

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized

Unlimited number of common shares

Issued
2018 2017
$ $
10,000 Common shares 27,140,206 27,140,206
GUARANTEE

The Company has guaranteed loans of Envi Networks Ltd., a related company, to a maximum of
$3,500,000. As at December 31, 2018 Envi Networks Ltd. had $1,225,000 of loans outstanding to
which the guarantee applies.
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20. OTHER INCOME

Other income consists of the following:

2018 2017

$ $

Account set up fees 132,142 121,290

Pole and building rentals 237,278 137,535

Collection charges 125,994 133,932
Non rate-regulated utility operations, net 214,034 -

Recognition of contributed capital (note 14) 1,229,868 707,028

Other 286,328 120,187

2,225,644 1,219,972

21. OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses consist of the following:

2018 2017

$ $

Wages and benefits 5,295,734 4,253,254
Materials, equipment and other operating expenses 2,098,184 1,678,827
Administration and overhead 4,198,299 3,466,044

11,592,217 9,398,125

The prior year amounts have been restated to conform to current year classifications.

22. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Finance income recognized in net income consists of the following:

2018 2017

$ $

Interest income on accounts receivable 188,978 186,503
Income on cash balance 130,245 109,120
Interest income on regulatory balances 92,962 27,137
412,185 322,760

Finance costs recognized in net income consists of the following:
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22. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS, continued

2018 2017

$ $

Interest on long-term debt 1,804,387 1,569,558
Customer deposit interest 40,803 33,048
1,845,190 1,602,606

23. CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS

2018 2017

$ $

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (4,013,341) 824,122
Decrease (increase) in inventories (23,240) 16,195
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (165,475) 201,361
Decrease (increase) in unbilled revenue (2,635,259) 2,145,538
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,521,872 (1,641,204)
Increase (decrease) in deposits held (709,623) 833,681
Interest received 412,185 322,760
Taxes paid (1,690,557) (1,500,000)
Taxes received - 1,188,748
(6,303,438) 2,391,201
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24,

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Effective September 7, 2018, the Company acquired all issued and outstanding common shares
of Midland PUC, an Ontario regulated local distribution company, from the Corporation of the
Town of Midland. The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method. The total purchase
price for Midland PUC was $21,969,487 plus a working capital adjustment of $256,147. The
results of operations are included in the accounts from the effective date of acquisition. Details of
the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value of net assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Regulatory assets

Goodwill

Long-term investments

Deferred Taxes

Working capital

Contributions in aid of construction
Customer and construction deposits
Long-term debt

Employee future benefits

Deferred taxes

291,344
13,911,878
7,073,929
989,212
6,695,577
100
24,103
(449,651)
(2,142,898)
(223,845)
(3,577,070)
(92,705)
(274,339)

22,225,635

$

Consideration given:

22,225,635

Goodwill of approximately $5,435,577 arising from the Midland PUC acquisition consists largely of
the synergies and economies of scale expected from combining the operations of Newmarket and
Midland PUC. This is in addition to goodwill of $1,260,000 previously recorded as an asset by
Midland PUC. Midland PUC contributed revenues of $6,040,431 and $285,871 of net loss to the
Company's financial results for the year ended December 31, 2018. All costs related to the
acquisition have been expensed through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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25. SHORT TERM CREDIT FACILITIES

The Company has $7,250,000 available in operating facilities from a major chartered bank,
reduced from $11,750,000 in the year. The facilities include a 364 day committed revolving
operating loan, bearing interest at prime plus 0%, to be repaid within one year from date of
acquisition unless extended by the bank. A commitment fee of 0.125% per annum, payable
quarterly applies to any unused portion of the facility. As at December 31, 2018 the Company has
$2,865,805 (2017 - $Nil) on this facility with reconciling items of $915,182. The operating loan
includes restrictive clauses with respect to repayment.

The Company has provided prudential support in the amount of $3,861,670 to the Independent
Electricity System Operator. The prudential support is secured by a letter of credit with a major
chartered bank for $3,861,670, contains restrictive clauses with respect to debt repayments and
bears interest at 0.5% per annum.

A general security agreement covering all assets of the Company and assignment of
business/liability insurance has been pledged as security for the operating facilities. At December
31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all covenants.

Included in the Company's bank indebtedness balance is restricted cash in the amount of
$244,015, which consists of monies received by the Company from the Ontario provincial
government to administer the Affordability Fund Trust (AFT) program.

The AFT was established as part of the Fair Hydro Act, to serve house-holds not eligible for
income qualified electricity support services. The AFT exists as a legal trust and the Company is
only able to offer disbursements to qualified beneficiaries.

26. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees' Retirement Fund
(O.M.E.R.S.), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of retirement benefits to be received by the employees
based on the length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to O.M.E.R.S. for the year ended was $511,737 (2017 - $423,036).

27. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Company’s primary objective when managing capital is to address the expectations as
provided in the Shareholder Agreement between the Company’s parent company, Newmarket
Hydro Holdings Inc. and its shareholder, the Town of Newmarket. The expectation is that the
Company will maintain a prudent financial structure in order to safeguard the Company's assets
and to provide adequate returns for its shareholders and benefits to the stakeholders.

Changes to the Company’s capital structure are constrained by existing covenants contained in
the banking agreement. The Company must maintain a maximum debt to capitalization ratio of
0.60 to 1 and maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.2. As at year end the Company is
compliant with these covenants.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments consist of recorded amounts of cash, accounts receivable and unbilled
revenue which will result in future cash receipts, as well as accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, deposits held, advances from parent company and long-term debt which will result in
future cash outflows.

The Company does not believe that it is exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.
The Company is exposed to the following risks in respect of certain financial instruments held:
(a) Interest rate risk

The Company manages exposure to interest rate risk through a combination of fixed and
floating rate borrowings. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate cash flow risk to the extent that the floating rate credit
facility bears interest at a floating rate. The Company is also exposed to interest rate price
risk to the extent that loans bear interest at fixed rates and has entered into an interest rate
swap arrangement to manage the impact of fluctuating interest rates on bank loan payable.
The swaps require the periodic exchange of interest payments without the exchange of the
notional principal amount on which the payments are based (notes 11, 12 and 17).

(b) Credit risk

Financial assets carry credit risk that a counter-party will fail to discharge an obligation which
would result in a financial loss. Financial assets held by the Company, such as accounts
receivable, expose it to credit risk. The Company earns its revenue from a broad base of
customers located in the service area. No single customer accounts for revenue in excess of
10% of total revenue.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
impairment and the amount of related impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income. Subsequent recoveries of receivables previously provisioned are credited to the
income statement. The balance of the allowance for impairment at December 31, 2018 is
$93,428 (2017 - $80,360). The Company’s credit risk associated with accounts receivable is
primarily related to payments from distribution customers. The Company has approximately
43,970 customers, the majority of which are residential. Credit risk is managed through
collection of security deposits from customers in accordance with directions provided by the
OEB. As at December 31, 2018, the Company holds security deposits in the amount of
$3,131,536 (2017 - $3,841,159). The Company’s activities provide for a variety of financial
risks, particularly credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The accounts receivable balance
is expected to be fully repaid within 90 days excluding the allowance for doubtful accounts
portion of the balance.
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
(c) Liquidity risk

The Company does have a liquidity risk in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$15,345,360 (2017 - $12,823,488). Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot repay
its obligations when they become due to its creditors. The Company reduces its exposure to
liquidity risk by ensuring that it documents when authorized payments become due,
maintains an adequate line of credit to repay trade creditors and repays long-term debt
interest and principal as they become due. In the opinion of management the liquidity risk
exposure to the Company is low and is not material.

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest

payments:
Between 0-3  Between 4 -
months 12 months Over 1 year
$ $ $
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15,345,360 - -

Deposits held 176,303 528,909 2,426,324
Long-term debt 808,067 2,424,200 49,815,658
Employee future benefits - - 1,157,004
Advances from parent company - - 2,450,663
16,329,730 2,953,109 55,849,649

COMMITMENT

The Company is in negotiations with the Town of Newmarket on a new lease agreement for the
building which was not finalized as of the report date.

The Company entered into a 10 year lease agreement on September 7, 2018, with the Town of
Midland, to rent office space for minimum lease payments of $7,896 per month. In addition, an
agreement was entered into with the Town of Midland to lease various substation properties for a
period of twelve years at $49,980 per annum for the first five years, followed by fair market rental
rate per annum for the remaining term of the lease.
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) In the normal course of business, the Company enters into agreements that meet the definition
of a guarantee. The guarantees include indemnities under lease agreements, purchase and sale
agreements, confidentiality agreements, outsourcing, service and information agreements. The
nature of these indemnification agreements prevents the Company from making a reasonable
estimate of the maximum exposure due to the difficulties in assessing the amount of liability
related to the likelihood and predictability of future events. Historically, the Company has not
made any significant payments under similar indemnification agreements and therefore no
amount has been accrued in the statement of financial position with respect to these agreements.

(b) Indemnity has been provided to all directors and/or officers of the Company for various items
including, but not limited to, all costs to settle suits or actions due to association with the
Company, subject to certain restrictions. The Company has purchased directors' and officers'
liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any potential suits or actions. The amount of any
potential future liability which exceeds the amount of insurance coverage cannot reasonably be
determined.

(c) The Company participates with other municipal utilities in Ontario in an agreement to exchange
reciprocal contracts of indemnity through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange. Under this agreement, the Company is contingently liable for additional assessments
to the extent that premiums collected are not sufficient to cover actual losses, claims and costs
experienced.

31. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The financial statements have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the presentation
used in the current year. Due to a special audit performed in 2018, there was a reclass of
$1,813,255 between cost of power purchased and net movement in regulatory deferral accounts.
The changes do not affect retained earnings or equity and is solely a reclass between accounts
receivable and the regulatory deferral account balances on the balance sheet.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Canada K9J 2V4
To the Shareholders of D: 705.742.3418
Envi Networks Ltd. F: 705.742.9775

www.bakertilly.ca
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Envi Networks Ltd., which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of changes in equity, loss and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ASSURANCE - TAX - ADVISORY

Baker Tilly KDN LLP is a member of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative, which is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Limited.
All members of Baker Tilly Canada Cooperative and Baker Tilly International Limited are separate and independent legal entities.

Peterborough Courtice Lindsay Cobourg
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+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Baker Tilly KDN LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Peterborough, Ontario
April 18, 2019
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2018
$
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash 1,159,184
Short-term investments (note 4) 25,084
HST receivable (note 5) 148,431
Prepaid expenses 12,717
1,345,416
Non current
Property, plant and equipment (note 6) 1,124,966
Intangible assets (note 7) 15,236
Future income taxes (note 8) 292,072
1,432,274
2,777,690
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 257,048
Due to Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. (note 9) 163,451
Bank loan (note 10) 1,200,000
1,610,499
Non current
Future income taxes (note 8) 15,465
1,625,964
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (note 12) 1,300,000
Contributed surplus (note 11) 620,000
Behel (768.274)
1,151,726
2,777,690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

1
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2018
$
Retained earnings - beginning of year -
Net loss for the year (768,274)
Deficit - end of year (768,274)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2
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2018
$
Revenue
Interest Income 84
Expenses
Professional fees (note 5) 503,526
Sub-contractors 209,475
Membership and licenses 138,119
Office and general 75,388
Advertising 60,830
Amortization 24,090
Bank charges and interest 16,232
Travel 6,635
Foreign exchange loss 3,850
Insurance 2214
Meals and entertainment 2,157
Utilities 1,264
Repairs and maintenance 776
Training 409
1,044,965
Loss before income taxes (1,044,881)
Future income taxes (276,607)
Net loss for the year (768,274)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

3
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2018
$
CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
Operating activities
Net loss for the year (768,274)
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 24,090
Future income taxes (276,607)
(1,020,791)
Change in non-cash working capital items
Increase in HST receivable (148,431)
Increase in prepaid expenses (12,717)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 257,048
Increase in due to Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd 153,451
(771,440)
Investing activities
Purchase of short-term investments (25,084)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,148,254)
Purchase of intangible assets (16,038)
(1,189,376)
Financing activities
Bank loan 1,200,000
Issuance of share capital 1,300,000
Contributed surplus 620,000
3,120,000
Increase in cash 1,159,184
Cash - beginning of year "
Cash - end of year 1,159,184

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

4



247
ENVI NETWORKS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Envi Networks Ltd. (the "Company") was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of
Ontario on October 6, 2000 and started operations in 2018. The Company is owned 93% by
Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. and the remaining 7% by Tay Hydro Inc. The address of its
registered office and its principal place of business is 590 Steven Ct, Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z2.

Its primary activity is to provide high speed internet to the Newmarket community by providing its
customers with the necessary infrastructure and equipment to utilize the service. The Company is
looking to expand its operations into other surrounding local areas. The Company is regulated by
the Canadian Radio-television Telecommunications Commission ("CRTC") and American
Registry for Internet Numbers ("ARIN").

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ("IFRIC").
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were approved and authorized
for issue by the board of directors on April 18, 2019.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The significant accounting policies are detailed as follows:

(a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the relevant accounting
policies.

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is also the Company's
functional currency.

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue from service obligations is recognized when the service is rendered. All other
revenues are recorded when amounts are known and collectible.

(c) Cash

Cash consists of balances with financial institutions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if applicable. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset or its development when those costs are necessarily incurred for
the asset to function in the manner intended by management. When parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of property, plant and equipment.

All assets having limited useful lives are depreciated using the straight-line or declining
balance method over their estimated useful lives. Assets are depreciated from the date put in
use. Internally constructed assets are depreciated from the time an asset is capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

In the year of acquisition, depreciation is taken at one-half of the below rates on property,
plant and equipment.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method applied to each class of assets are
reassessed at each reporting date.

The methods of depreciation and depreciation rates applicable for each class of asset are as

follows:
Cable 25 years
Network equipment 5 years
Shelter 10 years
Fences 40 years
Computer hardware 5 years
Office equipment 7 years

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software. They are accounted for using the cost model
whereby capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, as these assets are considered finite. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing. The useful lives of
the intangibles are as follows:

Computer software 5 years straight-line

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software, (expenditure relating to patches and other minor updates as well as their
installation), are expensed as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
() Foreign exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities of the which are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at year end exchange rates. Other assets and liabilities are translated at rates in
effect at the date the assets were acquired and liabilities incurred. Revenue and expenses
are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at their transaction dates. The resulting gains
or losses are included in operations.

(g) Related parties

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured
at the exchange amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by
the related parties.

(h) Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of income
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC). Deferred income taxes
are calculated using the liability method of tax accounting. In providing for income taxes,
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and their carrying amounts
are reflected as deferred income taxes. The tax rates anticipated to be in effect when these
temporary differences reverse are used to calculate deferred income taxes. Additional details
related to the calculation and method of accounting for PILS is included in note 8.

(i)  Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates. These financial
statements include estimates which, by their nature, are uncertain. The impacts of such
estimates are pervasive throughout the financial statements, and may require accounting
adjustments based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions include the following:

Useful lives of depreciable assets - Depreciation and amortization expense is based on
estimates of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The
Company estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets based on management’s judgment and historical experience.

HST receivable impairment - In determining the allowance for doubtful accounts, the
Company considers the life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the account balance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(j) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

Some of the Company's assets may have provision obligations. As the Company expects to
use the majority of its fixed assets for an indefinite period, no removal costs can be
determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any asset
retirement obligations has not been made at this time.

(k) Financial Instruments

Financial assets are identified and classified based on the business model used by the
Company for managing those financial assets, as one of the following: at amortized cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss or at
amortized cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a net basis when the Company has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Atamortized cost

Cash and short term investments are classified as financial assets at amortized cost.
These financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, if any. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost
when they are held for collection of cash flows, where those cash flows solely represent
payments of principal and interest using the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset, or a shorter period when appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.

The Company's accounts payable and accrued liabilities and bank loan are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost and recognized on the date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual arrangement. Financial liabilities are derecognized
when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. Financial liabilities
are initially recognized at fair value including discounts and premiums, plus directly
attributable transaction costs, such as issue expenses, if any. Subsequently, these
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.




251
ENVI NETWORKS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
(k) Financial Instruments, continued
(i) At fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling,
where the assets' cash flows solely represent payments of principal and interest, are
classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. These
financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at fair
value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment losses, reversal of impairment losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses, gain or loss previously recognized in
net income. On de-recognition of the financial asset, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to net income.
Interest income from these financial assets is recognized as other income using the
effective interest rate method. As at December 31, 2018, the Company does not have
any financial assets classified at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(iii) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include instruments that are
designated as financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or those financial
instruments that do not meet the criteria for classification under any other category.
Upon initial recognition, directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in net
income as incurred. Changes in fair value of financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in net income.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost

The policy of accounts receivable allowances is to measure at an amount equal to the
life-time expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The policy for other financial assets is at life-time
expected credit loss if credit risk is increased significantly, if not, then at 12-month
expected loss.

4. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

2018
3

Term deposit held with TD Canada Trust at an interest rate of 1.4% per annum
with a maturity date of January 4, 2019. 25,084

This short-term investment is related to a stand-by letter of guarantee in the amount of $25,000.
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b. HST RECEIVABLE
2018
3
HST receivable 250,431
Allowance for doubtful collection (102,000)
148,431

The allowance for doubtful collections has been included in professional fees as an expense on

the statement of loss.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2018

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

d $ $

Cable 467,619 4,405 463,214
Network equipment 345,997 14,946 331,051
Shelter 304,326 2,752 301,574
Fences 18,154 - 18,154
Computer hardware 11,065 1,106 9,959
Office equipment 1,093 79 1,014
1,148,254 23,288 1,124,966

In the current year there were no writedowns or disposals of property, plant and equipment.
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

$ $ $
Computer software 16,038 802 15,236

10
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10.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

The Company follows the tax allocation method of accounting for income taxes whereby the
income tax provision is based on the income reported in the accounts. Under this method, the
Company makes full provision for income taxes deferred as a result of claiming revenues and
expenses for income tax purposes on a different basis than that for accounting purposes.

2018
$

Future tax asset - loss carryforward 292,072

The Company expects to be able to use the above tax loss carryforwards before they expire.

2018
$

Future tax liability - property, plant and equipment greater than undepreciated
capital cost 15,465

RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Company entered into transactions with Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution
Inc. ("Newmarket-Tay") and Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc., a majority shareholder.

Reimbursement of expenses paid on the Company's behalf of $327,985 were paid to Newmarket-
Tay and an amount of $153,451 is due by the Company to Newmarket-Tay.as at December 31,
2018.

These transactions are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties. These amounts have no specific terms of
repayment.

BANK LOAN
2018
$
Interim construction facility loan 1,200,000

The Company has an interim construction facility loan with total credit available of $3,500,000.
The loan is payable on demand with interest to be paid monthly bearing a rate of prime plus
0.25% per annum. The loan will be fully repaid in five years with the proceeds of a committed
reducing term facility loan. The contract term starts five years from the date of drawdown of the
interim construction facility loan.

A general security agreement covering all assets of the Company and assignment of
business/liability insurance has been pledged as security for the interim construction facility.

Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd. is a limited guarantor of advances in the amount of the
$3,500,000 credit available to Envi Networks Ltd.
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ENVI NETWORKS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti lly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

1.

12.

13.

14.

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The Company received a non-share capital investment in Envi Networks Ltd. during 2018 of
$620,000. The investment contains no contractual obligation for the borrower to repay the
contribution.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized

Unlimited number of common shares

Issued

2018
$

100 Common shares 1,300,000

During the year Newmarket Hydro Holdings Inc. purchased 93 shares and Tay Hydro Inc.
purchased 7 shares in Envi Networks Ltd.

COMMITMENTS

Envi Networks Ltd. entered into a sublease agreement on January 1, 2019 with Newmarket-Tay
Power Distributions Ltd. The terms of the lease state equal monthly installments to equal $17,000
per annum with an increase of 3% per annum with no fixed end date.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments consist of recorded amounts of cash, and short term investments which will
result in future cash receipts, as well as accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to
Newmarket-Tay Power Distribution Ltd and bank loan which will result in future cash outflows.

The Company is exposed to the following risks in respect of certain financial instruments held:
(a) Interest rate risk

The Company manages exposure to interest rate risk through floating rate borrowings.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest
rate cash flow risk to the extent that the floating rate credit facility bears interest at a floating
rate.

12



255
ENVI NETWORKS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (G ba ke rti I-ly

For the year ended December 31, 2018

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, continued
(b) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk in United States dollars. Foreign
exchange risk is the risk that the exchange rate that was in effect on the date that an
obligation in a foreign currency was made to the company by a customer, or that an
obligation in a foreign currency was made to the company to a supplier, is different at the
time of settlement than it was at time that the obligation was determined. The Company
reduces its exposure to foreign exchange risk by carefully monitoring exchange rates on
obligations that are made to the company. The company does not utilize financial
instruments to manage its foreign exchange risk

(c) Liquidity risk

The Company does have a liquidity risk in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$257,048. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot repay its obligations when they
become due to its creditors. The Company reduces its exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring
that it documents when authorized payments become due; maintains an adequate line of
credit to repay trade creditors and repays long-term debt interest and principal as they
become due. In the opinion of management the liquidity risk exposure to the Company is
low and is not material.

Between 0-3 Between 4-12

months months Over 1 year

$ $ $
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 257,048 - -
Bank loan - 1,200,000 -

257,048 1,200,000 =

(d) Credit risk

The Company does have credit risk in HST receivable of $148,431. Credit risk is the risk that
one party to a transaction will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss. The Company reduces its exposure to credit risk by performing credit
valuations on a regular basis; granting credit upon a review of the credit history of the
applicant and creating an allowance for bad debts when applicable. The Company maintains
strict credit policies and limits in respect to counterparties. In the opinion of management the
credit risk exposure to the Company is low and is not material.

13
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" ) Town of Newmarket
395 Mulock Drive P.O. Box 328,
Newmarket Newmarket, Ontario, L3Y 4X7

Email: info@newmarket.ca | Website: newmarket.ca | Phone: 905-895-5193

Protection of Trees on Private Property
Staff Report to Council

Report Number: 2019-61

Department(s): Planning & Building Services
Author(s): Meghan White and Ted Horton
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019

Recommendations

1. That the report entitled Protection of Trees on Private Property dated June 17, 2019
be received,;

2. That staff be directed to take the proposed approach for internal and public
consultation;

3. That following the internal and public consultation, issues identified in this report,
together with comments from the public, and Committee, be addressed by staff in a
comprehensive report to the Committee of the Whole with a draft by-law; and

4. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give effect to this
resolution.

Executive Summary

Newmarket has long employed Planning tools to ensure that new trees are planted
during development and that the removal of trees is discouraged. However, despite their
critical ecological benefits and important defining role in most neighbourhoods, the Town
has no tools that prevent the removal of most privately-owned trees.

Council identified Environmental Stewardship as one of its Strategic Pillars for its
Strategic Priorities for the 2018-2022 term. Specifically this pillar relates to leading
proactive planning and action related to climate change and other environmental
initiatives. A main focus of this Pillar is protection of trees in Newmarket.
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This report lays out the many benefits of trees, the results of public consultation related
to increasing the protection of privately-owned trees, and a framework approach for how
this may be achieved. Subject to Council approval, staff will continue to refine the details
of this approach and return with an enacting by-law.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to inform Council on the consultation to date on the matter
of protecting trees on private property and propose a program for moving forward.

Background

As population pressure and economic demand for development increases, the
sustainability of urban forests is threatened. Trees are an intrinsic part of our Town.
They play a vital role in creating and maintaining sustainable communities that attract
and retain residents and businesses. A healthy urban canopy is an investment which
only appreciates over time.

Under the Municipal Act, municipalities have the responsibility to pass by-laws for the

Economic, social and environmental well-being of the municipality, including
respecting climate change; and the

Health, safety and well-being of persons s.10(2)

Trees are a vital part of each of these areas of responsibility, providing economic, social,
and environmental benefits as are discussed in detail later in this report. Trees
contribute to the wellbeing and success of all residents, although they are often
impacted by the land development that also provides benefits to residents. Accordingly,
it is important to develop an approach to tree protection that is both comprehensive by
adequately reflecting the value of trees, but also balanced by ensuring that development
and private property rights are not frustrated.

Tree protection can be achieved through the voluntary efforts from landowners, through
municipal by-laws, and through considering them during the planning process. Since
2005, the Town'’s policies related to trees have advanced the state of tree protection and
replanting in Newmarket. In recent years, Council has adopted a number of policy
documents which reinforce the importance of tree protection. The Official Plan sets
targets for woodlot tree cover, and in the recent Urban Forestry Study the Town, the
Region, and the Lake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority outlined goals for growing
overall tree canopy cover across the entire Town.

The Municipal Act gives municipalities the authority to enact by-laws to prohibit or
regulate the destruction or injuring of trees. Such by-laws are created to protect trees
and natural features from avoiding unnecessary injury, removal, or destruction of trees.
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The Town currently uses a number of tools to
manage canopy cover and the removal of trees,
which will be discussed in the Discussion — Current
Approach section below. However, these tools have
gaps and flaws that leave natural heritage areas
and the trees that define many neighbourhoods
without any protections.

On November 7, 2016, a deputation to Committee
of the Whole resulted in direction to staff to
complete a review of the protection and regulation
of trees. As the tools to influence tree protection can
vary depending on property location (a forest versus
a backyard), and a property’s planning status (a
small home addition versus a new subdivision), a
complete review of tree preservation tools was
necessary to consider how these tools can work
together to protect this valuable asset.

On March 6, 2017, Council adopted the
recommendations of Planning Report 2017-05 and
directed staff to review three tools for tree
preservation:

e The Tree Policy for properties subject to
Planning Act applications

¢ A by-law regulating the removal of trees on
Town-owned lands

e A private tree preservation by-law

Context terms:
Tree Policy:

The Town’s approach to tree
compensation and protection
during Planning Act
applications. This only applies
when a property is in a planning
process, and cannot prevent
tree removal or levy charges for
the unauthorized removals.

Tree By-law:

A By-law that may be adopted
by Council regulating when
trees can be removed. A by-law
can set conditions on the
removal of trees, require
permits, and levy fines for
unauthorized removals. A by-
law can apply to certain areas,
sizes of trees, or numbers of
trees.

Following this, staff presented two reports to Committee of the Whole. The
recommendations of these reports updated the Tree Policy to refine the approach to
compensation for trees removed during development. Pending Council’s decision on
whether to enact a by-law on the removal of privately-owned trees, further changes to
the Tree Policy may also be required. These reports also led to the adoption of a by-law
regulating the removal of trees on Town-owned lands, which was approved by Council

on November 13, 2017.

This report is related to whether to adopt a private tree preservation by-law, and is the
third branch in the Town’s efforts to have a modern and comprehensive approach to the

protection and enhancement of trees in Newmarket.

Protection of Trees on Private Property
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Discussion

This section will present (1) the value of trees, (2) the Town’s current approach to
regulating the removal of trees, (3) the role of trees in maintaining stable
neighbourhoods, (4) a scan of other municipalities’ approaches, and (5) the approach
that is proposed by staff.

Value of Trees

Trees are a capital asset; just as streets, buildings, and recreational facilities are a part
of a community, so too are trees. The economic, environmental, and social benefits of
trees are shared by their owners and surrounding residents, and thus while often
privately-owned, they are akin to a public good. Moreover, trees increase resiliency
against the effects of climate change.

Air Quality

Trees filter particulate matter and air pollutants to improve local air quality.® Trees
accomplish this by taking up from the atmosphere fine particulate matter (PMz.5) emitted
by burning fossil fuels that has been linked to respiratory diseases, cardiovascular
disease, and lung cancer among other effects. Trees in Newmarket remove 40 tonnes of
air pollution annually, benefiting the health of Newmarket residents.

Flooding

Trees intercept rain and help reduce local flooding. Extreme precipitation events in
Southern Ontario are projected to increase in both frequency and intensity under future
climate change scenarios.? This will lead to increased risks of flooding, erosion, and
property damage. Trees in Newmarket help avoid 215,058 cubic metres of water of
runoff each year.

Temperature control

Trees reduce cooling costs in summer through providing shade and reduce heating
costs in winter by blocking wind.® Climate change will cause Newmarket to face warmer
temperatures and greater volatility in weather and temperatures. The number of summer
days with temperatures exceeding 30°C has increased annually and is projected to
continue to increase, which poses health challenges for vulnerable groups such as
seniors. The image provided by Natural Resources Canada below illustrates this
projected trend.

1 D.J. Nowak et al. / Environmental Pollution 193 (2014) 119-129
2 Hengeveld and Whitewood, 2005
8 McPherson & Simpson, 2003
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Areas in Newmarket with fewer trees and less canopy coverage display higher surface
temperatures. This can be easily seen in the pair of images below from the Urban
Forestry Study completed by the Lake Simcoe Region Conservation Authority, the
Region, and the Town. Areas appearing in red on the left map display higher surface
temperatures, with areas appearing in green on the right map having greater canopy
coverage.
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Trees in Newmarket save residents $334,000 annually in energy costs and prevent the
release of 457 tonnes of carbon emissions from heating and cooling.

Property values

Trees increase property values. Whether located on public property adjacent to a home,
on private residential property, or on an adjacent private property, the presence of
mature trees increases the value of a property.* Mature trees are a defining element of
many of Newmarket’s neighbourhoods.

4 Pandit, Ram & Polyakov, Maksym & Tapsuwan, Sorada & Moran, Timothy. (2013). The Effect of Street
Trees on Property Value in Perth. Landscape and Urban Planning. 110. 134-142.
10.1016/j.landurbplan.2012.11.001.
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Mental health and social benefits

Although more difficult to quantify, trees provide a variety of important social benefits
related to health care costs and social connections. For example, urban trees have been
linked with reduced neighborhood crime levels. Some studies have found that apartment
buildings with high levels of trees and gardens planted on the grounds witnessed 52%
fewer crimes than those without trees.®

Research has also shown that trees have demonstrably positive effects on the physical
and mental health of urban residents. Hospital patients were found to recover from
major surgery more quickly and with fewer complications when provided with a view of
trees from their hospital beds.®

Trees and urban parks also improve mental health and overall wellbeing by conveying a
sense of calm, relieving stress, and facilitating relaxation and outdoor activity. For
example, one study found that residents reported better personal health and stronger
social bonds in areas where there was access to green space within one kilometer of
the home.’” Access to natural settings has also been linked to the improvement of
children’s mental health and academic performance,® lower weight and BMI in children
and teens,® and increased longevity in seniors.°

Value conclusion

Trees in Newmarket provide a tremendous range of value to Newmarket residents.
Whether publicly or privately owned, the ecological, social and economic benefits of
trees are shared by all of Newmarket. However, the impact of removing trees is also
shared by all Newmarket residents and is only loosely regulated.

Other forms of change to a property that may have impacts on the surrounding area are
generally regulated by the Town to manage and avoid negative effects. For example,
the zoning by-law prevents overbuilding to maintain neighbourhood character. Equally
so, site plan approval regulates matters like grading to avoid flooding and erosion.
However, the removal of trees can change neighbourhood character, increase the
effects of flooding, and negatively affect a neighbourhood but in most cases, there is no

5 Kuo, F.E. and Sullivan, W.C. 2001. Environment and crime in the inner city: does vegetation reduce
crime? Environmental Behavior 33(3):343-365.

6 Ulrich, R. 1984. View through window may influence recovery from surgery. Science 224: 420-421.

7 Maas, J., van Dillen, S.M.E., Verheij, R.A., and P.P. Groenewegen. 2009. Social contacts as a possible
mechanism behind the relation between green space and health. Health & Place 15: 586-595.

8 Roe, J. and P. Aspinall. 2011. The restorative outcomes of forest school and conventional school in
young people with good and poor behaviour. Urban Forestry & Urban Greening 10: 205-212.

9 Wolch, J., Jerrett, M., Reynolds, K., McConnell, R., Chang, R., Dahmann, N., Brady, K., Gilliland, F., Su,
J.G., and K. Berhane. 2011. Childhood obesity and proximity to urban parks and recreational resources: A
longitudinal cohort study. Health & Place 17: 207-214.

10 Takano, T., Nakamura, K., and M. Watanabe. 2002. Urban residential environments and senior citizens’
longevity in megacity areas: the importance of walkable green spaces. Journal of Epidemiology and
Community Health 56(12): 913-918.
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oversight or regulation of this process. In the next section of this report, the Town'’s
current approach to regulating tree removals will be discussed.

Current approach

Newmarket currently has few restrictions on the injury or removal of trees. There are
generally three categories in which a tree may be considered:

1. Town-owned trees
2. Private trees on lands that are subject to a development agreement
3. Trees on private lands generally

Town-owned trees

Trees that are owned by the Town are protected by Public Tree By-law 2017-59, which
prohibits the injury or removal of Town-owned trees without the consent of the Town and
requires compensation for the trees injured or removed.

Trees during development

Trees that are on lands that are subject to a development agreement (e.g. site plan
approval) with the Town are generally required to be maintained. For example, a newly-
built apartment building or retail store may be required to plant trees in a landscaped
buffer between their parking lot and an adjacent resident’s home. Or in a new
subdivision, the Town may require a tree to be planted in the boulevard in front of each
home.

In some cases these trees are important buffers between development and adjacent
properties, or they are provided along streets to eventually develop into the mature tree
canopy that characterizes many of Newmarket’'s neighbourhoods. As such, trees
planted during development often form part of the expectations of residents of how their
neighbourhood will grow and be maintained.

When a property is subject to a Planning Act application in Newmarket, the Town’s Tree
Policy applies. This Policy allows any tree to be removed to facilitate development.
However, it does require either the replanting of a corresponding amount of trees or the
payment of the value of the replanting to the Town for future plantings and tree
enhancing programs. The proportionate amount of trees are calculated based on the
diameter of a removed tree — a tree that is 30cm in diameter is required to be replaced
with five 6 cm trees, or the cash equivalent.

However, while these trees are required to be maintained by the development
agreement, the enforcement of such requirements is challenging as it requires litigation.
For example, the Town may require the planting of trees as a landscaped buffer
between an apartment and an established neighbourhood, as in the example above.
However, if the trees are removed after development, the Town'’s only recourse is to sue
the property owner and ask the courts to order that trees be replanted.
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Neighbouring residents who reasonably expected that planted trees would be
maintained have no recourse, and the Town'’s resources and willingness to engage in
litigation over tree removals is limited and without guaranteed favourable results.

Privately-owned trees

Trees on lands that are privately owned but not subject to a development agreement
with the Town are generally not protected. Large mature trees on front yards may be a
dominant feature that creates the character of a neighbourhood, but there is no
requirement for a resident to retain them. Densely treed areas in backyards of large lots
may be a feature that residents have come to expect to be retained but there are no
controls in most areas of Town to prevent the clearcutting of such areas. A very limited
number of properties are subject the 2008 Woodlot By-law regulating removal of trees in
specific wooded areas, but even this by-law generally permits tree removals.

Current approach strengths and challenges

The current approach does well when property owners voluntarily comply. When a
property owner is applying for a Planning Act application and voluntarily delays
removing trees until a decision is rendered and agreements are signed, the Town then
gets the replanting and compensation required by the policy. When a property is
developed and a property owner voluntarily retains the trees on the site and maintains
them in a healthy state, the current approach works well.

The current approach does not work well when property owners want to remove trees
outside of the limited duration of time that a Planning Act application is in process. By
way of example, the Town currently has little ability to prevent the removal of trees:

e By the owner of a large wooded lot who wants to increase the ease of
development or avoid compensation

e By aresident who has a large tree whose shade limits their garden

e By an investor who wishes to remove a grove of mature trees on a residential lot
and build a larger house

e By a commercial property owner who wants to increase the visibility of their

property.

Moreover, there are lands in private ownership that are designated Natural Heritage in
the Town’s Official Plan, which calls for the protection of vegetation. These may be
densely forested areas, open space areas, or areas of ecological significance such as
wetlands, floodplains, or steeply sloped areas. In these areas there is no additional
protection of trees despite the Town’s stated commitment in the Official Plan to desire to
protect natural heritage, and despite the important role of trees in flood protection and
ecological health.
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Neighbourhood character

The Town has long valued the stability of neighbourhood character and recently
embarked on a study following the adoption of Interim Control By-law 2019-04 to ensure
that new development respects the established character of neighbourhoods. Many of
Newmarket’s established neighbourhoods have character that can be defined in part by
mature trees, extensive tree canopy, and densely wooded areas. This may vary
between areas, but is an important consideration in the character of neighbourhoods.

However, as discussed above there are few controls on the removal of privately-owned
trees. While the change of buildings is controlled over time through zoning by-laws and
residents can expect a certain degree of consistency in their neighbourhood as a result,
the loss of large mature trees can redefine a neighbourhood and has little oversight.

Private property rights and development

Any discussion of protecting and regulating the removal of trees would be incomplete
without recognizing private property rights and the rights of property owners to develop
their lands. Property owners have the right to develop their lands and use them as they
see fit, although this right is not absolute. It is limited through statutes such as the
Planning Act and zoning by-laws, through controls to limit negative impacts through
property standards by-laws under the Municipal Act, and in many jurisdictions through
tree protection by-laws under the Municipal Act.

It should not be thought that a private tree by-law is a means to prevent or prohibit
development. Development applications are reviewed under the Planning Act and the
broad provincial planning regime. Development is an important part of Newmarket, and
is critical for the Town to be able to achieve its goals of economic development,
providing a diverse housing stock, and constraining outward urban growth. Regulating
the removal of trees is a limit on private property rights, but one that is a means of
ensuring the maintenance and growth of the Town’s urban canopy rather than an
attempt to frustrate growth and development.

Approaches of other municipalities

Many municipalities take a more robust approach to tree preservation and regulation
with both policies and by-laws to limit the removal of trees and promote the planting of
new trees.

The majority of York Region’s local municipalities, including the other urban
municipalities (Richmond Hill, Markham, Vaughan, and Aurora), have a by-law
regulating trees on private property. The more rural municipalities (King, Georgina and
East Gwillimbury) have some Official Plan policies or wholly rely on the Region’s
Woodlot By-law for protecting trees. Newmarket is in the middle of the group by having a
Tree Policy but not having a tree protection/removal by-law.
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Aurora allows two trees of up to 30cm in diameter each to be removed from a property
each year without a permit, and additional trees can also be removed for larger
properties. Markham requires a permit for tree removals but charges no fee for the
permits, preferring to emphasize customer service and providing professional public
service advice to assist residents in voluntarily maintaining their trees. Richmond Hill
iIssues permits for the removal of trees over 20cm in diameter and exemption permits for
those which are dead, diseased, hazardous, or Ash trees, with an overall preference for
encouraging compliance over punishment. Similarly, Vaughan issues permits for the
removal of any tree over 20cm in diameter but waives the application fee for those that
are dead, hazardous, or Emerald Ash Borer infected Ash trees.

Outside York Region, Brampton has an approach wherein they do not require permits to
remove trees located within 2m of an occupied building. Trees with a diameter of under
30cm, do not require a permit to be removed. Otherwise, an application costs $50 and
takes approximately a month to process.

Pickering regulates which trees can be removed through specified tree protection areas;
trees within the area require a permit, those outside do not require a permit to be
removed. Their permit costs $100.

Oakville requires a permit to remove a tree that is over 15cm in diameter. Their permit
costs are scaled based on the number of trees being removed: $50 for the first, and
$340 for each additional tree (larger than 24cm). There is no fee for a permit to remove
a dead or dying tree.

Appendix A provides a more detailed jurisdiction scan through a chart comparing how
other municipalities in and around York Region are protecting and regulating trees.

Proposed Program

Staff’s intent is that any new approach to tree protection be efficient, effective, and easily
understood. As such, staff's draft framework includes a by-law which would have a
tiered approach to the protection of trees on private property. The approach discussed
below is based on three tiers that increase review and protection requirements based on
the impact of tree removals in each tier's circumstances. Staff believes this approach will
contribute to Council’s Strategic Pillar of Environmental Stewardship and through tree
protection.

Tier 1: Areas not subject to a development application

The removal of trees in most residential areas of Newmarket has not traditionally been
regulated by the Town. However, for the reasons discussed above, it may be worth
implementing stronger tree protection measures. In order to create an easily managed
system, staff are proposing that:
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* Any small (less than 20cm in diameter) tree | Tree Policy Compensation:
can be removed;

e The removal of any tree greater than 20cm Replant by Aggregate Inch
requires replanting or compensation (similar | Method: one 30cm tree requires

to the compensation required under the five 6cm trees to be planted (or
Tree Policy); and three 10cm trees)

e Criteria be set under which the removal of ]
trees be prohibited (e.g. healthy trees of Cash equivalent: $450 per tree
large size and rare species, trees whose in the Fees & Charges By-law
removal would significantly impact (this amount is indexed yearly).

neighbouring properties or streetscapes).

Requiring replanting and compensation for removed mature trees during development
has been common practice in Newmarket since 2005. Compensation funds may be
used for future tree plantings by the Town, education programs which would assist
residents in maintaining trees, and subsidies for new tree plantings by residents.

Such an approach would include the ability for residents to replant trees elsewhere on
their property to reduce the need for monetary compensation. This approach reflects a
deference to private property rights and the desire of homeowners to arrange their
properties in a manner that suits them by allowing tree removals in almost all
circumstances. This approach also seeks to discourage tree removal by requiring the
replacement of trees or cash equivalent to ensure that each neighbourhood benefits
from mature trees.

The by-law would outline exemptions from the permit process (i.e. hazardous trees). It
would also outline a scale of cost for removal — the bigger the tree the higher the cost,
thus discouraging removal of mature trees which provide greater benefits. There would
be a permit application cost for the first tree plus additional fee per additional tree
removed.

By-law administration

Interviews with staff from other municipalities with private tree protection by-laws have
provided Town staff with an indication of the volumes of applications and thus the
resourcing required. For the by-law to be of any effect or success, qualified staff with
adequate time to administer the by-law and assist residents in compliance are required.

Depending on Council’s willingness to resource a private tree protection regime, the
Town could adopt a by-law of varying levels of efficacy.

To minimize resources, Council could adopt a by-law that seeks to create a low
administrative burden but provides little review or enforcement. Such a by-law could
require no qualified arborist report for the removal of trees and simply require residents
to replant or pay a replanting value to the Town. This approach would provide little
review of the impacts of tree removal or whether there were other options to preserve
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mature trees. This approach would rely largely on voluntary compliance, as without
dedicated resources, follow-up or investigation and enforcement would be challenging.

A more robust protection system would require a qualified arborist employed by the
Town to also act as an enforcement officer. This approach could require an arborist
report for tree removal requests to reduce Town costs, or employ the Town’s staff
member to undertake the review to reduce the burden on individual residents. This
approach would provide for a staff member to handle tree removal permits, follow-up to
ensure replantings have been completed, and enforcement in the event of unauthorized
tree removals.

Opportunities also exist to fund staffing for such an approach by moving the role of
reviewing development arborist reports to such a position. The Town currently employs
an external consulting arborist to review such reports and recoups the cost from
development applicants. Combining this role with a tree protection staff could fund a
portion of such a position through development review while also providing a more local
and available development review service.

This staff person could also provide enhanced customer service such as Markham’s
approach. Ideally, the staff member would be a certified arborist and would be part of
the Forestry Department in Public Works Services. He/she could work with residents
who are unsure of a tree’s health and advise on how to maintain a tree instead of
removing it. They may offer suggestions about how to change a proposal to preserve a
tree and offer advice on how to protect a tree during construction.

Subject to Committee’s feedback on this report, Staff intend to review and refine this
approach in terms of the strength of such a by-law and how funding for such a position
may be managed.

Tier 2: Areas subject to a development application

As properties subject to development are a larger change for a neighbourhood and can
impact larger numbers of trees, they merit a higher standard of review to appropriately
manage impact and change. As such, when a property is subject to a development
application, it would be subject to a greater degree of scrutiny than Tier 1.

Newmarket has a policy in place which preserves trees or requires compensation for
their removal due to development. The policy does not have the ability to leverage fines
and penalties against developers who do not follow the policy. The Town currently has
no method to respond when trees are removed prior to filing a development application
(in an attempt to avoid paying compensation), and little recourse when trees are
removed after a development is completed. A by-law could set out fines and penalties to
enable staff to properly enforce the policy.

Staff are proposing to increase the ability of the Town to enforce its tree protection
requirements by enacting a by-law that enables the Town to order remedial action or
levy fines when trees are removed without proceeding through the Tree Policy process.
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This would also allow the Town discretion to require that certain trees be retained during
development to accomplish goals of providing appropriate buffering from existing
neighbourhoods or to preserve an identified ecological function such as erosion and
flood prevention. This is a more effective approach than suing property owners for not
complying with their development agreements.

The Town’s approach to tree protection continues to be permissive in a desire to
facilitate the growth and development that is Newmarket’'s objective. The proposed 3-
tired framework put forward by staff would retain this approach while providing tools to
address the risk of trees being lost due to gaps in the Town’s current approach to tree
protection.

Tier 3: Areas subject to the Natural Heritage Designation

Natural Heritage System areas include wetlands, floodplain, and woodlots. Council has
adopted policies that state that these areas will be protected from development and be
the site of efforts of reforestation and/or naturalization. These areas are intended to be
preserved as green space, and the zoning by-law

generally prohibits development in these areas. Official Plan policies and zoning
by-laws cannot prevent the
removal of trees. The authority
to regulate the removal of trees
is from a by-law passed under
the Municipal Act.

Official Plan policies allow the review of trees to be
protected during development applications
however, if there is no Planning Act application on
going, Official Plan policies do not have the legal
authority to protect individual trees on private

property.

The effect of this is that large tracts of land that are located in areas vulnerable to
flooding and erosion, or that have been designated by Council as being natural heritage
areas to be protected, have no protection from the removal of trees. Large wooded
areas could be deforested without any review by the Town.

Staff propose that any by-law approved by Council would require that trees cannot be
removed in areas subject to the Natural Heritage Designation unless approved with
studies demonstrating how the ecological functions of the area are protected, a proposal
that would generally be reviewed during the development approval process. Where
trees are proposed to be removed in such areas, property owners will be required to
demonstrate the necessity of their removal (i.e. they are hazardous to human health or
property) as these lands have been identified by the Official Plan as being of particular
ecological importance for forest cover.

Other Possible Approaches

Another approach could be to not have a by-law and spend resources on an education
and awareness campaign(s). Education and awareness is a key element of any tree
protection regime. These campaigns may reach many residents, however there can be
a financial incentive for property owners to remove trees to increase the ease of

Protection of Trees on Private Property Page 13 of 17
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development, which may negatively impact other residents, and in that case the
municipality should use its powers to protect the urban forest.

Staff have considered these other approaches and believe that the proposed 3-tierd
approach is balanced and most likely to achieve all desired outcomes. Furthermore,
staff are committed to ongoing consultation with residents, business owners, and

developers and the continuous improvement of any adopted tree protection regime.

Consultation

Since this topic was last before Council, staff have been engaging in various means to
gather input from the community on this topic.

Phone Survey

A phone survey was undertaken by MDB Insight. The research was conducted via live
agent Computer-Assisted-Telephone-Interviewing from October 30" to November 8,
2018. Results are considered accurate to within +/- 4.9%, 19 times out of 20.

= In total, 401 surveys were completed with residents of the Town of Newmarket
18 years of age or older.

» The sample was randomly collected evenly from each of Newmarket’s seven
wards (57 per ward)

» Final data used in the analysis were weighted by age and ward to represent the
population of Newmarket.

The phone survey found that 61% of residents are in favour of putting in place a by-law
to have fines and penalties for trees that are removed without permissions. Incentives
and education programs are more preferred than by-laws with fines, but all have strong
support.

The results of the survey showed a different perception of whether there was a problem
of “homeowners” or “developers” cutting down trees. Only approximately one fifth of
residents believe tree cutting by homeowners is a problem. It is worth noting that it is
challenging to draw a line between the two, as individuals and families can act as a
developer through additions to houses, demolitions and rebuilds, and through severing
and creating new lots. There was strong support in the survey for requiring permission to
remove trees, and for the Town taking a stronger role in protecting trees.
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The below bar graph shows the percentage of respondents who agreed with each

| believe that the presence of trees enhances my
. : 98%
quality of life.

The municipal government should be doing more
L e

statement.

to protect trees

There is a problem in Newmarket with
- L 7%
developers cutting down trees

| think it would be a good idea for people to need
s : L e
permission to cut down trees on private property.

Home-owners should be allowed to do whatever _ 48%
(]

they want to trees on their own property.

There is a problem in Newmarket with
. 20%
homeowners cutting down trees

The entire survey report is attached as Appendix B.

HeyNewmarket

HeyNewmarket is the Town’s online digital engagement platform. It allows residents to
share their opinions at their convenience on their own time and is not dependant on a
Town-hosted in-person event. The platform invites residents to share their stories about
trees and the impact they have had on their lives. The stories tend to lean towards
protecting mature trees and their significant value to the Town. There are a few stories
that highlight the value of allowing residents to determine how their plants are dealt with
(i.e. a previous owner over-planting with large species of trees such that the backyard is
in constant shade and covered with pine needles).

HeyNewmarket also provided a quick poll
that 75 people responded to, with 17
respondents (22.7%) saying no and 58
(77.3%) saying yes to protecting trees on
private property. The yes votes are shown
in green and the no votes are shown in
yellow.

An online survey was also offered through
HeyNewmarket, 56 responses were
received. The majority of respondents are
in favour of protecting trees on private
property, planting more trees and
recognized the diversity of values
(environmental, aesthetic, etc.) of trees.
The online survey was open to all

Protection of Trees on Private Property

17 (22.7%)

58 (77.3%)

Online poll support for private tree protection
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residents and was not randomly selected.

Other public feedback

Staff have been provided with a petition to protect trees on private property with 302
signatures. Staff have also been contacted directly by phone and email by concerned
residents on this topic.

Future Consultation

Based on comments received to date, staff have created the 3-tiered framework
discussed in this report. Staff believe it is important to complete additional consultation
over the spring and summer by re-contacting people who have expressed an interest in
this topic through HeyNewmarket and direct emails to staff.

Staff propose to gather opinions on the 3-tierd framework for protecting trees on private
property. Proposed consultations could involve holding a Public Information Centre,
additional reaching out through HeyNewmarket, and promotion of the project through
the Town’s social media channels. Staff intend to hold at least one in-person event to
share the proposed program, similar in style and tone as the Wayne Waratah
stormwater management/park design event held in March of this year. There are many
benefits to taking this enhanced approach to engagement for this topic. Staff have seen
and heard that there are very divergent and passionate opinions on tree preservation. It
is felt this approach is balanced and would benefit from the “out-of-the-box” style of
engagement to reach both sides of the debate and have them understand this approach.

Staff will also be consulting with internal stakeholders, specifically other departments
who would be responsible for enforcing and implementing the by-law. Staff will also
reach out to the Region and the LSRCA for their input into the proposed program.

Conclusion

Staff have heard passionate comments both for and against a tree protection or a tree
cutting by-law. Our discussions with other municipalities have found that traditional tree
cutting by-laws can be administratively difficult to manage and typically involve
increasing the staff compliment with specialty knowledge of trees and by-law
enforcement. Staff are seeking to strike a balance between protecting a valuable asset
which benefits all residents and respecting the rights and desires of homeowners to
control their own property. Staff believe that this 3-tiered approach achieves that
balance and contributes to achieving Council’s Strategic Priority of Environmental
Stewardship through tree protection. If Council accepts the recommendations of this
report, we will consult the community again and then bring forward a by-law for approval
in the fall.
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Business Plan and Strategic Plan Linkages

Council’'s newly adopted Strategic Priorities speak to sound fiscal management and
environmental stewardship. Trees were a specific focus of the environmental
stewardship priority.

Staff believe that the approach outlined herein achieves a balance between
environmental stewardship and sound fiscal management thus contributing to achieving
two strategic priorities.

Human Resource Considerations

An ultimate adoption of a by-law may have staffing and enforcement resource
implications. This will be further outlined in a subsequent staff report.

Budget Impact

An ultimate adoption of a by-law may have staffing and enforcement resource
implications. This will be further outlined in a subsequent staff report. There may be
some minor use of the Planning Department’s existing budget to fund some consultation
activities (i.e. promoting social media posts).

If directed by Council, staff can host an enhanced ‘iWonder’ style PIC. It could cost
approximately $3,000 to $5,000. Currently, there is no budget allocated for this event.

Attachments

Appendix A — Jurisdiction Scan

Appendix B - Phone survey results

Approval

Jason Unger, MCIP RPP, Acting Director Planning and Building Services

Peter Noehammer, P. Eng, Commissioner Development & Infrastructure Services

Contact

Meghan White, MCIP RPP - mwhite@newmarket.ca or 905-953-5300 x 2460
Ted Horton, MCIP RPP - thorton@newmarket.ca or 905-953-5300 x 2458
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Appendix A - Jurisdiction Scan

Municipality Permit Application Fee and Fine(s) for removing tree Timeframes for Exceptions to permit
required to Requirements without permit processing requirements
remove a
tree?
YORK
REGION
No; also no fees for Min.-Max. fine: $500 - Usually 2 weeks, No permit for trees less  Permit required for
inspections or $100,000 but can be from 3 than 20cm DBH at 1.37  dead, dying, diseased,
appeals weeks to a month if m hazard trees, for
Continuing offence: Min.- high volume Emergency Work, and
No arborist report Max. fine $500-$10,000 per No permit for pruning, for works relating to a
required, Arboriston  day; not limited to $100,000 Maximum is 30 days etc. under Good Property Standards
staff for total of all daily fines Arboricultural Practice Order
Markham Yes Conducts on-site Multiple offences: Min.-Max. Tree management plans Permit required for
inspections fine $500-$10,000 for each for larger tracts of lands  removal related to infill
offence; not limited to may supersede construction
$100,000 for total all fines for necessity for permit
each offence Gives discounted price
for cash-in-lieu, $300
Special fines may be instead of $600 (looking
applicable for economic gain to change that)
or advantage from the
offence; unlimited amount
Yes, $150 for first Min. fine: $300 Legally, 45 days No permit required for Permit required for
tree and $50 for each Typically, 10-15 trees lees than 20cm exemption
Richmond addiFionaI tree to a Continuing offence: Min.- days* DBH
Hill Yes maximum of $400 Max. fine $500-$10,000 per For trees that are dead,
(may be waived for day; not limited to $100,000 *depending on work  No permit required for diseased (including
those below LICO) for total of all daily fines load emergency work, etc. EAB) or hazardous, you
Requires certification need approval from
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Fine(s) for removing tree
without permit

Timeframes for
processing

Exceptions to permit
requirements

from Arborist

Conduct on-site

Multiple offences: Min.-Max.
fine $500-$10,000 for each
offence; not limited to

Trees on development
sites — Site Plan
submissions include

Commissioner, and an
Arborist Certificate from
a certified arborist or

inspection $100,000 for total all fines for Tree Inventory and Professional Forester
each offence Preservation Plans confirming that the tree
is dead, diseased or
Special fines may be hazardous
applicable for economic gain
or advantage from the
offence; unlimited amount
Only permit required When dead, dying,
(RMY) for trees part of a decayed, or considered
woodlot or woodland a danger, trees must be
King No N/A N/A N/A trimmed_an(_j pruned to a
safe maintained state or
cut down in accordance
with the Clean Yards
By-law
East Only permit required None
Gwillimbury No N/A N/A N/A (RMY) for trees part of a
woodlot or woodland
Only permit required Removal of dead trees
Georgina No N/A N/A N/A (RMY) for trees part of a (presumably also dying
woodlot or woodland or hazardous trees) may
be ordered
Yes, with Yes, scaled fee Persons: Up to 30 days No permit required for Can remove 2 trees
Aurora exceptions 3 trees: $204.25 a) First conviction, not more removal of trees less between 20cm and

4 trees: $306.30
5 trees: $4-8.40

than $10,000 or $1,000 per
tree, whichever is greater;

than 20cm DBH

70cm on private
property in 12 month




276

Timeframes for
processing

Permit
required to
remove a

Municipality

Application Fee and
Requirements

Fine(s) for removing tree
without permit

Exceptions to permit
requirements

tree?

6 trees: $510.50

7 trees: $612.60

8+ trees: $102.10 per
additional tree to
max. of $2,552.50

Trees over 70cm in
diameter: $510.50
per tree

May be waived at
discretion of Director

Arborist report may
be required

and

b) Subsequent conviction, not
more than $20,000 or $2,500
per tree, whichever is greater.

Permit required for any
tree with DBH greater
than 70cm

Permit required for any
heritage tree

Permit not required for
pruning, Emergency
Work, work under
Order, trees on a Golf
Course, etc.

period (reduced from 4)
without permit

Can remove 2 trees
between 20cm and
70cm per 0.25 ha on
larger private properties
in 12 mo. period without
permit

Dead, diseased, or
hazard trees require
permit (Arborist
certificate or report and
application) but are
exempt from fee

Yes, processing fee Persons: Thirty (30) days No permit required for Application for Five
of $64 for 5 trees or a) First conviction, not more trees less than 20cm Trees or Less and
less and $115 for than $10,000 or $1,000 per diameter at base separate for 5+ and
more than five trees  tree, whichever is greater; construction related
Vaughan Yes _(an construction or  and o No permit required for
infill) b) Subsequent conviction, not emergency work, Dead, hazardous, or
more than $25,000 or $2,500 pruning, etc. dying from EAB - permit
Arborist report per tree, whichever is greater. required, exempt from
required fee
Whitchurch- Only permit required Draft 01_‘ by-Iavy for
Stouffville No N/A N/A N/A (RMY) for trees part of a protection/maintenance

woodlot or woodland

of trees on public
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Fine(s) for removing tree

without permit

Timeframes for
processing

Exceptions to permit
requirements

property going to
Council May 215t

No plans to regulate
trees on private

property?

Yes, $122
Site visits conducted

Arborist report may

Min.-Max. fine: $500-
$100,000

Person:

a)

First conviction: not more

About 1 mo.

If tree is dead or
dying but poses little
to no risk to safety

No permit required for
trees on lots smaller
than 0.2 ha (0.5 a), for
trees measuring less
than 10 cm DBH. at 1.4

Dead, dying, or
hazardous trees require
a certificate issued by
an Arborist confirming
justification

be required than $10,000 or $1,000 or accessibility, m, for trees that could
per tree, whichever is permit will be placed not have reached a Other notes for trees on
greater further back on list height of at least 4.5m University property,
Guelph Yes b) Subsequent conviction: from the ground at Gold Courses, etc.
not more than $25,000 or physiological maturity
$2,500 per tree whichever
is greater No permit required for
dead or dying trees,
trees posing danger to
life or property, or trees
impacted by unforeseen
causes or natural events
Yes: Non- Min.-Max. fine: $500.00- 2-4 weeks No permit required for None
construction related: ~ $100,000.00 per tree; and trees less than 30 cm
Toronto Yes Private tree = DBH at1.4 m

$118.68/tree,
boundary/neighbor

a special fine of $100,000.00
(under subsection 370 (1) (d)

Permit required for any
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Fine(s) for removing tree
without permit

Timeframes for
processing

Exceptions to permit
requirements

tree =$ 247.73/tree

Construction:
Related:

Private tree =
$355.02/tree,
boundary/neighbor
tree = $743.21/tree

Application fees may
be waived

Arborist report
required

Site visits are
conducted prior to
issuance

of the City of Toronto Act,
2006).

vegetation/tree in area
regulated by Ravine and
Natural Feature
Protection By-law

Tress that are terminally
diseased, dead,
imminently hazardous
trees, and/or engaged in
emergency work require
certification from the
General Manager

Oakville

Yes

Yes, $50 for first tree
sized 15-24cm DBH
removed in 12 mo.
period, $340 for each
additional tree sized
15-24cm DBH or for
each tree larger than
24cm DBH

If tree removal is a
result of a
development

Min.-Max. fine: $400-
$100,000

Continuing offence: Min.-
Max. fine is $400-$10,000 per
day; total of all daily fines for
the offence is not limited to
$100,000

About 25 days

‘It can take up to 5
business days for a
tree inspector to
schedule a
consultation/site
visit with the
applicant after the
request has been
made. It will then

No permit required for
trees measuring less
than 15 cm in diameter

No permit required,
though must notify Town
ASAP, for Emergency
tree removal (immediate
risk for the tree (or part)
to cause serious injury
or damage to people or

Dead and high risk
trees, Ash trees, and
buckthorn require
permit (also Arborist
report and photos) but
are exempt from fees

Any hedges with stems
that measure 15 cm or
more in diameter require
permit
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remove a
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Application Fee and
Requirements

Fine(s) for removing tree
without permit

Timeframes for
processing

Exceptions to permit
requirements

application, second
tree 15-24cm DBH
and any trees greater
than 24cm are $720

Application fees may
be waived

take approximately
25 business days to
review and process
an application after
the Forestry
department receives
all the required

property)

Security deposit - Tree
replacement and
security deposit may be
a condition of removal.
The security deposit will
be refunded once a final

documentation.” inspection of the
Arborist report replacement plantings is
required for any high complete.
risk tree, may be
necessary otherwise
On-site consultation
conducted
On a first conviction, to a fine Permit required for trees None
not more than $10,000 or that are part of a
$1,000 per tree, whichever is woodlot (forested area)
Barrie No (s_ee N/A greater; and N/A of half-acre in size or
exceptions) On any subsequent larger and for trees part
conviction, to a fine not more of a development
than $25,000 or $2,500 per application
tree, whichever is greater.
Yes, $50 Max. fine: $100,000 Up to 30 days Permit not required for ~ None
trees less than 30 cm
Arborist Report may  Continuing offence: Max. fine DBH at 1.37 m
Brampton Yes

be required by
Commissioner

is $10,000 per day; the total
of all daily fines for the
offence is not limited to

Dead or hazardous
trees do not require
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Fine(s) for removing tree
without permit

Timeframes for
processing

Exceptions to permit
requirements

$100,000;

Multiple offences: Max. fine is
$10,000 per offence; the total
of

all fines for each offence is
not limited to $100,000

Special fine may be applied
for aggravating factors; can
exceed $100,000 or other
maximums

permit, but City asks for
notification

Permit not required for
trees located within 2
meters of an occupied
building, Injury to trees
where necessary for
emergency work, etc.

Pickering Yes

Yes, $100

For dead, dangerous,
diseased or severely
injured trees: Free if
has report from a
certified arborist; $25
if City’s arborist is
required to inspect to
confirm the
compromised state of
the tree

First conviction: fine not more
than $10,000 or $1,000 per
tree, whichever is greater

Subsequent conviction: fine
not more than $25,000 or
$2,500 per tree, whichever is
greater

Typically within a
few weeks —
dependent on
scheduling and
availability of By-law
staff and arborist

Permit not required for:
trees less than 25 mm
DBH at 1.5m in
protection area; trees
not located in the
designated protection
area; dead, dangerous,
diseased or severely
injured trees or stumps,
in accordance with good
forestry practices; Ash
trees in relation to the
EAB infestation

They stipulate: No tree
removal is permitted
prior the submission and
approval of a Tree
Inventory Report and
Preservation Plan which
IS required as part of all
draft plan of subdivision,
zoning, land division or
site plan approval
submissions
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2018 Tree Survey Results with
Ward Level Analysis



Background and Methodology

Background

The broad purpose of the survey is to measure attitudes toward trees, the
value or importance of trees, and any issues or problems with tree
removal in the town of Newmarket.

Methodology

The research was conducted via live agent Computer-Assisted-Telephone-
Interviewing (CATI) from October 30t to November 8th, 2018.

" In total, 401 surveys were completed with residents of the Town of
Newmarket 18 years of age or older.

=Sample was collected evenly from each of Newmarket’s seven wards (57
per ward)

“Final data used in the analysis were weighted by age and ward to
represent the population of Newmarket.

=Results are considered accurate to within +/- 4.9%, 19 times out of 20.

MDB Insight
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Better air quality, erosion prevention, and increased community

appeal are top three reasons for considering trees important

Contributes to better air quality

Prevents soil erosion | ENEGTNGNGEGEGEGEGEGEGE 53%
Adds character and community appeal |
VPP N =0%

to the town

Provides food and shelter for wildlife || NN NG 79%

Absorbs storm water runoff ||| ENGTNNENKNGGEINNNN 77

Provides shade | 77%

Contributes to better mental health for
o N 76%
individuals |
Buffers sound | R 70%

Contributes to increased property — 63%
0

M Total Sample

MDB Insight How important are each of the following for having trees in your neighbourhood...
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Tree cutting on private property is a problem for 1 out of 4

residents.

MDB Insight Do you feel tree cutting on private property is a problem in Newmarket?
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Incentives and education programs are more preferred

than bylaws with fines, but all would be welcome

incentives encouraging residents to
plant trees

an education program

information on how to care for trees

A fine of $500 to $2000 for cutting
down trees

B Total Sample

Would you say an education program that informs people about the benefits of trees on their property would HELP preserve trees on private property.
MDB Insight Would you say a by-law which includes a fine between $500 and $2000 for people who cut down trees without permission would HELP preserve trees on private property.
Would you say mformatlon for residents on how to care for trees on their own property would HELP preserve trees on prlvate property.
aging residents to plant trees on their own property would HELP pre ate prope
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Nearly 2 out 3 residents have planted trees

None

1-2

3-5

More than 5

MDB Insight How many trees, if any, have you planted on your property?




removed any trees

The majority of residéSr?ts (three out of five) have not

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Ward 6

None

54%

44%

54%

61%

1-2

34%

37%

30%

29%

3-5

7%

2%

12%

2%

More than 5

MDB Insight How many trees, if any, have you removed from your property?




Dead / dying trees is tzﬁge primary reason provided for

removal of trees.

The tree was dead or almost dead

The tree was a hazard

The tree roots were damaging
something

To make room for property or home
improvement

The tree was dropping leaves and debris

The tree was unattractive

orver I

B Total Sample

MDB Insight What was the reason or reasons for removing trees?
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Problem with tree removal associated with developers

rather than individual home owners

| believe that the presence of trees enhances my
quality of life.

The municipal government should be doing more
to protect trees

There is a problem in Newmarket with
developers cutting down trees

| think it would be a good idea for people to need
permission to cut down trees on private
property.

Home-owners should be allowed to do whatever
they want to trees on their own property.

There is a problem in Newmarket with
homeowners cutting down trees

B Total Sample

MDB Insight Please indicated how much you agree or disagree with the following statements...
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" ) Town of Newmarket
395 Mulock Drive P.O. Box 328,
Newmarket Newmarket, Ontario, L3Y 4X7

Email: info@newmarket.ca | Website: newmarket.ca | Phone: 905-895-5193

Asset Management Policy
Staff Report to Council

Report Number: 2019-65

Department(s): Corporate Asset Management

Author(s): Lisa Ellis, Manager Corporate Asset Management
Meeting Date: June 17, 2019

Recommendations

1. That the report entitled Asset Management Policy dated June 17, 2019 be received,
and,

2. That the Asset Management Policy (Appendix A) be approved; and,

3. That Staff be authorized and directed to do all things necessary to give effect to this
resolution.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of changes required to the Town’s Asset
Management Policy and procedures as a result of Ontario Regulation 588/17.

Background

Development and Infrastructure Services Information Report 2019-04 provided an
update on the Provinces requirements regarding Ontario Regulation 588/17. Since this
time the Asset Management Steering Committee has been working to update Corporate
Policy CAO.4-01 to meet this legislation.

Discussion

A Council Workshop was held on May 28", 2019 to review the progress the Town has
made on Asset Management to date. In addition, staff informed Council of the
Provincial requirements of O. Req. 588/17 Asset Management Planning for Municipal

Asset Management Policy Page 1 of 4
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Infrastructure, under the Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act, 2015, S.0O. 2015,
c.15 as follows:

e The municipality’s commitment to consider, as part of its asset management
planning:

i. the actions that may be required to address the vulnerabilities that may be
caused by climate change to the municipality’s infrastructure assets, in
respect of such matters as,

a. operations, such as increased maintenance schedules,
b. levels of service, and
c. lifecycle management,

ii. the anticipated costs that could arise from the vulnerabilities described above,

iii. adaptation opportunities that may be undertaken to manage the vulnerabilities
described above,

Iv. mitigation approaches to climate change, such as greenhouse gas emission
reduction goals and targets, and

v. disaster planning and contingency funding.

e A process to ensure that the municipality’s asset management planning is aligned
with any of the following financial plans:

¢ Financial plans related to the municipality’s water assets including any financial
plans prepared under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002.

¢ Financial plans related to the municipality’s wastewater assets.

e A process to ensure that the municipality’s asset management planning is aligned
with Ontario’s land-use planning framework, including any relevant policy
statements issued under subsection 3 (1) of the Planning Act, any provincial
plans as defined in the Planning Act and the municipality’s official plan.

e An explanation of the capitalization thresholds used to determine which assets
are to be included in the municipality’s asset management plan and how the
thresholds compare to those in the municipality’s tangible capital asset policy, if it
has one.

e The persons responsible for the municipality’s asset management planning,
including the executive lead.
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e An explanation of the municipal council’s involvement in the municipality’s asset
management planning.

e The municipality’s commitment to provide opportunities for municipal residents
and other interested parties to provide input into the municipality’s asset
management planning.

e Every municipality shall prepare its first strategic asset management policy by
July 1, 2019 and shall review and, if necessary, update it at least every five years.

The Asset Management Steering Committee has updated Corporate Policy CAO.4-01 to
address the requirements outlined above.

Conclusion

The revised Policy (Appendix A) will guide the overall direction of asset management at
the Town. The Policy establishes the key principles, overall mission and goals for the
program, and is guided by the Organizational Strategic Plan as directed under section 3
of the Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act, 2014.

In addition, the Procedures support Corporate Asset Management Policy by outlining the
roles and responsibilities of all stakeholders involved in Asset Management practices
supporting the delivery of municipal services to its residents and customers.

At this time staff are seeking Council approval of the Policy (Appendix A) and it’s
appendices as attached.

Business Plan and Strategic Plan Linkages

This policy aligns with the Town’s Strategic Plan directions in being Well-Equipped &
Managed and Well-Planned and Connected by implementing policy that reflects sound
and accountable governance and is the foundation of the Town’s Key Strategic Asset
Management documents and Corporate Asset Management Framework.

Consultation

The Asset Management Steering Committee consists of Directors from Engineering,
Public Works, Finance, Information Technology and Innovation. All areas were involved
in a review of the requirements and have provided input to the revisions proposed by the
Office of Corporate Asset Management.

Human Resource Considerations

No additional resources are required as a result of this report.
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Budget Impact

No additional resources are required as a result of this report.
Attachments

Appendix A — Policy Number: CAO.4-01 — Corporate Asset Management
Approval

Peter Noehammer, Commissioner Development Infrastructure Services

Jag Sharma, Chief Administrative Officer
Contact

Lisa Ellis, Manager, Corporate Asset Management
lellis@newmarket.ca

905-953-5300 ext. 2515
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Newmarket

Corporate Asset Management

Policy Number: CAO.4-01
Topic: Asset Management
Applies to: All employees

Policy Statement and Strategic Plan Linkages

The Town of Newmarket is committed to good governance through fiscal responsibility
and financial sustainability in striving to meet the program and service needs of the
community and its customers, including residents, local businesses and visitors. The
Town of Newmarket will adopt and apply recognized Asset Management (AM) practices
to plan, design, construct, acquire, operate, maintain, renew, replace and dispose of the
Town’s assets in a way that preserves sound stewardship of public resources while
balancing levels of service and risk in support of delivering services to its residents and
customers.

This policy aligns with the Town’s Strategic Plan directions in being Well-Equipped &
Managed and Well-Planned and Connected by implementing policy that reflects sound
and accountable governance and is the foundation of the Town’s Key Strategic Asset
Management documents (outlined in Appendix A) and Corporate Asset Management
Framework (Appendix B).

Purpose

This Policy applies to the tangible capital assets of the Town, including but not limited to
roads, sidewalks, bridges, watermains, sewers, stormwater ponds, pumping stations,
fleet, IT systems, buildings, parks, art and trees. It establishes a responsibility framework
for all policy and procedures of the Town related to Asset Management.

Definitions

Asset Management (AM): an integrated business approach involving planning, finance,
engineering, maintenance and operations geared towards effectively managing existing
and new infrastructure to maximize benefits, reduce risk and provide safe and reliable
levels of service to community users. This is accomplished in a socially, culturally,
environmentally and economically conscious manner. AM relies on four key
organizational components integrating together to achieve the desired service
outcomes: well-planned strategies, good physical assets, highly trained professionals
with respect to practices and procedures, and integrated business processes. These
components, supported by appropriate technologies, provide a robust foundation for
efficient service delivery.
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AM Program: the collective documents that encompass the AM Policy, AM Strategy
and AM Plans.

AM Strategy: a document that articulates the practical implementation of municipality’s
goals as they pertain to AM.

AM Plan: a document that reports on how assets are being managed through their
lifecycle in support of the services being delivered.

Capitalization Threshold: The capitalization threshold is the dollar amount that
determines the proper financial reporting of the asset. Asset acquisition costs that are
below the threshold are to be expensed.

This Policy guides the overall direction of the asset management system, providing clear
direction as to the appropriate focus and level of asset management practice expected.
It establishes the key principles, overall mission and goals for the program, and will be
guided by the Organizational Strategic Plan as directed under section 3 of the
Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act, 2014, and informed by:

¢ An understanding of current and future asset condition, needs and costs,

e An understanding of risks and the Town'’s ability to manage risks relating to
assets, including disaster planning and any required contingency planning and
funding;

e Accessibility standards and other related standards;

e Changing demographics, including population growth or decline;

e Climate change impacts, as well as adaptation and mitigation techniques relative
to the purchase and construction of new assets and/or the operations, such as
increased maintenance schedules of existing assets; and

e Ontario’s land use planning framework, priorities and outcomes, as set out in the
Provincial Policy Statement, provincial land use plans such as the Growth Plan
for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, and municipal official plans, where applicable.

The following eight (8) guiding principles will be applied by employees to Asset
Management:

e Customer Focused
The Town will aim to have clearly defined Levels of Service and applying AM
practices to maintain the confidence of customers in how Town assets are
managed. The Town will provide opportunities for municipal residents and other
interested parties to provide input into the municipality’s asset management
planning.

e Forward Looking
The Town will make decisions and provisions that enable our assets to meet
future challenges, including changing demographics and populations, customer
expectations, legislative requirements, technological and environmental factors.
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Holistic
The Town will take a comprehensive approach that looks at the “big picture” and
considers the combined impact of managing all aspects of the asset life cycle.

Innovative
The Town will continually improve its AM approach, by driving innovation in the
development of tools, practices, and solutions.

Risk-Based

The Town will manage the asset risk associated with attaining the agreed levels
of service by focusing resources, expenditures, and priorities based upon risk
assessments and the corresponding cost/benefit recognizing that public safety is
the priority.

Service Focused
The Town will consider all the assets in a service context and taking into account
their interrelationships as opposed to optimizing individual assets in isolation.

Systematic

The Town will adopt a formal, consistent, repeatable approach to the
management of its assets that will ensure services are provided in the most
effective manner.

Value-Based / Affordable

The Town will choose practices, interventions and operations that aim at reducing
the life cycle cost of asset ownership, while satisfying agreed levels of service.
Decisions are based on balancing service levels, risks, and costs.

The use of these principles in applying AM will better position the Town to:

Deliver services at approved levels of service;

Improve decision-making accountability and transparency;

Better demonstrate the long term consideration of short term decisions;
Improve customer service;

Reduce the life cycle costs while maintaining acceptable levels of service; and
Link infrastructure investment decisions to service outcomes.

The foundation of the Town’s Key Strategic Asset Management Documents as outlined
in Appendix A.

The Corporate Asset Management Framework (Appendix B) encompasses all aspects
of the management of each asset through its lifecycle in that it:

Integrates the strategic objectives of the Town, with key business systems,
legislation, and regulations;
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e Creates a framework that establishes the mechanism for a clear line of sight
between our AM program and Corporate objectives and strategies; and

e Commits to providing approved levels of service for present and future customers
and communities, in the most effective and efficient way, through the planning,
design, construction, acquisition, operation and maintenance, renewal, and
disposal of assets.

The basis for our asset related decisions are:

e Anchored on the four pillars of sustainability — economic, environmental, social
and cultural - that support the Town'’s long-term sustainability goals approved by
Council

e Based on applying “the right intervention, on the right asset, at the right time”
recognizing risk and the Town’s fiscal constraints; and

¢ Founded on a sustainable approach to ensure that asset base increases or
enhancements consider the impact on the ability of the Town to fund future
maintenance and rehabilitation.

Appendix C is the procedure outlining persons responsible for Asset Management
Planning namely:
o Corporate Asset Management Sponsor as identified in the terms of reference for
the Asset Management Steering Committee
e Asset Management Steering Committee
e Office of Corporate Asset Management

The Town has a capitalization threshold of $40,000 for all categories except vehicles,
machinery, equipment, computer hardware and software in which case the threshold is
$20,000. Individual assets of lesser value are expensed, unless they are pooled
because, collectively, they have significant value. Examples of pools are computer
systems, library collection, and streetlights. The Town's threshold for pooled assets is
$40,000. The Library pools all of their tangible capital assets and their capitalization
threshold is $10,000. Assets in the asset management plan are not to be subject to a
capitalization threshold, and are to be included based upon judgement of whether the
asset has value to the organization.

Cross-References

Corporate Procedure:
Corporate Asset Management Procedure

Corporate Policy:
Town of Newmarket Official Plan
Operating and Capital Financial Policy
Other Departmental Policies as applicable

Other Government Legislation:
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Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act

Provincial Policy Statement

Provincial land use plans such as the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden
Horseshoe

Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002

Appendices

Appendix A - Key Strategic Asset Management Documents
Appendix B - Corporate Asset Management Framework
Appendix C — Corporate Asset Management Procedure #CA0.04-01-001

Contact

Manager, Corporate Asset Management

Detalls

Approved by: Council

Adoption Date:

Policy Effective Date: February 8, 2016
Last Revision Date: April 15, 2019
Revision No: 001
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Appendix A
Key Strategic Asset Management Documents

The following key strategic asset management documents form part of the municipality’s
overall approach to asset management:

Corporate Asset Management Policy: This document establishes Council’'s expectations
around the management of the Town’s physical assets.

Asset Management Strategy: This document defines the municipality’s commitment and
approach to achieving the Council approved policy.

Asset Management Plans: These documents show how assets are being managed
through their lifecycle in support of the delivery of services. (To be approved at the
Departmental Management level for all service areas. The plans will be updated at least
every five (5) years and submitted to Council for information purposes.)

Customer Levels of Service: This document defines the level to which assets are to be
maintained to achieve defined levels of service. (To be developed and approved by
Council.)

Six (6) Year Financial Plans — Water, Wastewater and Stormwater: These documents

provide information on the state of the Town’s rate structure and consumption
projections.
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Appendix B
Corporate Asset Management Framework

Community and Stakeholder Expectations
iLevel of service expectations from customers and regulators)

Corporate Strategic and Business Plans
{Long Term Sustainability Goals, City Strategic Plan, Official Plan, Long Range Financial Plan,
Fiscal Framework, Master Plans, Business Continuity Plans and HR Plan)

_——

Comprehensive Asset Management Policy
{Council adopted asset management practices and principles)
_—
Comprehensive Asset Management Strategy
(Senior Management approved long-term approach to management of assets)

Benchmarking

Demand Management Lifecycle Management

o Doma Assoi Portiolio, Lifecycle
s A .

Financial Management

WOMS-Element 15, TCA Report

Asset Reporting

Asset Management Enablers

(Knowledge Management, Resource Planning, Competency Development, Technology)

Asset Management Plans

of-the-Infrastructure

tate-
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Appendix C — Corporate Procedure

Corporate Asset Management

Procedure #: CAO.4-01-001
Policy #: CAO.4-01
Topic: Asset Management

Purpose

This procedure supports the Corporate Asset Management Policy by outlining the roles
and responsibilities of all stakeholders involved in Asset Management practices
supporting the delivery of municipal services to its residents and customers.

Procedures

Responsibilities of Council

e Approving, revising, and rescinding strategies, plans and policy as proposed by the
Corporate Asset Management Division by a resolution passed by Municipal Council,
Serving as representatives of stakeholder and community needs; and

e Approving funding for both capital and operating budgets associated with Asset
Management through the annual budget process.

Responsibilities of the Corporate Asset Management Steering Committee

e Providing corporate support for asset management;

e Coordinating financial, strategic planning, information technology and asset
management activity;

e As part of asset management planning, consider:

I. the actions that may be required to address the vulnerabilities that may
be caused by climate change to the municipality’s infrastructure assets,
in respect of such matters as,

A. operations, such as increased maintenance schedules,
B. levels of service, and
C. lifecycle management,

il. the anticipated costs that could arise from the vulnerabilities described
above,

iii. adaptation opportunities that may be undertaken to manage the
vulnerabilities described above,

V. mitigation approaches to climate change, such as greenhouse gas
emission reduction goals and targets, and

V. disaster planning and contingency funding
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e Implementing a process to ensure that the municipality’s asset management
planning is aligned with the following:

e Financial plans related to the municipality’s water assets including any financial
plans prepared under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002.

¢ Financial plans related to the municipality’s wastewater assets.

e Implementing a process to ensure that the municipality’s asset management
planning is aligned with Ontario’s land-use planning framework, including any
relevant policy statements issued under subsection 3 (1) of the Planning Act, any
provincial plans as defined in the Planning Act and the municipality’s official plan.

e Establishing policies and practices that ensure uniformity of approach across the
organization;

e Encouraging information sharing and collaboration across departments;

e Providing a corporate pool of asset management expertise that can build
capability in areas of lower experience;

e Providing input and direction to Corporate Asset Management work plans to
ensure consistency with other initiatives;

e Establishing and peer review asset management policies, practices, plans, and
other related documents;

e Ensuring that asset management plans identify activities to be undertaken, with
consideration of the full lifecycle of assets, for at least the ten (10) years following
the preparation of that plan or update and that asset management plans are
updated at no longer than four (4) year intervals

e Disseminating Steering Committee information within their department where
necessary;

e Championing the asset management process within the respective department;

e Ensuring organization-wide accountability for achieving and reviewing corporate
asset management goals and objectives;

e Coordinating with other related steering committees where required; and

e Leading the effective implementation of corporate asset management initiatives.

Responsibilities of the Corporate Asset Management Office

e Liaising with other departments in service areas relating to asset management,
including convening asset management teams (specific to each service area),
and ensuring project work is consistent with asset management objectives;

e Liaising with external stakeholders in relation to asset management matters;

e Developing an overall corporate asset management policy, strategy, and confirm
the implementation plan/resource requirements;

e Coordinating the development of asset management tools and practices
application across the organization;

e Coordinating the development of asset management plans and facilitate peer
reviews;

e Coordinating asset management improvement programs including writing briefs
for asset management improvement projects and preparing, monitoring and
reporting on the overall asset management planning budgets;
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e Carrying out selected asset management improvement tasks as appropriate;

e Leading the development of asset inventories, condition assessments, risk
assessments and related asset management initiatives in line with industry best
practices;

e Working with asset management information systems staff to ensure systems
development and functionality meets asset management needs; and

e Continuous improvement of the municipality’s Asset Management capabilities.

Responsibilities of Asset System Working Groups and Service Providers

e Providing input on needs of department, current status of assets, and current
levels of service;

e Supporting and comply with data collection requirements related to their areas of
expertise;

e Participating in the development of the Asset Management Work Plans pertaining
to their areas of expertise; and

e Participating in the regular review of all documentation, data, and asset
measurement tools to ensure continued relevance and applicability of existing
policies and practices as pertains to their area of expertise.

Responsibilities of Residents, Stakeholders and Customers

e Participating in public information sessions, and stakeholder engagement
initiatives, where possible;

e Providing feedback related to levels of service, service experience, and service
expectations; and

¢ Notifying the Town, via appropriate means, when service deficiencies or failures
are observed.

Persons Responsible for Asset Management Planning

e Corporate Asset Management Sponsor (as identified in the terms of reference for
the Asset Management Steering Committee)

e Asset Management Steering Committee

e Office of Corporate Asset Management

Cross-References

Corporate Procedure:
Corporate Asset Management Procedure

Corporate Policy:
Town of Newmarket Official Plan
Operating and Capital Financial Policy

Other Government Legislation:
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Infrastructure for Jobs and Prosperity Act

Provincial Policy Statement

Provincial land use plans such as the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden
Horseshoe

Contact

Manager, Corporate Asset Management

Detalls

Approved by: Council

Adoption Date:

Policy Effective Date: February 8, 2016
Last Revision Date: April 15, 2019
Revision No: 001
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" ) Town of Newmarket
395 Mulock Drive P.O. Box 328,
Newmarket Newmarket, Ontario, L3Y 4X7

Email: info@newmarket.ca | Website: newmarket.ca | Phone: 905-895-5193

Application for Draft Plan of Condominium (19CDMN-
2019-001) 955 and 995 Mulock Drive Lorne Park Gardens
Inc.

Staff Report to Council

Report Number: 2019-60

Department(s): Planning and Building Services
Author(s): D. Ruggle

Meeting Date: June 17, 2019

Recommendations

1. That the report entitled Application for Draft Plan of Condominium (19CDMN-2019-
001) dated June 17, 2019 be received; and,

2. THAT approval be given to draft plan of condominium 19CDMN-2019 001 subject to
the Schedule of Conditions attached and forming part of this report;

3. AND THAT Michael Vani, Weston Consulting, 201 Millway Ave. Suite 19, Vaughan,
ON L4K be notified of this action.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to recommend Council approve the attached Draft Plan of
Condominium Plan for the Lorne Park Gardens Inc. redevelopment of 955 and 995
Mulock Drive.

Background

An application for draft plan of Condominium has been submitted by Lorne Park
Gardens Inc. for the lands located on the north side of Mulock Drive, west of Leslie
Street (See Location Map attached). The applicant has entered into a site plan

Application for Draft Plan of Condominium (19CDMN-2019-001) 955 and 995 Mulock Drive Lorne Park
Gardens Inc.
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agreement dated June 12, 2018 for the redevelopment of this site and it is appropriate to
approve the draft plan of condominium.

Discussion

Draft plan of condominium 19CDMN-2019 001 relates to a development consisting of 73
at grade townhouse units within 12 blocks on the subject land. The subject land fronts
Mulock Drive and has an approximate area if 2 hectares. There is an existing woodlot at
the north end of the plan being preserved. The plan also includes a private amenity
space (tot lot) with an area of 330m2. A copy of the draft plan of condominium, as
recommended for approval, is also attached.

Planning Considerations

This application for draft plan of condominium proposes to identify and create the
common elements for the condo corporation which includes the road, visitor parking, the
woodlot and the tot lot park, which are to be maintained by the condominium
corporation.

The site plan agreement dated June 12, 2018 has been executed by the Town and all
payments and securities required by the site plan agreement have been submitted. The
site plan covers the entirety of the site including the woodlot.

The subject property is designated Stable Residential and Natural Heritage (woodlot) in
the Town’s Official Plan with an exception to allow for the townhouse units within the
Stable Residential designation.

The subject property is currently zoned Residential Townhouse Dwelling 3 R4-R-129
Zone, which permits the townhouse units as approved through the site plan approval
process. Council removed the holding provision from the zoning by-law as it relates to
this<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>